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SPECIAL PROJECTS Gentlemen:
Anfonio A. Merelos
Angelita D. De Guzman Our client, GMA Network, Inc. (the “Corporation”) filed its
* O Leave Preliminary Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) on April 10,
2014. In your letter dated April 11, 2014, which we received on

April 23, 2014, vou directed our client to amend the same in
accordance with the remarks in your checklist attached to the letter.

In compliance thereof, we have incorporated the following:

(1) The Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to state
the specific address of the Corporation’s principal office
pursuant to SEC MC No. 6, Series of 2014 as part of
agenda of the May 21, 2014 Annual Stockholders’

Meeting (see Notice of the Meeting);

(2) The Certification that none of the Directors, Independent
Directors and Officers of the Company are elected as
public officers or appointed as such in any government,
local or foreign, without authority of law, as an
attachment to the Definitive 20-1S;



(3) The Certifications on  the Qualifications  and
Disqualifications of Independent Directors as an
attachment to the Definitive 20-15;

(4) The 2013 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
(AFS), as an attachment to the Definitive 20-15;

(5) The Statement of Management’s Responsibility signed
under oath by the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as an
attachment to the AES;

(6) The  Additional ~ Components and  Disclosure

Requirements of the Financial Statements as an
attachment to the AFS; and

(7) Market price information as of the latest practicable date

(see page 51).
With this, the undersigned respectfully request the Honorable
Commission to approve its Definitive Information Statement so the Company

may distribute the same to its stockholders.

Thank you very much.

Very truly yours,

BELO GOZON ELMA
PAREL ASUNCION & LUCILA

By:

ROBERTO O. PAREL

o T

MARIA ESTELITA B. ARLES-GOZON
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April 11, 2014

| ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS®' MEETING

To: All Stockholders of
GMA Network, Inc.

Please be notified that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Network, Inc. will be
held on May 21, 2014 (Wednesday) at 10:00 a.m. at the Studic 6, GMA Network Studios, EDSA corner
GMA Network Drive, Diliman, Quezon City to consider, discuss or vote on the following:

Cali to Order

Certification of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting Held on May 15, 2013

Annual Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Financial Report

Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers

Amendment of the Articies of Incorporation to state the specific address of the Corporation’s -

~ principal office pursuant to SEC MC No. 6, Series of 2014
8. Election of Directors (inciuding the Independent Directors)

9. Efection of the External Auditor
10, Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting

11. Adjournment

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submiited to, the undersigned at 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De ia Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati not later than May 12, 2014,

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 21, 2014 are entitled to
attend and vote in the said meeting.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring any form of identification such
as passport, driver’s ficense or voter's 1.D.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting.

Noeokwh -

Thank you.
For the Board of Direclors

"

ROBERTO O. PAREL
Corporate Secretary



RATIONALE FOR THE SALIENT MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE AGENDA

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting Held on May 15, 2013

The approval of the minutes of the previous year's Annual Stockholders' Meeting is made part of the
agenda in order to comply with the requirements of the Company's By-laws, the corporation law, as well
as the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Annual Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The annual report of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is made part of the Agenda in order to
apprise the stockhoiders of the Company's ratings and financials during the previous year and to adhere
to the principles of transparency and good corporate governance.

Financial Report

The Company's financial performance during the year 2013 has been detailed in the Audited Financial
Statements (AFS) of the Company which was prepared by the Company’s independent external auditor.
The AFS have been reviewed and approved by the Board of Directars as recommended by the Audit and
Risk Management Committee.

Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers

The Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers were duly deliberated upoh prior to approval and/or
were conducted in the ordinary course of business. The aforementioned acts of the Board of Directors are
submitted for approval to the stockholders in compliance with the Company's By-laws, the corporation
law, as well as the rules and regulations of the SEC.

Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to state the specific address of the Corporation’s
principatl office pursuant to SEC MC No. 6, Series of 2014

The amendment of the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation are submitted to the Stockholders
for approval in compliance with the directive of the SEC under Memorandum Circular No. 8, series of
2014,

Election of Directors (inctuding the Independent Directors)

The directors of the previous year have been recommended by the Company’s Nomination Committee for
re-election. Their track record has been proven through the results of the Company’s performance for
which reason they were recommended by the Nomination Committee after review of their qualifications.
Their appointment is submitted for approval to the stockholders in compliance with the Company’s By-
laws, the corporation law, as well as the rules and regulations of the SEC.

Election of the External Auditor

Based on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the Board after proper
deliberation, approved the re-appointment of SyCip Gorres & Velayo & Co. (SGV) as the Company's
external suditor for 2014, The SGV's appointment is submitted for approval to the stockholders in
compliance with the Company’s By-laws, the corporation law, as well as the rules and regulations of the
SEC.



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would like to be
represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and submit the same to
the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 12, 2014. You may deliver this form or send it in
advance through fax no. (632) 812.0008. Validation of proxies shalt be held on May 14, 2014 at 10:00
a.m. at GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the
Chairman of the Meeting, as myf/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Network, Inc. to
be held at Studio 6, GMA Network Studios, EDSA corner GMA Nebtwork Drive, Diliman, Quezon City on
Wednesday, May 21, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTICN 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

OF SECURITIES anD EXCHANGE
GMA NETWORK, INC. D _ COMMISSION

LS Ty :
APR 24 Zﬂijwﬂ [

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines

Check the appropriate box;
[ ]Preliminary Information Statement
[ 1 Definitive information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter; GMA Network, Inc.

SEC Identification Number: 5213

BIR Tax Identification Code 000-917-916-30

Address of principal office Postal Code
GMA Network Center, EDSA corner Timog Avenue, Diliman

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 982-7777

Dste, time and place of the meeting of security holders: May 21, 2014, 10:00 a.m.,
Studio 6, GMA Network Studios, EDSA corner GMA Network Drive,

Diliman, Quezon City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders:

April 29, 2014

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statemeni/Solicitor: Not Applicable
Address and Telephone No.: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA -
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares Outstanding
or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock 3,361,047,000
Preferred Stock 7,499,507,184



12. Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes ¥ No
if yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange / Common Stock



GMA NETWORK, INC,
INFORMATION STATEMENT

This Information Statement dated April 11, 2014 is being furnished to the stockholders of record
of GMA Network, Inc. as of April 21, 2014 in connection with the Annuat Stockholders’ Meeting.,

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltemn 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) Date:  May 21, 2014
Time:  10:00 a.m.
Place: Studio 6, GMA Network Studios EDSA corner GMA Network Drive, Diliman, Guezon
City

(b) Approximate date when the Information Statement is first to be sent to security holders:

April 29, 2014

ltem 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent and
demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any amendment to
the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and restricting the rights of any
shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of
outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate property or assets; (3} in case of merger or
consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business
or for any purpose other than the primary purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of
corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in cases
where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The appraisal right
may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the foregoing corporate actions
proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the corporation for the payment of the fair value of
his/its shares within 30 days after the date on which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand
within such period shall be deemed a waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the
corporation shall pay to a stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares
as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder shail submit
his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares, failing which, hisfits
appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon payment of the purchase price for
the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate action
involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such shares, including
voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is not paid the value of the
shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights shail be restored.



None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by security
holders of their appraisal rights under Titte X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

tem 3.

(a)

(b}

Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is involved or had
a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

GMA Network, Inc. (“the Company”) has 3,361,047,000 common shares and 7,499,507,184
preferred shares subscribed and outstanding as of March 31, 2014. Every stockholder shall be
entitted to one vote for each common and preferred share held as of the established record
date.

All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 21, 2014 are entitled to notice of
and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares for as
many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected or he may distribute them
on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided, that the total
number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total number of shares owned by him,
multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners
and management:

(1) The security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners of more than 5% as of
March 31, 2014 are as follows:

Title Name and Address of Citizenshi Record | No. of shares  Percent
Of class Beneficial Owner P Beneficial held Owned
Comrrion GMA Holdings, Inc.”
Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place,  Filipino PCD Nominee 857,509,800  25.49%
Bonifacio Global City Corporation
Commen Group Management & Development Inc. The Record
No. § Wilson St., San Juan, Metro Manila  Filipino Owneris the 789,813,388  23.47%
Beneficial
Owner

' The Board of [ractors of GMA Hoidings, Inc. has the power to decide how the shares owned in the Company are to be voted
and has authorized Felipe L. Gozon and/or Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. fo vote on the company’s shares in GMA Network, Inc.

# The Board of Directors of Group Management & Development, [nc. has authorized Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. to voie on the common
and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.



Common  FLG Management & Development

Corporation® Filipino The Record 669,929,127 19.83%
Unit 2, 2/F, Building 2, 9" Avenue, Owner is the
Benifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Beneficial
Mania Owner
Common  M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. The Record :
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Filiping Owneristhe 453,882,005 13.49%
Costa St, Salcedo Village, Makati City* Beneficial
Owner
Common  Television International Corporation® The Record
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Filipino Owner is the 334,378,037 9.94%
Costa St., Sailcedo Village, Makati City Beneficial
Owner

Total Common Shares
3,105,512 448

92.40%
Preferred  Group Management & Development Inc. The Record .
No. 5 Wilson 8¢, San Juan, Metro Maniia Filipino Owneris the  2,625,805,308  35.01%
Beneficial
Owner
Preferred FLG Management & Development The Record
Corpaoration Filipina Owneris the 2,181,898,644 29.09%
Unit 2, 2/F, Building 2, 8" Avenue, Beneficial
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Owner
Maniia
Preferred  M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. The Record
2/F Sagittarius Condominium, H. V. De la Filipino Owneris the 1,508,978,826 20.12%
Costa St., Salcedo Village, Makati City Beneficial
Owner
Preferrad  Television International Corporation The Record
2/F Sagittarius Condorminium, H. V. De la Filipino Owneristhe 1,111,661,810 14.82%
Costa 8., Salcedo Village, Makati City Beneficial
Owner

Total Preferred Shares
7,428,344,388
99.04%

GMA Holdings, Inc. is 99% owned by Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Fefipe L. Gozon and Joel Marcelo G.
Jimenez. The shares of the Company owned by GMA Hoidings, Inc. are covered by Philippine Deposit
Receipts (*PDR”} which give the holder the right to delivery or sale of the underlying share. The PDRs
are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Group Management and Development, Inc., FLG Management and Development Corporation, M.A.
Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. and Television International Corporation are significant shareholders of the
Company.

* The Board of Directors of FLG Management & Development Corporation has authorized Felipe L. Gozon to vote on the common
and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.

* The Board of Directors of M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. has authorized Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez and/or Laura J. Westfall to
vote on the common and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.

® The Board of Directors of Television International Corporation has authorized Joe! Marcelo G. Jimenez and/or Laura J. Westfall
fo vote on the common and preferred shares of the company in GMA Network, Inc.



{2} Security Ownership of Management as of March 31, 2014

As of March 31, 2014, the Company's directors and senior officers owned an aggregate
of 7,217,350 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 0.214% of the Company’s
issued and outstanding common capital stock and 27,294 preferred shares equivalent to
. 0.00% of the Company’s issued and outstanding preferred capital stock.

No. of

No. of

Record | Percent of Percent of
Stockholder Name Position Citizenship Beneficial Common Commion Preferred Preferred
{(R/IB) Shares Shares Shares Shares
Held Held
Anna-Terasa M. DirectorfAssistant ——
Gozon-Abrogar Corporate Secretary Filipino RB 529,003 0.02% 6 0.00%
Gilberto R Duavit Jr. oistorlPres. and Filipino RIS 4,007,000 | 0.12% 2] 0.00%
; Director/Chain _
Felipe L. Gozon i (f) irman Filipino RB 3,181 0.00% 26880 | 0.00%
Joel Marcelo G, ’ T
Jérienez ° Director Filipino R/B 325,003 0.01% 8 0.00%
Judith D. Vazquez Director Filipino R/B 588,158 0.02% 378 0.00%
Laura J. Westfall Director Filipina R8 2 0.00% 6 0.00%
. Director/Executive e
Felipe S. Yalong Vice President Fifipino R/B 1,025,002 C.03% 8 0.00%
Jaime G, Laya Independent Director Filipino R/B 400,000 0.009% 4] 0.00%
Artermio V. Panganiban Inctependent Director Filiping Ria 1 0.00% 0 0.00%
Senior Vice
Marissa L. Flores President — News Filiping R/IB Q 0.00% & 0.00%
and Public Affairs
Senior Vice
Ronaldo P, Mastrili President - Finance Filipino R/B 182,000 0.0054% 0 0.00%
and ICT
Senior Vice
Lilybeth G, Rasonable President — Fifipino R/B 158,000 0.0047% 0 0.00%
Entertainment TV




{3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

The Company is unaware of any persons holding more than 5% of shares under a voting
trust or similar agreement.

{4) Changes in Control

There are no existing provisions in the Articies of Incorporation or the By-Laws of the
Company which will delay, defer or in any manner prevent a change in control of the
Company. There have been no arrangements which have resuited in a change in control
of the Company during th period covered by this report.

(5) The Philippine Constitution prohibits foreign ownership in mass media companies such
as GMA Network, Inc. In compliance with the requirement of the 1987 Constitution, the
transfer of the shares (common or preferred) of the capital stock of the corporation shall
be deemed null and void and will neither be recognized or registered in the books of the
corporation. Thus, no part of the Company’s equity (common or preferred) is owned by
foreigners,

Itermn 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following are expected to be nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
{2013-2014);

Anna-Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez

Judith D. Vazquez

Laura J. Westfall

Felipe S. Yalong

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All of the above nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. is not related to the nominated independent directors, Jaime C.
L.aya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

in 2007, the Company amended its By-Laws providing the procedure for nominating the directors of the
Company. The By-Laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be submitted in
writing to the Nomination Committee at least thirty (30) working days before the date of the regular
annual meeting of stockholders. On April 2, 2014, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
qualifications of the nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Artemio V. Panganiban
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

10



Beard of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articies of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises
nine directors, two of whom are independent. The Board is responsible for the overall management and
direction of the Company and meets regularly every quarter and other times as necessary, fo be
provided with updates on the business of the Company and consulited on the Company's material
decisions. The directors have a term of one year and are elected annually at the Company's
stockholders meeting. A director who was elected to fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired
term of his predecessor. As of March 31, 2014, the Company's Board of Directors and Senior
Management are composed of the following: .

Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senior . . " Position - Position
Management Nationatity Position was Position was Age
Assumed Assumed

\ . e Chairman/ . . .
Felipe L. Gozon Filipine Director 1975 Chief Executive Officer 2000 74
Judith . Vazguez Fitipino Director 1988 N/A N/A 51
Gilberio R. Duavii, Jr. Fifipine Director 1999 PresidentiChief Operating Officer 2no 50
Anna Teresa M. Gozon- __ Director/ Assistant
Abrogar Filipina Corporate Secretary 2000 /A N7A 42
Joel Marcele G. Jimenez Filiping Director 2002 N/A N/A 50
Laura J. Waestall Filipino Director 2002 N/A NfA 46

) A Director/ Execulive Vice President
Fel . Yal

elipe 5. Yalong Fiiipino Corporate Treasurer 2002 2om 57

Roberto C. Parei Filipino Corporate Secrelary 1903 NA N/A 58

) . Senior Vice President, News and

. Fl \
Marissa L. Flores Fiiipino N/A N/A Public Affairs 2004 50
Ronnie P. Mastril Filipino | N/A tia | Senor Vice President for Finance 2013 48
and ICT
. e Senior Vice President for

Lilybeth G. Rasonable Filipino N/A N/A Ertertainment TV 2013 50
Arternio V. Panganiban Filipino independent Director 2007 N/A 2007 77
Jaime C. Laya Filiping Independent Director 2007 MN/A 2007 I

The following are descriptions of the business experiences of the Company’s directors, officers and
senior management: _

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 74 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executlve
Officer of the Network.

Atty Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEQ of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. and GMA
New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and Development Corp.; Chairman of
Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp., Philippine Entertainment Portal, inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank; Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Corp.,
Justitia Realty and Management Corp., Antipolo Agri-Business and Land Development Corp., Capitalex
Holdings, Inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber of
Commerce of the Philippine Islands and President of Lex Realty, inc. He serves as Chairman of the
Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc., and The
Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; and

11



Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian
Television Awards.

Atty. Gozon i a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service, and
business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice of the
Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association (1990 & 1993},
CEOQ of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur - Philippines (2004) by Ernst and
Young, Qutstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and Business Management by the Kalipunan
ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005),
Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social Responsibiiity and Broadcasting given by the City
Government of Manila (2011}, Quezon City Gawad Parangal Most QOutstanding Citizen for 2011 given .
by the City Government of Quezon (2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011 )
Lifetime Achievement Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition
given by the Civil Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013) and Visionary Management CEQ Award given by BizNews Asia
(2013). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Alty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among the first
10 of his class} and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He was admitted to the
Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 50 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the Chairman of the
Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the Chairman of the Board of
GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and a member of the Board of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEQ of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., RGMA
Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is
the President and a Director of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of
MediaMerge Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc.,
GMA New Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Monte-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.,
President of Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and is a Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 50 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2002. He is
currently the Chief Executive Officer of Alta Productions, inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc.,
GMA New Media, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the
Board of Directors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He is also a
Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, Inc,

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's Degree in Management
from the Asian Institute of Management. '

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 57 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
GMA Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Carporate Services Group of the Network. He has been a
Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as Director and
Corporate Treasurer of GMA Hoidings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of
Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc., and GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.;
Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA
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Marketing and Productions, Inc.; and Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, Inc.

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from the
Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development Program at
the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Aity. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 42 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2000.
Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high schoo! at Colegio
San Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines where she
graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate Professor in
the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEC of GMA Network, Inc. and the President
of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation.

Judith D. Vazquez, Filipino, 51 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 1988. She is a
member of the following special committees: Audit & Risk Committee and Compensation &
Remuneration Committee. Moreover, she sits on the boards of the following GMA7 subsidiaries: RGMA,
inc., GMA New Media, Inc., GMA Worldwide, Inc., and GMA Films, Inc. She is a member of the Board
of Trustees of the GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Judith is an acknowledged visionary and industry mover in Philippine Information and Communication
Technology space. In 1985, she laid the nation’s first fiber in the Central Business District of Makati and
developed the country's first ICT ready inteiligent skyscraper - the 45-storey Peak Tower, which boasts
the largest neutrat telecommunications tower in the city.

Judith is the founder and chairman of PHCOLO, Inc. - the premier interconnection site of
telecommunications and Internet Service Provider companies on four platforms: fixed-line fiber, cable,
wireéless and satellite.

Her successful and visionary effarts in the field of Information and Communications Technology, have
earned her the moniker "Godmother of the Philippine Internet,” a position in Computerworid's list of
"Philippines’ Most Powerful in ICT" and in 2011 “IT Executive of the Year” by the Phlllppme Cyber
Press.

Her philanthropic endeavors include Asian Institute of Management's first Professorial Chair for
Entrepreneurship and support fo the University of the Philippines' School of Economics, among others.
International organization memberships include the Asia Pacific Network Information Center, Pacific
Telecommunications Council, IEEE, Clinfon Global Initiatives Foundation, Young Presidents'/World
Presidents’ Organization and other local business organizations. She has served the Management
Association of the Philippines as a member of the Board of Governors, and is a Senior Lecturer for
Entrepreneurship at the College of Business Administration, University of the Philippines.

Judith holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines
and is an alumna of Harvard Business School, University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) and Asian Institute of
Management. .

In October 2011, she was elected to the Board of Directors of ICANN - the internet Corporation For
Assigned Names and Numbers - governing body of the Giobal Internet. ICANN coordinates the 3
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unique identifiers, which permit the Internet to function as a single infrastructure: Domain names, P
addresses and Port Assignments. Judith is the First Asian Female elected to this august and powerfui
international body. She is a member of the following ICANN board committees: Audit, Risk, and
Structural Improvements. Eligible to serve ICANN for 3 terms, Judith's first term as a voting board
member ends in 2014.

Laura J. Westfall, Filipino, 46 years old, has been a Director of the Company since 2000. She held the
following postitions in the Company — Senior Vice President of Corporate and Strategic Planning and
Senior Vice President for Finance. In addition, she has served as Chairperson and President of GMA
New Media. Prior to joining the Company, she worked for BDO Seidman — Los Angeles, an international
audit and management consulting firm. She currenlly holds various positions in the Majent Group of
Companies and serves as Board Member of Coffee Bean and Tea Leaf Philippines, Bronzeoak Clean
Energy, Inc., and Malayan Bank.

She holds a Masters Degree in Public and Private Management from Yale University and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California. She is a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA} in the Siate of California.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 77 years old, has been an Independent Director of the
Company since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court and in 2005, he was
appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines -— a position he held until December 2006. At present, he is
also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific
Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company, Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine
L.ong Distance Telephone Co., Petron Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Asian Terminals, and
a regular Director of Jollibee Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank,
Chairman, Board of Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Chairman of the Board of the Foundation for
Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of
Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member, Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines)
and of the Asian Institute of Management Corporate Governance Council. He also is a column writer of
The Philippine Daily inguirer. 3

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associate Justices
of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award of Honor by the
Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic leader, Catholic lay worket;
business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient of over 250 other awards from
various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar groups, religious movements and oiher
non-government organizations, both loca! and international. :

He obtained his Associate in Arts, "With Highest Honors” and Iater his Bachelor of Laws, with cum laude
and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed sixth among more
than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise the recipient of several
honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 75 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since
2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank), Director of Ayala
Land, Inc., Philippine AXA Life Insurance Company, Inc., Philippine Ratings Services Corporation, and
Bankers Association of the Philippines. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation,
Inc. and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum, Fundacion
Santiago, Inc., Ayala FFoundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly column for the Manifa
Bulletin.

He.was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86; Chairman of
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the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1884; Chairman, National
Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member of the University of the
Phitippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business Administration, 1969-1974. In 1988, he
founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public Accountants and Management Consultants) later the
Philippine member firm of KPMG International; he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in
2004,

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in iIndustrial
Managemeni, Georgia [nstitute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Atty. Reoberto O. Parel, Filipino, 58 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the Company since
1983. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His practice areas
include labor refations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a Director of Time-Life
International Philippines, Capitalex Holdings Philippines, Ipitan Nickel Corporation, Nickel Laterite
Resources, Inc., Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Resources Hoidings;
inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM Management Inc., and Assetvalues Holding Company;
Inc.; Director and Corporate Treasurer of Selenga Mining Corporatton Corporate Secretary of Altg
Productlons Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc.,, Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., GMA
Kapuso Foundation, inc., and Hinoba Holdings (Philippines), inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Philosophy and a
Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty. Parel further pursued
legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and International Law and the
Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended a training program on Industrial
Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and Innovation and the Association for
Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Marissa L. Flores, Filiping, 50 years old, is the Senior Vice President for News and Public Affairs since
2004. She joined the Company in 1987 as a researcher for public affairs documentaries and special
reports and held the positions of Assistant Vice President for Public Affairs, Vice President for
Production — News and Pubiic Affairs before her appointment to her current position.

The Rotary Club of Manila recognized her as Television News Producer of the Year in 1996. In 2004,
she was awarded the prestigious TOYM (The Outstanding Young Men) for Broadcast Management. In
2012, she received the CEQ Excel Award fromthe International Asscciation of Business
Communicators {IABC) Philippines. ' ,

The News and Public Affairs group under Ms. Flores continues to be the recipient of international
awards, notably the New York Festivals, US International Film and Video Festival Awards, Asian TV
Awards. GMA News and Public Affairs remains as the only Philippine broadcast network which has
won the highly-coveted Peabody Award (four Peabody awards as of 2014) — widely considered as
broadcasting and cable’s equivalent of the Pulitzer prize.

Besides overseeing news and public affairs programs in GMA Channel 7, it is also under Ms. Fiores'
leadership that GMA News Online was put up in 2007, and GMA News TV (GMA Network’s news and
public affairs channel on free TV) was launched in February 2011.

She earned her Bachelor's degree at the University of the Philippines, where she studied Journalism.
Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 48 years old, is the Senjor Vice President of GMA’s Finance and ICT

departmenis. He oblained a Bachelor of Science in Business and Economics degree, major in
Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in Business Adminisiration Program
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from the same university and completed the Executive Development Program of the Asian Institute of
Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing,
finance, taxation and general management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of
Controllership of ABS-CBN and also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in
March 2001. He also worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently
holds key positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptrolier/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA
Holdings, Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010, and Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA
Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide.

Lilybeth G. Rasonable, Filipino, 50 years old, is the Senior Vice President of the Entertainment v
Group of GMA Network, Inc. She is mainly responsible for the production of all entertainment programs
of the Network. :

After earning her degree in Broadcast Communication from the University of the Philippines, Ms.
Rasonable immediately worked in the broadcasting industry, starting out as a Production Assistant and
later on, an Associate Producer of the Intercontinental Broadecasting Company. She likewise worked as
Production Coordinator and Executive producer of GMA Network, Inc.

Ms. Rasonable’s work experience also inciuded a post as Technical Consultant for Local Production
with the Associated Broadcasting Company (ABC-5) and freelance Executive Producer for film and
tefevision. After a few years, she rejoined GMA as a Production Manager under its Sales and Marketing
Group. '

From Program Manager, Ms. Rasonable was promoted to Assistant Vice President for Drama in 2004
As AVP, she was a key figure in the creation of groundbreaking and phenomenal hits such as Mulawin;
Encantadia and Darna, which made the primetime block of GMA invincible and contributed to the
unprecedented success of GMA in its quest for leadership in the Philippine broadcasting industry. It was
also during her time as AVP for Drama when GMA produced programs that created superstars for the
Network and afternoon dramas dramatically rose and established strong presence in their timeslots with
breakthrough innovations.

In 2010, Ms. Rasonable was promoted to the position of Vice President, Drama Productions and tasked
with the supervision of non-primetime and primetime drama programs of GMA. By February 2012, she
took the helm as Officer-in-Charge of the Entertainment TV (ETV) Group. And in December 2013, she
received her promotion and appointment as ETV's Senior Vice President.

Significant Employees

Although the Company and its key subsidiaries have relied on, and will continue to rely on, the
individual and collective contributions of their executive officers and senior operational personnel, the
Company and its key subsidiaries are not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Judith D. Vazquez is the sister of Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., and Joe! Marcelo G. Jimenez and Laura J
Westfall are siblings. Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L.
Gozon's sister, Carolina L. Gozon-Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez and Laura J.

Waestfall,

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
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To the best of the Company's knowledge, during the past five years and up to date, there had been no
occurrence of any of the following events which are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of
any director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer, or control person of the
Company;

s Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which such person
was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the insolvency or within two years
prior to that time; :

* Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any pending
criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic violations and other
minor offenses;

= Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic
or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or
otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking
activities; and,

* Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of competent
jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign
exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for violation of a securities or
commodities law, :

Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date of
the jast annual meeting of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on matterg
relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

GCerfain Relationships and Related Transactions

Advances to Affiliates

The Company has, from time to time, made advances to certain of its affiliates. The advances are nont
interest bearing.

The Company made advances to Mont-Aire in the amount of 2121.4 million as of December 31, 2004.
Of such advances, the Company converted the amount of P38.3 million into R38.3 million worth of
common shares of Mont-Aire. Simultaneously, the other shareholders of Mont-Aire, namely, Group
Management and Development, Inc., Television International Corporation and FLG Management and
Development Corporation converted advances in the aggregate amount of 223.5 million made by them
to Mont-Aire into B23.5 million worth of common shares of Mont-Aire. The SEC approved the
conversicn of the advances into equity on February 17, 2006. The Company owns 49% of Mont-Aire,
with the remaining 51% being owned by the Duavit family, Gozon family and Jimenez family. Mont-Aire
is a real estate holding company whose principal property is a 5.3 hectare property located in Tagaytay,
Cavite. Such property is not used in the broadcasting business of the Company. As of December 31,
2013 and 2012, Mont-Aire has had advances owing to the Company in the amount of 284.5 million.
Please see Note 20 of the Company’s financial statements. '

Agreements with RGMA Network, Inc. (“RGMA")
The Company has an existing agreement with RGMA for the latter to provide general management,

programming and research, events management, on-air monitoring of commercial placements;
certificates of performance, billing and collection functions, and local saies service for the 25 radio
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stations of the Company. RGMA is paid management and marketing fees based on billed sales. Pleas.'e
see Note 20 of the Company’s financial statements.

Agreements with GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. (“GMA Marketing”)

The Company entered into a marketing agreement with its wholly-owned subsidiary, GMA Marketing
wherein GMA Marketing agreed to sell television advertising spots and airtime in exchange for which
GMA Marketing will be entitled to a marketing fee and commission. Apart from this, the Company
likewise engaged the services of GMA Marketing to handle and mount promotional events as well as {0
manage the encoding, scheduling of telecast/broadcast placements and subsequent monitoring of sales
implementations for which GMA Marketing is paid fixed monthly service fees. Please see Note 20 of the
Company’s financial statements. =

Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila Law Office

The Company and the law firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila entered into a retainer
agreement in 1993 under which Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila was engaged by the
Company as its external counsel, As such external counsel, Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila
handles all cases and legal matters referred to it by the Company. Other than Felipe L. Gozon, who is
part of the Gozon Family, one of the principal shareholders of the Company, and director of the
Company since 1975, some of the lawyers of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila aventually
assumed certain positions and functions in the Company either in their individual capacities or as part of
the functions of Belo Gozon Elma Pare! Asuncion & Lucila as the Company's external counsel. Please
see Note 20 of the Company's financial statements.

item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
(a) CEQ and Top 5 Compensated Executive Officers:

The following are the Company’'s highest compensated executive officers:

Name and Position

Felipe L. Gozon Chairman and CEQ
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and COO
Felipe 8. Yalong Senior Vice President, Corporate Services Group
Marissa .. Flores Senior Vice President, News and Public Affairs
Jessica A. Soho First Vice President, News Programs
Year sgrl‘:rl;eai 13tBhof‘r:l§:;2 & . Total
{in Thousands)  {in Thousands) {in Thousands)
2011 80,585.7 53,6424 134,228.1
3 Highest Compensated Officers 2012 75,335.3 57.615.6 132,951.0
2013 91,6584 52,8299 144,488.3
2014 (estimate} 95,3247 54,8431 160,267.8
Aggregate compensalion paid to 2011 117,612.5 84,338.5 201,951.0
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(=)

all officers and directors as a 2012 122,618.2 94,243.7 216,862.0
group
2013 143,999.7 80,917.5 233,017.2

12014 (estimate) 149,759.7 93,514.2 243,273.8

Directors and other Executive Officers

Section 8 of Article IV of the Company's By-Laws provides that as compensation of the
directors, the Members of the Board shall receive and allocate yearly an amount of not more
than two and a half percent (2.5%) of the net income after income tax of the corporation during
the preceding year. Of the said 2.5%, one percent {1%) shall be allocated to the members of the
Board of Directors to be distributed share and share alike. The remaining one and a half
percent (1.5%}) shall be allocated to the members of the Executive Committee to be dtstrrbuted
share and share alike.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (*ESOP™)

The Company has no outstanding options or warrants held by its CEO, the named executiVé
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

item 7.

(=)

(b

(c)

Independent Public Accountants

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. has acted as the Company’s external auditors since 1994. The
same accounting firm is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled annual meeting.

Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed fiscal
year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will have the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to
respond to appropriate questions.

The Company only became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30, 2007.
Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Mr. Ramon D. Dizon,
partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company’s 2012 audited financial statements.

Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with its
current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interiry
period. .

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. has no shareholdings in the Company nor any right, whether legally
enforceable or not, to nominate persons or fo subscribe for the securities in the Company. The
foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the
Philippines set by the Board of Accountancy and approved by the Professional Regulation
Commission.

The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two years for professional services rendered by
Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co., amounted to 26.0 million both in 2013 and 2012 (these included
the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance). No other fees of any
nature were paid.
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(e} The Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee was formed in 2007 and was formally
organized during the latter portion of that year. The Audit and Risk Management Commitie&
reviews the fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board
of Directors. The Audit and Risk Management Committee has recommended the appointment of
Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co., as the external auditor of the Company.

The members of the Audit Commitiee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar
Judith B. Vazquez

Laura J. Westfall

HKem 8. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There are no matters or actions o be taken up in the meeting with respect to authorization or issuance
of securities.

Kem 9. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the modification of arifj
class of the Company's securities or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of the
Company’s securities in exchange for outstanding securities of another class. :

ltem 10. Financial and Other Information

In connection with item 9 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the foliowing as Containéa
in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities and Regulation Code:

1) Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2013 and 2012;
2} Management Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and
3) Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of securities, and
dividends paid out, corporate governance, corporate social responsibility.
ltem 11. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar matters.

item 12. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect o the acquisition or disposition of any property.

ltem 13. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account of the
Company. .
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D. OTHER MATTERS

item 14. Action with Respect to Reports

(a) Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial Statements for the
yvear ending December 31, 2013.

{b) Approval of the Minutes of the 2013 annual meeting of the Stockholders held on May 15, 2013
covering the following salient matters:

(iy Approval of the Minutes of the annual meeting of the stockholders on May 16, 2012

(i) Annual Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(iiy Financial Report

(iv} Ratification of alt acts of the Board of Directors and the Executive Commitiee
(v} Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including the Independent Directors

{vi) Election of the Exiernal Auditor
(c) Ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers, summarized as follows:

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period covering
May 15, 2013 to May 21, 2014 adopted in the ordinary course of business, summarized as

follows:

- Approval of the Minutes of the organizational meeting of the Board of Directors on May
15, 2013

- Approval of the Minutes of the regular meetings of the Board of Directors covering the
following matters: :

- Appointment of signatories:

- Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

- Approval of Article V, Section 1 of the By-laws

-Appointment/Election of Officers

-Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting;

- Approval and release of the financial statemenis for the year ended December 31,
2013,
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ltem 15. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters fo be submitted in the meeting will reguire the vote of the security holders, as

follows:

item 16. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

Upon approval of the stockholders, the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company wili be further
amended to state the specific address of the Company's principal office pursuant to SEC MC No. 6
Series of 2014.

ltem 17. Other Proposed Action

{a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers (as enumerated in item 14

pari ¢ ) including:

(i) Declaration by the Board of Directors on April 2, 2014 of cash dividends to stockholders of
record as of April 21, 2014 and payment date on May 19, 2014.

{b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent directors for the

(c)

ensuing calendar year

Election of the External Auditor

ltem 18. Voting Procedures

(@) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of the

(b)

Company’'s common stock present and/or represented and entitied to vote. However, under
Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of the
outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-cumulative, except as to
the election of directors.

Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the nine (9) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be
elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares
owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

The Corporate Secretary shall be responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares
entitled to vote owned by the stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at any
meeting of the stockholders, in the presence of the Company’s external auditor.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or associate of
the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or otherwise in any way
of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not received any information that
an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.
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Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said stockholder with
a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a copy of the Sec Form 17-A
shall be addressed to the following:

GMA NETWORK, INC,

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman Quezon City

Attention: RONALDO P. MASTRILI
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE AND ICT

The Company also undertakes to provide the first quarter interim financial report (period ended
March 31, 2014) during the annual stockholder’s meeting.

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information se’l
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on April 24;
2014, ‘:

GMA NETWORK, INC.
By:

JBERTO O. PAREL
Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

| BUSINESS OVERVIEW

GMA Network, Inc. is a free-to-air broadcasting company principally engaged in television and radio
broadcasting, the production of programs for domestic and international audiences, and other refated
businesses. The Company derives the majority of its revenues from advertising related to television
broadcasting.

The Company's Congressional television broadcasting franchise was renewed on March 20, 1992
through Republic Act 7252, which allows it to operate radio and television facilities in the Philippines for
25 years. GMA Network has 47 VHF and 32 UHF TV stations throughout the Philippines with its signal
reaching approximately 99% of the country’s Urban TV Households {(Source: 2013 AGB Nielsen Total
Philippines Establishment Survey; Claimed reception among TV homes).

In 2013, GMA Network, Inc. maintained leadership in TV Ratings in the viewer-rich areas of Urban
Luzon and Mega Manila. The Company posted increases in its gross revenues and net income for 2013
versus 2012.

GMA Network’s international operations continued to expand during the year. The Company's

international syndication and distribution business likewise grew in 2013,

GMA SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND AFFILIATES

The Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates are involved in media-refated services such as movie making,
sets and props construction, film syndication, music and video recording, new media, online gaming,
post production services, and markéting, which complement the Company’s core television and radi

broadcasting business. o

The following table shows the Company's holdings in its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
affiliates as of December 31, 2013

COMPANY ) OWNERSHIP PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
Subsidiaries .
GMA New Media, Inc. {NM!} 100°% Converging Technology
Citynet Network Marketing and 100% Television entertainment production
Preductions, Inc.
GMA Network Films, Inc. 100% Film producticn
GMA Worldwide (Philippines), inc. 100% international marketing, handling foreign program

acquisitions and international syndication of the Parent
Company’s programs

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. | 100% Music recording, publishing and video distribution
{GMA Records)
Scenarios, inc. 100% Design, construction, maintenance and storage of sets for

TV, stage plays and concerts; transportation services

Script2010, Inc. (Script2010)* 100% Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV,
stage plays and concerts; transportaion and manpower

services
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Alta Productions Group, Inc. 100% Pre- and post-production services )
GMA  Marketing & Productions, Inc. | 100% Exclusive marketing and sales arm of GMA's airime;
(GMP1) events management; sales implementation; traffic
services and monitoring
Mediamerge Corporation™ 100% Business development and operations for the Company’s
online publishing/advertising iniiatives '
Digify, Inc. (Digify)** 100% Crafting, planning and handling advertising and other
forms of promotion Including muiti-media productions -
Joint Ventures
INQ7 Interactive, inc. 50% Internet publishing
Philippine Entertainment 50% Internet publishing
Portal, inc. (PEPY™
Gamespan, Inc.*™* 50% Sports betting and broadcasting
Affiliates
Mont-Aire  Realty and Development | 49% Reat estate
Corp.™*
RGMA Network, inc. 49% Radio broadcasting and management

Notes:

* Indirectly owned through Citynef Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.
** Indirectly owned through GMA New Media, Inc.
* Indirectly owned through GMA New Media, Inc. Gamespan will be fulty operational in 2013.

T On Aprif 28, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors declared its shareholdings in Mont-Aire as subject to sale to any
interested buyer. In the event the Company does not find a willing buyer, the same shall be declared as dividends fo the

stockholders of record as of April 26, 2007.

COMPETITION

The Company currently competes for audiences and advertising revenues directly with other broadcast
stations, radio stations, newspapers, magazines, cable television, and outdoor advertising within their,

respective markets.

The Following table presents major broadcasting networks in the country:

2013 Ratings & Audience Share
. (Total day; 6AM-12MN)
Network : ._I)escnpnon _ Urban
: Mega Manila Urban Luzon .
National
Household
Ratings 14.8 14,0 12.3
GMA
Audience 37.2 36.0 322
Share : ' ’
Household
Radio and TV broadcasting network and Ratings e 120 132
ABS-CBN multimedia company, Founded in 1853, and is the
first television station in the Philippines. ;\::ire:ce 288 30.8 246
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2013 Ratings & Audience Share

{Total day; 6AM-12MN}

Network Description : Urban
T Mega Manila Urban Luzon .
National
FHousehold p
GMA Network's sister channel. It is programmed RZE:;: 24 20 17
by GMA.
GNTV .
GMANEWS TV (GNTV) was launched an fudence 59 5.2 45
February 28, 2011,
Heusehold
Third-oldest TV network in the country, with main R:Eﬁ:f 5.4 5.0 5.1
broadeast faciliies in Novaliches, Quezon City, On
VS March 2, 2010, Mediaquest acquired 100 percent
ownership of the Associated Broadeasting Audience )
Company and Primedia Inc., the broadcasting Sxa:‘; 13.7 12.8 13.4
firm's major block aitimer.
- . I R . Housahold
Radio Philippines Network (RPN 9} is a Philippine | gagngs 0.2 0.2 0.1
VHF television network of the Government
Communications Group. On Movember 29, 2009,
the network re-branded again under the new name
SOLAR Tv/ Solar TV on RPN,
ETC {RPN)/
Solar News (RPN} * *Solar TV went off air on February 28, 2011 and gﬁ:iﬂce 0.4 0.4 0.3
was re-launched as ETC (RPN) on March 2, 2011,
This station was re-launched anew as Solar News
{RPN) on November 30, 2013
. . 5 Household
Sister network to the maln ABS-CBN Broadcasting | raggs 1.2 1.4 1.5
. Corporation, alfing programming aimed towards
Studio 23/ young adulis, such as North American imports and
ABS-CBN Sports + other English language programming.
I )
Action 1 fudience 3.0 3.7 38
Studic 23 was re-launched as ABS-CBN Sports hare
+ Action on January 18, 2014
. Household
National Official government TV, formerly cailed Mahariika | Ratings ¢2 0.1 0.1
Broadcasting Broadcasting System, Inc. and later the People’s
Network Television Network, Inc. (PTV). gzgirznce 0.4 0.3 0.3
Intercontinental Household 05 04 0.4
Broadcasting IBC-13 is a VHF TV station of the Government Ratings ’ : ’
c ti Communications Group launched in 1875 by
orporation Roberio Benedicto. Audience 12 1.0 10
{iBC 13} Share : : ’
On January 1, 2008, Solar Entertainment Household
' : o 0.1 0.1 0.1
Southern i Corporation's entertainment channel ETC aired on | Ratings
Broadcasting this station.
Network
Solar News **SBN was launched as Talk TV (SBN) on March
Channel/ 3, 2011 and was later replaced by Solar News Audience
TALK TV (SBN)/ Channe! on Oclober 30, 2012. This channel was Share e 0.1 01
ETC (SBN) #* re-launched anew as ETC {8BN) on November

30, 2013
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2013 Ratings & Audience Share :
{Total day; GAM-12MN} ;

- Network . s . De_scripti"" e ' : M Manil Urban L " Urban
. L L ega Manila anLuzon | o onal
Househald 0 0 0
RJTV is a UHF free to air television channe! Ratings
nel owred and operated by Rajah Broadeasting
RJTV (2" Ave.) Network, Inc. owned by Ramon "RJ" Jacinto. Audience 01 9.1 0.1
Solar is also programming 2™ Ave. Shars ’ ’ )

NOTE: Ratings data are based on the Nielsen Television Audience Measurement (TAM).

INTERNATIONAL DISTRIBUTION

The Company's television programs are distributed outside the Philippines in two ways. One is through
its subscription-based international channels — GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV, and GMA News TV
International — and the other is through GMA Worldwide (Philippines), Inc. (GWI), a whoally-owned
subsidiary of the Company. GWI distributes GMA’s locally produced programs on all platforms through
worldwide syndication sales to broadcasters/companies in China, Southeast Asia, Africa, and Europe. .

GMAPnOY TV

The Company operates GMA Pinoy TV through which it offers subscription-based programs
internationally. Launched in 2005, GMA Pinoy TV delivers to an international audience the Com pany’é}'

i

most popular news and public affairs and general entertainment programs. ]

GMA Pinoy TV is currently available in 50 states in the United States including Alaska and Hawaii, plus
Puerto Rico and Washington DC; Canada; Japan; Guam; Saipan; Hong Kong; Singapore; Papua New
Guinea; Australia; New Zealand; the British Indian Territory of Diego Garcia: Madagascar; Malaysia;
Palau; Haiti; 16 countries in the Middle East including the key territories of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Bahrain, and Kuwait; and 11 countries in North Africa. GMA Pinoy TV
aims to establish global exposure and presence for the Network that will bring the company’s programs
to Filipino commaunities around the world.

Under the carriage and licensing agreements with international cable carriers, the Company generally
receives a portion of the subscription fees and is also allocated a certain number of advertising minutes
through which the Company may sell advertising spots, which it does, through its subsidiary, GMA
Marketing and Productions, Inc. (GMPI). GMPI aiso participates in joint promotions with various carriers
for the marketing of GMA Pinoy TV.

As of December 2013, GMA Pinoy TV's subscriber base closed at 267,000 — a 19% decrease over the
2012 closing subscriber number of 329,000. This is due to GMA’s migration to another carrier in the
Middle East and North Africa (MENA), which significantly contributed to the decline in subscription
uptake. However, the MENA market is on the recovery mode as GMA aggressively focuses on th

under-served and un-served segments, especially in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. o

GMALFETV

Three years after the success of GMA Pinoy TV, GMA Life TV, GMA Network's second international
channel, was launched. More than just offering mainstream entertainment, GMA Life TV engages more

H
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viewers with its exciting line-up of heart-warming and innovative programs that feature the Filipinoé’
lifestyle and interests.

GMA Life TV is available in the Uniled States, Canada, Guam, Hong Kong, Japan, Australia, New
Zealand, Papua New Guinea, Madagascar, Malaysia, Palau, Saipan, Singapore, 16 counfries in the
Middle East and 11 countries in North Africa. As of December 2013, GMA Life TV's subscriber base

closed at 85,000.

GMA NEWS TV INTERNATIONAL

In September 2011, GMA Network began distributing GMA News TV International in order to provide
overseas Filipinos with the latest, most comprehensive, and most credible news coverage from the
Philippines. It offers internationally acclaimed and award-winning news and public affairs programs with
7 to 8 hours of original content daily.

It is now available inCanada, Middie East, North Africa, Australia, Guam, Saipan,
Japan, Malaysia, Madagascar, Singapore and Palau.

CONVERGING TECHNOLOGY

GMA New Media, Inc. (NMI) is a multimedia technology value-added service provider. A wholly owned
subsidiary of GMA Network, Incorporated, it has launched category-breaking projects in mobile, web,
digital television and other emerging platforms. Since its inception in July 2000, it has embarked on a
sure-footed foray into the dynamic world of new media.

WEB
Online Publishing

NMI launched GMA’s official entertainment website, iIGMA.tv, and its official news website,
GMANews.tv, both of which have won local and international acclaim as well as loyal patronage among
Filipinos here and abroad.

In collaboration with GMA Network's Program Support Department, News and Public Affairs,
Entertainment, GMA International, GMA Radio, Kapuso Foundation, GMA Films, GMA Records, GMA
Artist Center, GMA Corporate (Investor Relations), NM! launced in May 2014 a revamped portal;
www gmanetwork com, the umbrella site for all things GMA. The revamp sought to improve the user
experience of the website by making the site sleeker and more accessible o a wider variety of hand-
held devices. The site is equipped with a system to detect the device and automaticaily adjust in ways
that optimize viewing and browsing. This neatly does away with the need to develop a separate mobile
website from the primary online website, thus, encouraging more users io visit the portal. The new
portal also adapts to emerging web technologies and trends by using HTML 5 and C85 3. Thus, the
site is more intuitive in terms of the user interface, with ‘drag to share capabilities,” and a faster site
loading time.

NMI entered into a joint venture with Summit Media and launched Pep.ph, the no. 1 showbiz news
portal in the Philippines. It also launched SPIN.ph or Sports Interactive Network, currently the No. 1
sports website based on recent data from Effective Measure. .

NMI provided alternative means for viewers who have no access to TV to witness historic evenis such
as Cory Aquino’s funeral and several Staie of the Nation Addresses (SONAs) using live streaming
online. The flagship news program of the Network, 24 Oras, can also be viewed live through the portal

also via live streaming.
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MOBILE

NMI pioneered interactive TV in the Phiii.ppines with the launch of SMS-TV services in Debate and
Startalk and Eat Bulaga’s Cool Dudes segment. This laid the foundations for succeeding SMS-TV
initiatives, which carried NMI through several years of growth and profit.

NMI also introduced SMS technology to Philippine broadcast TV and was the first to launch an
interactive chat and gaming show called Txtube,

NMI [aunched Fanatxt, a mobile-based celebrity portal for Kapuso stars, which is one of the most
successful mobile VAS services launched locally.

NMI broke new ground with the launch of Teledrama Fext Saya, the first ever mobile point of purchase
promo for GMA’s primetime shows done in partnership with GMPI.

NMI continues to work closely with GMPI in the launch of groundbreaking convergent media campaigﬁ§'
such as Win Mo Kapuso and Win Mo Pamasko. The combination of TV plus new media has become a
valuable strategic offering for clients in terms of ensuring the widest possible reach for both online and

offline audiences.

NMI also developed and launched the GMA News Oriline iOS and Android mobile apps that sport new
designs of the user interface to keep up with current design trends. It also deployed updates to
YouScoop's iOS mobile app that displays an all-new layout. YouScoop is a joint initiative with GMA
News and Public Affairs that seeks to promote citizen journalism and vigilance. YouScoop helps
empower the people to provide information and news when and where it happens.

BROADCAST
Eleksyon 2013 Coverage

In 2013, NMI maintained its track record of providing GMA News and Public Affairs with speedy and
accurate delivery of efections results using the latest technologies for the Eleksyon 2013 coverage. NM
spearheaded the count operations in PPCRV by acquiring, extracting, and prioritizing data from the
COMELEC before sending it to GMA for processing.

In view of the goal to achieve mulli-screen pervasivenass, NM| provided the most comprehensive
election count data across all platforms—from  television, mobile and the internet. The team deployed
its proprietary search engine that enabled users of GMA News Online and its mobile app (in both
Android and i08) to retrieve election count data in the Search Results.  While all the other websites
and apps were incapabie of integrating the count resuits in their search, our proprietary search returned
the most relevant results for all candidates during election time.

The search engine’s technology made it easier for users to find what they were looking for. %ts
predictive text capability can guess what the user is trying to find even if typographical error is entered,
or the user was unaware of the correct spelling. It also provided the user with suggestions even before
he couid finish typing the search words. This unique search engine made count data accessible to the
public at split second speed. Count data was not only fast but deep: users were provided election
counts alt the way down to the councillor level of every municipality of every province due to the smart

search's autocomplete function.

These initiatives helped propel GMA News Online {o the top Philippine online rankings with 9.4 million
pageviews on May 13. Effective Measure data showed that the websiie had a 6-million lead in
pageviews over its nearest competitor, www.ahs-cbnnews.com, which only garnered 3.1 million
pageviews on election day. GMA News Online more than doubled its numbers the next day, May 14,

with 21 million page views.
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Launch of IM Ready

In collaboration with GMA News and Pubiic Affairs, quarter 4 of 2013 saw NM| complete the first phase
of IM Ready, a one-stop portal for public safety information to aid in fraffic and disaster awareness and
preparedness. The project aims to provide the public with timely and relevant information to minimize
risks and better prepare them during emergency situations. It also enables the public to plan their
routes and itineraries. The Beta site currently presents weather information and traffic situation and

incidents.

In view of making IM Ready a cutting-edge application, NM| sealed an exclusive media partnership
agreement with Google-owned Waze, a leading social GPS navigation system that provides crowd-
sourced traffic information and real-time maps. Waze allows subscribers to share real-time traffic and
road information that enables people to save time and gas money on their daily commute. By
connecting drivers fo one anocther, the app helps people create local driving communities that work
together to improve the quality of everyone's daily driving.

Users simply type in their destination address and drive with the app open on their phone to passively
contribute traffic and other road data. They can siso take a more active role by sharing road reports on
accidents or any other hazards along the way. Thus, other users in the area get a 'heads-up’ about the
road situation ahead.

Armed with the expertise in systems integration earned painstakingly from years'of sticcessful national
and local efections’ coverage NMLI. spearheads.the development of IM Ready in’line with the, Network 8
thrust of “Serbisyong Totoo.”

Also on the broadcast side, NMI] produces breakthrough reai-time special effects for GMA. In
coltaboration with the Office of the President and GMA Engineering, NMI is involved in the development
of GMA's Digital TV strategy. Efforts are underway to conduct testing for the service soon.

MOVIE PRODUCTION

GMA Network Films, Inc. was established in August 1995 to produce movies that cater to both the
local and international markets. Its movie productions have reaped both critical acclaim and commercial
SUCCesSs.

MusIC AND VIDEQ RECCORDING

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. {(GMA Records) was incorporated in September 1997 and
became operational in 2004 after the Company decided to reactivate its musical recording business
through the "GMA Records” label. Since resuming operations, GMA Records has leveraged the
Company's talent and media resources, releasing albums of various artists. It also parinered with sister
company GMA Films and other major film production ouffits to release their films on DVD. Likewise, it
has introduced the network’s top rating programs and blockbuster TV series into the home video market

worldwide through GWI.

GMA Records works with GMA New Media and other local-based content providers and aggregators fo
take advantage of new revenue streams, particularly in the emerging market of digital music downdoads.
The company also secured non-exclusive mobile, web and kiosk-based deals with different content
praviders worldwide to continuously exploit the potentials of its music and video assets.

GMA Records publishes music and administers copyrights on behalf of composers. GMA Records is

also actively pursuing publishing deals, building on its current catalog of original compositions. GMA
Records serves as a clearing house and a source of music for the Company's television and fim
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productions. It is also a member of FILSCAP, the Filipino Society of Composers, Authors and
Publishers. :

STAGE DESIGN

Scenarios, Inc, was incorporated in July 1996 and is engaged in transportation and warehousing
services,

Script2010, inc. was formally established in early 2010 as a subsidiary of Citynet Network Marketing
and Productions, Inc. It engages in conceptual design and design execution through fabrication,
construction, set-up and dismantling of sets, and creation of props. it also provides other related
services such as live performances and events management, sales activation and promotion, and

fradeshow exhibits.

Script2010, Inc. is also engaged in transportation, hauling and trucking services to further fulfill the
needs of its clients. Other business units of Script2010, Inc are band/audio equipment rental, and
facility support services to various GMA departments.

POST PRODUCTION

Alta Productions Group, Inc. was established in 1988 as a production house primarily to provide
production services for the Network. Until the late 1990s, it operated a satellite studio in Makati,
producing award-winning News and Public Affairs Programs for GMA Channet 7. '

Today, Alta Productions Group's core business is audio dubbing and mixing for broadcast. lts fully
digital audio recording and mixing studios is in sync with the Network’s production requirements and
broadcast standards. Aside from dubbing foreign content into the local vernacular for airing on the
Network, Alta Productions Group also dubs station-produced content into English for internation{a_l
consumption. o

in addition, Alta Productions Group's shoot and video post-production department produces TVCs;
broadcast content, and documentaries for both local and international clients, its creative group also
provides concept development, staging, and activation services for various clients’ on-ground activities.

Alta Productions Group is proud fo be one of the few production houses capable of servicing the
complete spectrum of shoot and post-production requiremenis all under one roof. From
conceptualization, creatives, shoot, post-production, all the way to execution.

MARKETING AND SALES OF COMMERCIAL AIRTIME AND EVENTS

GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. (GMP1) was established in August 1980 and is the exclusive
marketing and sales arm for the Company’s commercial television and radio airtime and events. GMPY,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, provides the link between the Network and the advertisers
and advertising agencies.

GMPI provides the Company’s clients with services such as muiti-media local and global media
packages, promotional programs and materials, creative products, digital executions, and events. Part
of GMP1's sales and marketing strategies are the integrated multi-platform packages, customized on-air,
on-ground and online media solutions, branded entertainment, and other advertising and media-led

promotional campaigns.
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2013, the Company has 2,535 regular and probationary employees, a 8.2% growth
frorm 2012. The Company also engaged 2,768 talents in 2013, a 1.13% increase from the previous
year. GMA Network, Inc. recognizes one labor union, the GMA Network, Inc. Employees Union. The
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) for the cycle 2009-2014 took effect in July 2009, with the new
economic provisions effective for 2013-2014 re-negotiated in July 2012, .

H. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

The Management Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative of the Company’s financial performanéé
and condition that shouid be read in conjuriction with the accompanying financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines.

As discussed below, the Company’s financial statements do not show any losses from operation and
hence the Company has not taken any measures to address the same.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company uses the following measures to assess its performance from period to period.
Ratings

The performance of a program and/or network as a whole with respect to household ratings is the
primary consideration for an advertiser in the Phifippines to determine whether to advertise on a given
program and/or network. AGB Nielsen, a media research firm, provides ratings to the Company on a
subscription basis.

l.oad Factor

Load factor refers to the amount of advertising minutes aired during the breaks in a program as a
percentage of the total minutes available for advertisement. The load factor is an indication of a program
or a timeblock’s ability to sell advertising minutes. Load factor statistics are internally generated
although certain third parties monitor such statistics.

Signal reach/coverage

The ability to reach a greater number of viewers is a part of the Company’s sfrategy to provide its
advertisers with more value for their advertising expenditures. The Company frequently assesses its
signal strength and coverage by conducting field intensity surveys and {ests.

Subscriber count

Subscriber count is the key performance indicator for the Company’s initiatives in the infernational cable
arena to diversify its revenue base beyond advertising revenues. The number of subscribers to the
Company's GMA Pinoy TV and GMA Life TV form the benchmark for measuring the success of this
service. The Company makes internal assessments to determine the market potential for each new

initiative and sets a subscriber count target accordingly.
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Cost control

The Company is continuously searching for ways to control costs and to improve efficiency. The
Company has established systems and procedures to monitor costs and measure efficiency and has
launched various initiatives and activities in relation to these efforts. B

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Buoyed by election-related advertisements during the first half of the year, GMA Network, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (GMA/the Company) sealed 2013 consolidated revenues at B12,951 million, ahead by 7%
over last year. Airtime sales which comprised 91% of total revenues grew by R879 million or 8% year-
on-year. On the other hand, revenues from other businesses slightly dipped by P14 million or 1%. :

Spending-wise, the Company hiked total operating expenses to B10,565 milfion, up B762 million or 8%
against a year ago. Production cost drove the increase in the pursuit of mounting value-creating and
high-caliber programs as well in delivering one of the most comprehensive 2013 election coverages via
Eleksyon 2013. In the same manner, general and administrative expenses {GAEX) recorded growth,
albeit at a fow single-digit rate, owing mainly to the rise: in facilities costs,

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) closed at B3,718 million,
recording an improvement of P297 million or 9% from a year ago. The rise was boosted by the
improvement in this year’s top line coupled with managed growth in cash operating costs. Bottom line
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company amounted to B1,667 million, B50 million or 3%

higher compared to same period last year.

20131 2012 - as restated Inci{Dec) %
Income Data (in millions PhP) | (in millions PhP)| (in millions PhiP)
Revenues ‘
Television and radio airtime 11,738.6 10,859.9 878.7 8%
Production and others 1,212.3 1,226.0 {13.8) ~1%
12,950.9 12,085.9 8649 7%
Total operating expenses 10,565.3 9,803.8 761.5 8%
EBITDA 3,718.2 3.421.2 297.0 9%
Net income 1,675.0 1,620.8 542 C}:%
Atiributable to Equity Holders of Paremt Comparty 1,666.9 1,618.9 50.1 3%
Noncontrolling Interest 8.0 3.9 4.1 107%
Revenues

Consolidated revenues of R12,951 million overtook last year by 7% or P865 million. Airtime revenues
drove the growth in the top line, boosted by efection-related advertisements earlier this year amounting
to about B724 million. On the other hand, revenues from other sources retracted by 1% or some R14
million in between periods.
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2013] 2012 - as restated inc/{Dec) Yo

Revenues {in millions PhP}|  {in millions PhE}| {in millions PhP)
Television and radio airtime 11,738.6 10,859.9 8787 8%
Production and others 1,212.3 1,226.0 (13.8) -1%
12,950.9 12,0859 864.9 7%

Airtime revenues tipped R11,739 million recording an increase of BB78 million or 8% vs. a year ago.
Discounting incremental sales from political advocacies and advertisements, the improvement in regular
airtime revenue inched up by a percentage point year-on-year.

Core channel, GMA 7 contributed the buik of the Company’s total revenues recording a 7% upswing
from last year. Election-related placements for the channel were at R676 miffion this year vs. R62
million last 2012 -- without which, airtime sales from recurring load inched up by a hairline.

Meanwhile, Regional TV continued to pick up steam sealing the year with a top line hike of 27% versus
comparative period. While local political ads pitched in incremental sales during the period, if was stiil
the significant improvement in regular ad placements that propelled the platform’s top line gains. Partly
accounting for this increase were the opening of additional originating stations in the region durmg
middle of 2012 and first quarter of 2013.

The Company also dominated viewer-rich Urban Luzon and Mega Manila in alf dayparts in 2013
effectively keeping its commanding lead over rival networks, according to data from the industry's
leading ratings service provider Nielsen TV Audience Measurement.

From January to December 2013, GMA recorded an average total day audience share of 36 percent in
Urban Luzon, which makes up 76 percent of the total urban television households in the country
impressively ahead of ABS-CBN's 30.8 percent by 5.2 points and of TV5’s 12.8 percent by 23.2 points. .
The Kapuso Network similarly kept its ratings edge in its bailiwick Mega Manila with a 37.2 percent
average total day audience share. ABS-CBN trailed behind GMA by 8.4 points with 28.8 percent while
TV was behind by 23.5 points with only 13.7 percent. Mega Manila notably accounts for 52 percent of
all urhan television households nationwide.

GMA captured majority in the list of top-performing programs (including specials) in Mega Manila with
17 out of 30. Following closely behind the Pacquiao-Rios fight and Anna Karenina in the top 10 are
KMJS, GMA Flash Report: Pangulong Aquino, Hindi Kami Nagnakaw at Hindi Kami Magnanakaw,
primetime soap Mundo Mo’y Akin and weekly drama anthology Magpakailanman.

GMA and TV5 subscribe to Nielsen TV Audience Measurement while ABS-CBN is the lone local major
TV network that reportedly subscribes to Kantar Media, formerly known as-TNS. In Mega Manila,
Nielsen TV Audience Measurement gathers data based on a sample size of 1,190 homes as compared
to Kantar Media's 770 homes. Meanwhile, Nielsen has a nationwide urban sampie size of 2,000 homes,
which is statistically higher than Kantar's sample size of 1,370.

The Company’s second free-to-air channel, GNTV-11 was also on a roll as it wrapped up the year with
the highest top line improvement percentage-wise equivalent to 34% more than a year ago. Barely
aided by political ad placements during the period, the channel’s increase was driven by the growth in
recurring advertisements. .

Meanwhile, its Radio business likewise edged last year's showing by pitching in revenues 11% bettét
than 2012 contribution. Stripping election-related sales, Radio’s revenues from regular advertising load
still ended higher by 3% from last year.

Lastly, revenues from subsidiaries’ operations and others recorded a reduction of B14 million or 1% by

the close of the year. The Company's international operations registered moderate top line growth by
2% both in peso and dollar terms as the average forex rate remained about the same year-on-year:
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While subscriber count grew by 7% in North America which accounted for a little over 90% of the total
subscriber base, a decline in subscriber take up was seen in the ASPAC and MENA regions, mainly due
to transitioning of cable partners in view of improved margins in the long run. On the other hand,
negating the slight gains posted by this segment, alongside with modest contribution from other
subsidiaries, main drag came from the drop in theatrical receipts and other revenues of GMA Films.
The oulffit did not have any offering to the 2013 Metro Manila Film Festival (MMFF) vs. 2012 entries
Sosy Problems and co-prod Si Agimat, Si Enteng Kabisote and Me. Moreover, there was only ong
movie produced in 2013, My Lady Boss in confrast to four last year, via My Konirabida Girl, The

Witness, Boy Pick-up and Just One Summer.

Expenses

Total operating expenses for the year amounting to P10,565 million edged last year by 8%. Total direct
costs (cash and non-cash production costs) escalated by 13% while general and administrative

expenses (GAEX) stood about the same as last year.

Production costs (both cash and non-cash) comprising 56% of total costs hiked 13% or B671 million in
2013 vs. last year. Cash production cost rose by R533 million or 12% while non-cash (amortization of
film rights and depreciation related to production) climbed 19% or P138 million. Primetime weekday
programs this year were more costly, with the yet another trailblazer in Philippine television via the
highty-budgeted series Indjo, staged during the first half of this year. In the same manner, there were
more in-house produced shows in the weekend grid replacing last year's Kapuse Movie Nights i.e. the
re~launch of the top-rating real-life drama program Magpakailamman early this year. The weekday late
morning block likewise carried more station-produced programs vice canned programs. Lastly, the
comprehensive and timely delivery of the election coverage this year resulted in incremental expenses
which also saddied this year's production costs.

2013} 2012 - as restated Inc/{(Dec) %
Production Costs {(in millions PhP} | {in millions PhP) ¥{in millions PhP) %
Talent fees 3,102.5 2,809.3 2933 10%
Rentals and oufside senices 819.2 6903 128.9 19%
Other program expenses 1,181.8 1,071.0 1108 10%
Sub-total - Cash Production Costs 5,103.5 45706 5329 12%
Program rights amortization 565.4 4609 104.4 23%
Depreciation and amortization 287.6 253.6 34.0 13%
Sub-total - Non-cash Production Costs 8529 7145 1384 19%
Total production costs 5,956.4 5,285.1 671.2 13%

Amortization of film rights likewise exhibited an increase of P104 milion or 23% compared to prior
period as a resutt of higher charges from the inventory of films carried by the Network. Apart from this,
incidental costs were further incurred for dubbing of movies in Tagalog to cater to viewer preference.
Cther sources of this year's increase in direct cost came from depreciation owing to the earlier-
mentioned commissioning of new studios in the regions and from major renovations/ upgrade of other

broadcast facilities nationwide.

General and administrative expenses (GAEX) for this year reached B4,609 million, inching up by 2%
from same period last year. Cash GAEX grew even lower by 1% partly dragged by the rise in non-cash
expenses by 7%. While manning complement for the Network alone recorded an augmeniation of 6%,
on top of the yearly adjustment in salaries, the rise in cost was mitigated by the presence of signing
bonus during last year's collective bargaining agreement as well as higher bonuses.

35




2013} 2012 - as restated Inc/{Dec) Y
General and Administrative Expenses {in millions PhP) |  (in millions PhP} |(in millions PhP) '
Personnel costs 21115 2,138.6 (27.0) 1%
Outside services 665.0 658.6 6.4 1%
Facilities costs 507.7 4322 755 17%
Taxes and licenses 140.7 143.6 (2.9} 2%
Others 734.2 7258 8.6 1%
Subtotal - Cash GAEX 4,159.2 4,098.7 60.5 1%
Depreciation and amortization 417.9 356.4 615 17%
Amortization of software cosis 31.0 277 3.3 12%
Subtotal - Non-cash GAEX 449.7 419.9 298 7%
Total GAEX 4,608.9 4,518.6 90.3 2.%

Other increase in GAEX was seen mostly in facilities costs partly due to rise in contractual agreements
and regular upkeep and improvements company-wide. ¢

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) closed at, B3,718 million,
recording 9% improvement from a year ago. The growth was boosted by the hike in this year's top line
coupled with managed growth in cash operating costs.

Net Income

The improvement in EBITDA was further trimmed down by the hike in non-cash expense during the
period. Thus, bottom line attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company amounting to R1,667
million settled 3% more than same period last year. =

Balance Sheet Accounts

Total assets as at end-2013 stood at R13,084 million, reﬂectmg a 3% increase from end-2012's B12 682
million (as restated due to consolidation of RGMA Network). :

Cash and cash equivalents climbed to R1,750 million, 36% or 462 million more than the P1,287 million
recorded as at December 31, 2012. On the other hand, trade and other receivables sealed at B3, 521
million, 8% lower than previous year. Trade days-sales-outstanding (DSQO) improved by 21 days to 92
days at end-2013 vs. 113 days at the close of 2012.

Land at revalued amounts climbed by 28% or B396 million to R1,805 million mainly resulting from theé
most recent appraisai.

Total liabilities dipped by 6% or P214 million as at end-December this year to B4,259 million from B
4,533 million in 2012 with the reduction in noles payable from B1,700 million to B1,107 million as the
main driver.

Equity of B8,788 million grew by 8% or B668 million in between years arising from net income earned
during the year and the recognition of net revaluation increment in iand of B277 mitlion.
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2013{2012 - as restated
Cash Fows . {in millions PhP)§ (in millions PhP}
Nef cash provided by operating activities 3,055.3 2,605.5
Netcash used in invesling activities {666.1) (995.7)
Net cash used in financing activities {1,941.7) {(1548.0)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenis 14.8 (3.2)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 462.3 58.6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,287.3 12287
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1,749.6 12873

Operating Activities

Net cash from operations registered at B3,055 million this year. This resulted from income before
income tax of RB2,387 million adjusted mainly by depreciation expense of B705 million, program and
other rights usage of B565 million, net movement of pension liabifity of B112 million, interest expense
and financing charges of B53 million, net unrealized foreign currency exchange of R45 million and
amortization of software costs of B31 million apart from the changes in working capital. The primary
components of the changes in working capital include the B333 milion reduction in trade and other
receivables owing to more aggressive collection efforts partly offset by the B585 million acquisition of
program and other rights. .

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to R666 million, coming primarily from the R673 msff:on
additions to property and equipment and R12 million worth of software costs. These were partly offset
by the B13 million proceeds from sale of property and equipment and investment properties.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to B1,942 million basically for the loan payment of P

2,500 miftion and cash dividend payout amounting to 1,214 million during the year plus some B53
mittion in interest expense netted by B1,825 million remaining proceeds from short-terms loans.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

GMA Network, Inc. {the Company) reported consolidated revenues of R12,086 million for the fuit year of
2012, up by 6% versus 2011. At the end of the period, the Network managed a 6% growth in airtime
sales fo 10,883 million that comprised 90% of its revenues. Revenues from other businesses inched
up 3% year-on-year. :

The Company saw a 6% increase in its total operating expenses (OPEX) for the year to R9,803 mllllon
owing primarily to the hike in non-cash OPEX in order to further diversify and strengthen its
programming and establish its presence nationwide. Although without the impact of one-time pefsonnei
related expenses, total OPEX grew by only 4%.

GMA thus ended 2012 with earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of
R3.421 million, reaching a double-digit gain of 11% year on year.

However, due to the rise in non-cash OPEX, net income after tax setiled at B1,617 million, a decline of
5% versus a year agc. The Company opted to do an early adoption of the PAS 19(R) on Employee
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Benefits which resulied in a reported total comprehensive income of B1,700 million for the year 2012
higher by 3% than the B1,646 miifion in 2011, as restated.

2012 - as restated| 2011 - as restated Inci{Dec) %
income Data (in millions PhP) |  (in millions Ph?)| (in millions PhP) o
Revenues
Television and radio aitime . 10,883.1 10,2518 6313 6%
Production and others 1,202.8 1,169.9 329 3%
12,085.9 11,421.7 664.2 6%
Total operating expenses . 9,803.8 9,254.8 549.0 6%
EBITDA 34212 3,080.0 3412 1%
Net income 1,620.8 1,709.8 (89.0) -5%
Atfributable to Equity Holders of Parent Company - 1,616.9 1,704.6 (87.7) -5%
Noncontroiling Interest 3.9 5.2 (7.3) -25%
Revenues

Consolidated revenues for the year of 12,086 milfion, comprised of airtime revenues from television
and radio, subscription revenues from international operations, and other revenues from subsrdlanes
recorded a R664 million or 6% increase from the 811,422 million top line pegged a year ago.

2012 - as restated| 2011 - as restated inc{Dec) %

Revenues . {in millions PhP}|  (in millions PhP}| (in millions PhF) i
Television and radio airtime 10,883.1 10,2518 6313 6%
Production and others 1,202.8 | 1,169:9 329 3%
12,085.9 11,4217 6642 6%

3

Flagship channel — Ch 7’s revenue of B10,085 million drove this year's increase by posting B596 million
in incremental sales or an equivalent of 6% growih year-on-year, due to its consistent nationwide

leadership across the year.

For the full year 2012, GMA led rival networks in nationwide ratings for the second year in a row based
on data from the industry’'s more widely recognized ratings service provider Nielsen TV Audience
Measurement. For the covered period, GMA scored an average total day household audience share of
34.4%, leading ABS-CBN'’s 31.5% by 2.9 points, and TV5's 15.1% by 19.3 points.

GMA also ruled across all dayparts in the important areas of Urban Luzon and Mega Manila, which
make up 77% and 59.5%, respectively, of the total urban television population in the country.

In Urban Luzon, GMA scored a 38.2% average total day household audience share, ahead by 10.8
points over ABS-CBN's 27.4% and by 23.6 points over TV5's 14.6% average. GMA also ended 2012
strongly in its bailiwick Mega Manila with an average total day household audience share of 39.2%, up
13.4 points from ABS-CBN’s 25.8% and up by 24 poinis from TV5's 15.2%.

GMA subscribes to Nielsen TV Audience Measurement along with 22 other paying subscribers including
another local major television network (TVE), Fauikner Media, CBN Asia, 15 advertising agencies, and 4
regional cfients, In Mega Manila, Nielsen has a sample size of 1,190 homes versus Kantar Media's 770
homes. Nationwide, Nielsen has an urban sample size of 2,000 homes compared to the lower samp%e

size of 1,370 utilized by Kantar Media.
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The improvement in the top line of the core channel was supported by revenues from Regional TV, the
business unit that oversees GMA’s regicnal TV operations, which climbed a significant 25%, as a resuit
of various expansion and improvement efforts in different areas nationwide. Leading local news channel
GMA News TV, on the other hand, gained a modest 3% increase in its top line on its second year of
operations, while airtime revenues from Radio dropped 2%. :

Meanwhile, revenues from other sources contributed an additional 1,170 million to the total top line,
recording a net improvement of B32 million or 3% from last year. GMA International, which manages
the operations and distribution of the Network’s international channels, recorded an upswing in
subscriber base of its primary channet GMA Pinoy (GPTV) and its lifestyle channel GMA Life TV (GLTV)
of 13% to 329,108 and 9% to 124,884, respectively, at the period’s closing. However, subscription and
advertising revenues from GMA International fell a tad short by 0.9% partly dragged by the appreciation
of the Peso against the US dollar by an average of 3%. Discouniing the impact of the forex fluctuation,
international sales slightly grew by 2%.

Subsidiaries’ operations pitched in a 20% escalation in revenues from 2011. The growth mainly came
from the newly launched Digify, Inc., GMA New Media's new techno-creative lab that provides
technology-based solutions to other companies, which generated bulk of the net increase in this
category.

GMA Films' co-produced entry to the 2012 Metro Manila Film Festival Si Agimat, Si Enteng, at si Ako
raked in almost P98 million in gross receipts, while Julie Anne San Jose's self-tiled album by GMA
Records clinched a Double Platinum Record Award from its combined physical and digital sales of
almost 38,000 units for the period August 15, 2012 to December 15, 2012. San Jose's carrier single
titled “I'lt Be There” gained over 245,000 downloads for the same period, which earned for it a Platinum
Digital Single Award. According to PARI, San Jose is the very first recipient of this award.

GMA Worldwide, Inc. (GWI1), GMA’s content acquisition and distribution arm, likewise sold over 60
program and movie titles to Brunel, Cambodia, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Korea, Macau, Malaysia,
Myanmar, Singapore, Thailand, V|etnam Italy, Kenya, Tanzania and USA.

Expenses

The Company's total operating expenses (OPEX) for the year reached R9,804 million, up 6% or B549
million from a year ago. Total direct costs (cash and non-cash production costs) inched up by only 2%
while general and administrative expenses grew by 11%. Excluding the one-time signing bonus arising
from the recent Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) of it employees, GAEX rose by a manageabie
6% year-on-year. S

Total direct cost for 2012 reached B5,285 million, higher by only B118 million or 2% year-on-year.
Comprising 86% of total direct cost, cash production cost of P4,571 million even dropped by R55 million
or 1% year-on-year. The spike in fotal production cost came from the 45% rise in amortization of
program rights. Higher costing movies were shown (i.e. James Bond series, etc) which were also
Tagalized to cater to viewer preference, thus incurring dubbing costs. Likewise, there was a build up of
inventory of film rights amortized systematically over the period of the broadcast license agreement.
Depreciation charges likewise increased due to the commissioning of the state-of-the-art Media Asset
Management System (MAMS) that allows the Network to migrate to a tapeless, file-based workflow in
the last quarter of 2011, along with massive investments for the launch of multi-million peso originating
stations in llocos Norte (GMA Hlocos) and Naga City (GMA Bicol) in 2012,
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2012 - as restated| 2011 - as restated Inci(Dec) Yo
Production Costs {in millions PhP}| (in millions PhP}| {in millions PhP}
Talent fees 2,809.3 28297 (20.4) ~1%
Rentals and ocutside services 690.3 763.3 (73.0) ~-10%
Other program expenses 1.071.0 1,032.3 38.7 4%
Sub-total - Cash Production Costs 4,570.6 46253 {54.7) ~1%
Program rights amoriization 460.9 3175 143.4 45%
Depreciation and amortization 253.6 2242 20.4 13%
Sub-total - Non-cash Production Costs 714.5 5417 172.8 32%
Total production costs 5,285.1 5,167.0 118.1 2%

The Company’s total general and administrative expenses (GAEX) climbed by 11% to P4,519 million by
the end of 2012. Personnel cost which comprised nearly 50% of total GAEX contributed the buik of this
year's increase owing primarily to the payment of the non-recurring employee bonuses as mentioned
earlier compounded by the growth in the Network’s manpower headcount. Minus the impact of this one:
time bonus, total GAEX rose by only 6%. it

2012 - as restated| 2011 - as restated inc/(Dec) o
General and Administrative Expenses (in millions PEP}|  {in millions PhP}| (in millions PhP} hi
Personnel costs 2,1386 1.799.0 3396 19%
Cuiside senices 4322 4229 94 2%
Facilities costs 658.6 670.2 {11.5) 2%
Taxes and licenses 143.6 2134 (69.8) -33%
Others 725.6 637.4 88.2 14%
Subtotal - Cash GAEX 4,098.7 3,742.8 355.9 10%
Depreciation and amortization 3564 294 .6 61.8 21%
Amortization of software costs 277 25.7 20 8%
Subtotal - Non-cash GAEX 4199 3449 75.0 22%
Total GAEX 4,518.6 40877 430.9 11%

Other increases in GAEX were brought about by spending in research and survey services, particularly
for this year’s subscription to digital capable metering technology for Rural TV Audience (RTAM).

EBITDA

With the increase in top line oulpacing the absolute growth in cash OPEX, EBITDA sealed the year at
B3,421 million, reaching a double digit growth of 11% or B341 million year on year.

Net Income

Due to the rise in non-cash OPEX of B301 million the EBITDA advantage was heavily weighed down o
thus, net income before tax (NIBT) setiled at P2,314 million, onty R79 million or 4% ahead of last year
Moreover, a higher effective corporate income tax rate ensued with the conclusion of the Income Tax
Holiday grant from BOI resulting in a net increase in the provison for income tax by B168 million or 32%.
This further drove the Company’s bottom fine attributable to Parent Company for 2012 to end at B1,617

million, B88 million or 5% lower than a year ago.

As the Company decided to do an early adoption of the Revised PAS 19, adjustments to other
comprehensive income were made resulting in a total comprehensive income of R1,700 miltion, 3%
more than the restated total comprehensive income of 2011.
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Balance Sheet Accounts

Consolidated assets lotaled B12,682 million, equivalent to a 5% rise from last year's R12,042
million. The increase came primarily from property and equipment which rose by R387 million or 11%
closing at B3,621 miilion by the end of the year (mainly from the newly operated originating stations in

llocos and Naga).

Trade days-sales-outstanding (DSO) improved.by 11 days to 109 days at end-2012 vs. 120 days at the
close of 2011.

On the other hand, total liabilities of P4,533 million spiked by 90% or R2,149 million driven by the
presence of B1,700 million in notes payable mainly in relation to the special cash dividend paid out last

September.

Equity of R8,121 million ended lower this year by 16% or B1,513 million resulting from lower net income
realized during the year and from the cash dividend payouts.

) 2012 - as restated(2C11 - as restated
Cash Aows {in millions PhP) | (in millions PhP}
Net cash provided by operating activiies 26055 3,094.34
Netcash used in investing activities (995.7) {925.3)
Netcash used in financing activities {1,548.0} (2,199.1)1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (3.2) 4.8+
Netincrease (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 58.6 (254)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,228.7 1,254.1°
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1,287.3 1,228.77%

Operating Activities

Net cash from operations registered at B2,605 million this year. This resulted from income before
income tax of P2,314 million adjusted mainly by depreciation expense of B610 million, program and
other rights usage of B461 million, net movement of pension liability of R108 million, interest expense
and financing charges of B43 million, interest income of B35 million and gain on sale of property and
equipment of B29 million apart from the changes in working capital. The primary components of the
changes in working capital include the B319 million reduction in trade and other receivables owing to
more aggressive coliection efforts, partly offset by the acquisition of program and other rights amounting
to B920 million and R23 million hike in prepaid expenses.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to B996 million, coming primarily from the R976 million
additions to property and equipment and R36 million worth of software costs. Also contributing to the
cash used in investing activities was the B10 million joint venture with Manita Jockey Club. These were
partly offset by the B31 million proceeds from sale of property and equipment and investment
properties.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to 81,548 million basically for the cash dividend payout
amounting to P3,206 million during the year plus some B42 miltion in interest expense netted by B1,700
million remaining proceeds from short-terms loans. The Company availed total loans of B3,200 miiiloﬂ
in year 2012 of which B1,500 million were already paid before the year end. i
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KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

fii.

vi.

vii.

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on’
the issuer’s liquidity.

As of December 31, 2013, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that wﬁl have a material impact on the issuer's liquidity. ;

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of Decemnber 31, 2013, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent
financial obligation that is materuai to the Company.

Material off-balance-sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other reiations of the company with unconsolidated entities or :
other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2014, the parent company has allotted B1,065 million for capital expenditures. This WHI
be financed by internally-generated funds. :

Any known frends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from '
continuing operations.

GMA Network’s results of operations depend largely on the ability to self airtime for
advertising. The Company’s business may be affected by the general condition of the
economy of the Philippines.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing
operations.

As of December 31, 2013, there were no significant elements of income or loss that did
arise from the issuer's continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2013 vs. December 31, 2012)

¢ Cash and short-term investments rose 5% to R1,758 million at year-end which is
directly attributed 1o this year's result of operation.

¢ Available-for-sale investments grew by R29 million or 27% due fo recognition of
additional subscription to Unicapital.

» Land at revalued amount increased by 28% due to appraisal made at end of 2013,
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viit.

* Short-term loans decreased by 35% as payments made are higher at B2,500 million vs!
availments of only B1,825 million.

* The 40% hike in income tax payable resulted from recognition of pay-before-broadcast
receivables as part of taxable balance in 2013,

¢ Pension liabitity increased by 49% to P605 million as minimal contribution to retirement
fund was made in 2013,

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations.

Interim Periods

The Company currently cannot make available the financial information for the first quarter of 2014. The
Company however, undertakes to submit its SEC Form 17-Q on or before May 15, 2014 and to make
the same available upon request during the Company's Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

lil. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s total property and equipment and real property amounted
to P5,395.0 million. The property and equipment had a book value of P3.589.7 million, while its real
property had a fair market value of P1,805.3 million (based on an independent appraisal report as of
December 17, 2013).

The following are the principal properties of the Company:

The Channel 7 compound located in Barangay South Triangle, Diliman, Quezon City, which
contains several buildings, including the GMA Network Center building; .
The GMA Network Center Studios, a four-storey building with an area of 4,053 square meter
property adjacent to the GMA Network Center at GMA Network Drive cor. EDSA, Diliman
Quezon City which houses two state-of-the-art studios, technical facilities and offices;

The GMA-7 Antenna Tower in Tandang Sora Avenue, Barangay Culiat, Diliman Quezon
City, which contains the TV and FM Transmitter building and the Satellite Uplink building; -
The GMA Heet Center located on the east corner of Mother Ignacia Avenue and Sergeait
Esguerra Avenue, Barangay South Triangle, Diliman Quezon City; and B
Properties in the key areas across different regions:

Luzon

Land in Barangay Malued, Dagupan City, where the Company’s radio and television studios
are located;

A 51,135 square meter property in Panghulo, Obando, Bulacan, where an AM transmitter
site, a two-storey building, a genset house, and an AM tower are situated;

A 2,000 square meter property in Barangay Concepcion Pequefa, Naga City, where a TV
relay fransmitter and an FM transmiitter site are located; and

A 10,000 square meter property in La Trinidad, Benguet where an FM transmitter site and .a
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one storey building are situated.
e A 2000 square meter property in Bayubay Sur, San Vicente, flocos Sur where a TV studio is
located.

Visayas

® Land focated in Nivel Hills, Barangay Lahug, Cebu City, containing a multilevel bulldlng
which houses radio and television operation facilities;

® Land in Barangay Tamborong,  Jordan, Guimaras where an FM radio and television
transmitter is located;
Land in Alta Tierra, Jaro, lloflo City where radio and television studios are located:;
Land in Barangay Jibao-an, Pavia, iloilo where an AM transmitter site and building are
located;

* Lland in Barangay Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City, Palawan where a television relay
transmitter site and building are located; and,

° Land in Barangay Bulwang, Numangcia, Aklan where a television relay transmitter site and a
building are located.

Mindanao

® Land in Bo. Matina Hills, Davao City where an FM and telavision transmitter building and
studio complex are located;

® Land in Barangay San Isidro, General Santos City where a television relay transmitter site
and a building are located; and,

¢ Land in Barangay Cabatangan, Zamboanga City where a television relay transmitter site
and a building are located.

The properties owned by the Company are currently unencumbered and are free from any existing
liens.

The Company also leases land, building and studio/office space in various locations around the
Philippines under lease agreements for periods of between three and 25 years. The lease agreements
may be cancelled at the Company's option. Rental expense of the Company related to this amounted
to P16.4 milion for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Regional Broadcast Stations

GMA owns regional broadcast stations in various parts of the country, Originating TV stations are stand
alone transmitter, studio and production facilities capable of producing and airing live andfor taped
programs as well as plugs and advertising within their (local} service areafs independent of, or in
conjunction with the national feed. Satellite TV stations are similar to originating TV stations except that
they are not equipped with live production capability outside of news bulletins. Satellite TV stations are
also capable of broadcasting local plugs or advertising within their respective (local) service areas either
independent of, or in conjunction with national program feeds. TV relay stations are limited to transmitter
and signal receiving faciliies and only re-broadcast programs/content received from originating or
satellite TV stations with which they are associated; either via satellite or other receiving methods.

The following are GMA's television and radio stations throughout the Philippines:
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LIST OF GMA’s OPERATING TV STATIONS

| ADDRESS

[ CONTACT NUMBER

:NO:|:STATION ... .
LUZON TEL. NO./ MOBILE PHONE
1 TV-7 Metro Manila Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon | (02) 931-9183 / (02) 924-
City 2497
TV-11 Metro Manila Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon | (02) 931-9183 / (02) 924-
City 2497
TV-27 Metro Manila (UHF) Brgy. Culiat, Tandang Sora, Quezon | (02) 931-9183 / (02) 924-
City 2497
2 TV-5 llocos Norte Ei%e San lorenzo, San Nicolas, llocos 0916-6715439
TV-27 Hocos Norte (UHF) Brgy. San Lorenzo, San Nicolas, locos 0916-6715430
Norte )
TV-48 llocos Sur Mt. Caniao, Bantay, Hocos Sur 0915-863284 1
4 TV-10 Benguet Mt. Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Benguet 0915-4417080
TV-22 Benguet (UHF) Mt. Sto. Tomas, Tuba, Benguet 0915-4417080
5 TV-10 Olongapo Upper Mabayuhan, QOlongapo City 0915-6127265
TV-26 Olongapo (UHF) Upper Mabayuhan, Olongapo City 0915-6127265
TV-12 Batangas Mt. Banoy, Bo. Talumpok East,
5] _ Batangas City 0915-8632860
TV-26 Batangas (UHF) Mt. Banoy, Bo. Talumpok East,
Batangas City 0915-8632860
7 TV-7 Naga Brgy. Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City | 0915-4417071
TV-28 Naga (UHF) Brgy. Concepcion Pequefia, Naga City | 0915-4417071
8 TV-12 Legaspi Mt. Bariw, Estanza, Legaspi City 0915-8632867
TV-27 Legaspi (UHF) Mt. Bariw, Estanza, Legaspi City 0915-8632867
TV-12  Puerto  Princesa, | Mitra Rd., Brgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto
9 | Palawan Princesa, Palawan 0915-6127185
TV-27  Puerto  Princesa, | Mitra Rd., Brgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto
Palawan (UHF) Princesa, Palawan 0915-6127185
10 | TV-6 Brooke's Point, Palawan | Poblacion, Brooke's Point, Palawan 0915-6127181
11 | TV-7 Masbate Brgy. Pinamurbuhan, Mobo, Masbate 0915-6127175
TV-27 Masbate (UHF) Brgy. Pinamurbuhan, Mobo, Masbate 0915-6127175
12 | TV-13 Catanduanes Brgy. Sto. Nifio, Virac, Catanduanes 09156-6127174
13 TV-13 O¢e. Mindorg qufamo St, San Jose, Occidental 0915-6127199
Mindoro
TV-26 Occ. Mindoro (UHF) I\Bﬂc[):éf:go St, San Jose, Occidental 0915-6127199
14 | TV-5 Aurora Purok 3, Brgy. Buhangin, Baler, Aurora | 0915-6127194
15 | TV-7 Abra Brgy. Lusuac, Pefarrubia, Abra 0915-6130512
16 TV-13 Aparri, Cagayan Hr—Clas:s Bldg._, De Rivera 5t 0915-6130530
Poblacion, Aparri, Cagayan
TV-7 Tuguegarao, Cagayan Phil. Lumber Bldg., Washington St,
17 Tuguegarao, Cagayan 0915-6127263
18 | TV-8 Coron, Palawan Tapias Hill, Coron, Palawan 0915-6127178
19 TV-7 Batanes Brgy. Kayvaluganan, Basco, Batanes 0915-6127197
20 TV-7 Rombion Triple Peak, Sta. Maria, Tablas, 0015-6127225
Rombion
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TV-7 isabela Heritage Commercial Complex,
21 Mahariika Hi-way, Brgy. Malvar, | 0915-2700063
Santiago City, Isabela
22 | TV-5 Mountain Province Mt Amuyao, Barlig. Mountain Province 0915-4416450
23 | TvV-44 Jalajala Mt. Landing, Jalajala, Rizal 09156-8632874
VISAYAS
24 TV-7 Cebu Bonbon, Cebu City 0915-4417075
TV-27 Cebu (UHF) Bonbon, Cebu City 0915-4417075
o5 | TV-6 lloilo Bo. Tamburong, Jordan, Guimaras 0915-4417084
TV-28 lioilo (UHF) Alta Tierra Subdivision, Jaro, lioilo 0915-4417084
26 TV-11 Bohol (E;e;;atﬁi Hills, Brgy. Bool, Tagbilaran 0915-6127214
57 TV-10 Tacloban Basper, Tigbao, Tacloban City 0915-6127208
56 Tadi " :
TV-26 Tacloban (UHF) Basper, Tighao, Tacloban City 0915-6127208
28 | TV-12 Ormoc, Leyte Brgy. Alta Vista, Ormoc City Q915-6127213
29 | TV-8 Borongan Poblacion, Borongan, Eastern Samar 0915-6127177
30 | TV-5 Roxas City Brgy. Milibili, Roxas City, Capiz 0915-8127217
TV-27 Roxas City (UHF) Brgy. Milibili, Roxas City, Capiz 0915-6127217
31 | TV-5 Dumaguete Barrio Looc, Sibulan, Negros Oriental 0915-6131185
TV-28 Dumaguete (UHF) Barrio Looc, Sibulan, Negros QOriental 0915-6131185
TV-10 Sipalay Sipalay Municipal Building, Sipalay,
32 Negros Qccidental 0915-6127219
TV-5 Calbayog City Purck 2 San Mateo St. Brgy. Matobato,
33 Calbayog City, Western Samar 0915-6127176
34 | TV-2 Kalibo New Busuanga, Numancia, Aklan 0915-6127216
TV-27 Kalibo (UHF) New Busuanga, Numancia, Aklan 0915-6127216
TV-13 Bacolod Security Bank Bldg.,, Rizal St. cor.
35 Locsin St,, Bacolod City 0915-8632864
MINDANAO
38 | TV-5 Davao Shrine Hills, Matina, Davag City 0915-4417082
TV-27 Davao (UHF) Shring Hills, Matina, Davao City 0915-4417082
37 | TV-12 Mt Kitanglad Mt. Kitanglad, Bukidnon 0915-8632863
18 TV-12 Cagayan De Oro Malasag Heughtg, Brgy. Cugman, 0915-8632875
Cagayan de Oro City
TV-35 Cagayan de Oro (UHF) | Malasag Helghts,_ Brgy. Cugman, 0915-8632875
Cagayan de Oro City
39 TV-8 General Santos Nufiez St Brgy. San Isidro, General 0915-8632871
Santos City
TV-26 Gen. Santos (UHF) Nuiez St., Brgy. San Isidro, General 0915-8632871
Santos City
40 TV-12 Cotabato g;smnal Government Center, Cotabato 0015-6131170
TV-27 Cotabato (UHF) E&zgional Government Center, Cotabato 0915-6131170
41 | TV-9 Zamboanga Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboanga City 0915-8632870

TV-21 Zamboanga {(UHF)

Brgy. Cabatangan, Zamboanga City

0915-8632870
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42 TV-5 Ozamis Bo. .Malaubang, Ozamis City, Misamis 0915-6127220
Occidental

TV-22 Ozamis (UHF) Bo. .E\Aaiaubang, Ozamis City, Misamis 0915-6127220
Occidental

43 TV-4 Bipolog Linabo Peak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga 0015-6127247

Pel Norte

TV-26 Dipolog (UMF)

Linabo Peak, Dipolog City, Zamboanga
Del Norte

0915-6127247

44 1 TV-10 Surigao

Lipata Hills, Surigao City

0915-6131227

TV-27 Surigao {UHF)

i.ipata Hills, Surigao City

0915-6131227

45 | TV-12 Jolo

Ynawat Bldg., Hadji Butu St., Jolo, Sulu

0915-6131182

46 TV-2 Tandag

Capitol Hill, Brgy. Telaje, Tandag,
Surigao del Sur

0915-6127248

47 | TV-3 Pagadian

Mi. Palpalan, Pagadian City

0915-6127245

TV-26 Pagadian (UHF)

Mt. Palpalan, Pagadian City

0915-6127245

TV-11 fligan
48

3/F Kimberly Bldg., A. Bonifacio cor.
Isidoro Emilia Ave., Tibanga Hi-Way,
lligan City

0915-6131202

49 | TV.7 Butuan

SJT Bldg., Montilla Blvd., Butuan City

(085) 342-9571/342-7073

GMA’s RADIO STATIONS

AREA CALL POWER ] ADDRESS. .
LUZON
METRO MANILA 97.1 mhz. 594 | DWLS FaM 1 38kW | GMA Complex, EDSA cor. Timog Ave., Diliman,
khz. DZBB AM | BOKW | Quezon City
BAGUIO 92.7 mhz. DWRA Fi 10kW | 2/F Baguio Midiand Courier Bldg. 16 Kisad Rd...
Baguio City :
DAGUPAN 93.5 mhz. DWTL FM 10kwW | Claveria Road, Malued District
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
LEGASP! 96.3 mhz. DWCW Fi 10kW | 3rd level ABichara Silversreen Enterainment
Center, Magallanes St., Legazpi City
LUCENA 91.1 mhz. bwat FM 10kW | 3/F Ancon Bldg., Merchan Street, Lucena City
NAGA 101.5 mhz. DWOoW Fi 10kW | GMA Complex, Diversion Road.(Roxas Ave) beside;
Mother Seton Hosgital, Naga City
PALAWAN 8909 khz. DYSP AM | Bkw Solid Road, San Manuel Puerto Princesa City,:
Palawan '
97.5 mhz. DYHY M kv
TUGUEGARAC 89.3 mhz. DWWGQ FM 10kW | 4/F Villablanca Hotel Pattaui St cor Pallua Rd.,
Ugac Norte Tuguegarao, Cagayan
VISAYAS
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BACOLOD 107.1mhz. DYEN FM 10kW | 3/F San Jose Bldg., Jomabo Centre Rizal Cor.
L.acson Sts., Bacolod City
CEBU
999 khz. 99.5 | DYSS AM 10kW § GMA Skyview Complex Nive! Hills, Lahug, Cebu
mhz. DYRT FM | 25kW | City
ILOILo 1323 khz DYSI AM 10kW | Phase 5, Alta Tierra Village Jaro, licilo City
93.5 mhz. DYMK M 10kW
KALIBO 92.9 mhz. DYRU FM S5kW Torres-Olivia Bldg. Roxas Ave. Extension, Kalibo,
Aklan
MINDANAO
CAGAYAN DE CRO 100.7 mhz. DXLX FM 10kW | 2/F Marel Reaity Bldg., Pabayo corner Hayes St
Cagayan de Oro City, Misamis Oriental
ILIGAN Relayed over
DZBB
DAVAD 103.5 mhz. DXRV &Y 10K GMA Shrine Hills, Matina Davao City
1125 khz DXGM AM 10K
GENERAL SANTOS 102.3 mhz. DXCJ FM 10K 3/F PBC Bldg., Cagampang St. Gen. Santos City

V. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved, from time to time, as plaintiff or defendant in litigation
arising from transactions undertaken in the ordinary course of its business. Described below are the
pending material litigation of which the Company and its subsidiaries or their properties are subject.
The Company believes that a judgment rendered against it in the cases indicated below will not have a
material adverse effect on its operations or financia! condition.

None of the Company's affiliates, or their property, namely, RGMA Network, Inc., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc. and Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation, are involved in any
raterial pending litigation as of December 31, 2010.

Labor Cases

There is a pending case for illegal dismissal, unfair labor practices, non-payment of overtime pay,
holiday pay, premium pay for holiday and rest day and night shift differential and service incentive leave
pay filed by Carlos Pabriga, Geoffrey Arias, Kirby Campo, Armold Lagahit and Armand Catibug. The
complainants were engaged on varicus dates from 1993 to 1997 to replace regular employees of the
Company's Cebu station who were on feave or otherwise unable to work. On August 24, 2000, the
Labor Arbiter dismissed the complaints for fllegal dismissal and unfair labor practices, but directed the
Company to pay complainants their proportionate 13"-month pay. On appeal, the NLRC held that the
complainants were regular employees with respect to the particular activity they were assigned until the
activity ceased to exist and that they were entitled to separation pay, 13"month pay, night shift
differential and service incentive leave pay. The complainants claim that by virtue of this ruling, they are
entitled to payment of a total of approximately R1.5 million as of March 2007. The Supreme Court
denied our Petition and affirmed the findings of the Court of Appeals that complainants are regular
employees of the Company. -
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There is also a case for illegal dismissal filed against GMA Marketing and Productions, inc. (“GMP!"),
another wholly-owned subsidiary of GMA Network, and its officers, Lizelle Maralag and Leah Nuyda
initiated by Corazon Guison, a former Sales Direclor of GMPI. The complainant claimed that she was
unceremoniously terminated from her employment sometime in May 2010 and is entitled to
reinstatement as well as payment of full backwages, unpaid commissions and salaries, moral and
exemplary damages and attorney’s fees. On January 31, 2011, the Labor Arbiter rendered a decision
finding for complainant Guison and ordered the respondents to pay P807,007.50 as backwages and
P1,691,000.00 as separation pay, as well as attorney's fees. On appeal, the NLRC reversed the
decision of the Labor Arbiter and ordered the dismissal of plaintiff's complaint. Complainant filed a
Petition with the Court of Appeals where it is pending.

This is a case {NLRC LAC No. 02-000863-13[8]) for regularization filed by pinch-hitters or relievers of
GMA, namely, Ricky F. Villarin, Danilo Dela Cruz, Rotin FPilante and Johnny Anito, Jr. against GMA
Network, Inc. The Labor Arbiter rendered a decision declaring the relievers as regular employees of
GMA. GMA appealed to the NLRC which denied the same. GMA’s motion for reconsideration was
likewise denied. Hence, GMA filed with the Court of Appeals a Petition for Certiorari docketed as
CA.G.R. No. 132455 pending with the 17th Division of the Court of Appeals. Respondents Villarin et al.
filed their comment to the petition.

This is a case (NLRC NCR Case No. 12-18557-12) for illegal dismissal, backwages, damages and
attorney’s fees filed by James Aaron Castillo Manalili against GMA, et al.. Complainant Manaiili was a
segment producer whose Talent Agreement was terminated for cause. The Labor Arbiter rendered a
decision dismissing the complaint on the finding that there was no employer-employee relationship.
Hence, there is no illegal dismissal. The Labor Arbiter also afﬂfmed the validity of the termination of the
Talent Agreement. However, the Labor Arbiter awarded 13" month pay in favor of Manaliti. Hence, we
filed a partial appeal for GMA,

This is @& case (NLRC NCR Case No. 01-00024-13) for illegai dismissal and money claims filed by
Christopher Cruz Legaspi against GMA and its executives. Complainant Legaspi is an employee of
GMA who was dismissed for cause. The Labor Arbiter rendered a decision finding iliegal dismissal:
However, the decision was reversed on appeal by the NLRC. The motion for reconsideration was also
denied by the NLRC. A

This is a case for regularization and illegal dismissal (NI.RC NCR Case No. 04-05664-13[22}) filed b'y
Henry T. Paragele, Roland Elly C. Jaso, et al. against GMA. Complainants are relievers/pinch hitters
whose services were no longer availed of by GMA, The Labor Arbiter rendered a decision dismissing
the complaint. Complainants filed an appeal to the NLRC where the case is pending.

This is another case for illegal dismissal and money claims (NLRC CASE No, NCR-07-08875-13; NCR-
07-10010-13; NCR-07-10135-13) filed by the drivers of GMA, namely, Ferdinand O. Villanueva, Ruby
Rose Macahilig Barcela, Marcelo S. Santiago, Joemyr R. Odeiia, Serafin R. Palopalo, Jr., assigned to
various programs and covered by Talent Agreements which expired and were no longer renewed. The
Labor Arbiter rendered a decision dismissing the complaint on the ground that the Talent Agreements
are fixed term emiployment contracts. Complainants appealed fo the NLRC.

This is a case for illegal dismissal, backwages and other money claims (NLRC-NCR-07-08474-13) filed
by former segment producer De Chaves against GMA. Complainant was terminated for cause by GMA,
The Labor Arbiter rendered a decision dismissing the complaint. De Chavez appealed to the NLRC.

Another pending case for illegal dismissal and regularization (NLRC NCR 01-00164-14) was filed by
former utility personnel Reynaldo Delos Santos Aranas against GMA/Afty. Felipe L. Gozon.
Complainants’ talent agreements were not renewed by GMA. Proceedings before the Labor Arbiter are

pending.
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Infringement Cases

The Company's officers, Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Marissa L. Flores, Jessica A. Soho,
Grace dela Pefia-Reyes, John Oliver Manalastas, John Does and Jane Does were named as
respondents in a criminal case initiated in June 2004 for copyright infringement before the City
Prosecutor’s Office of Quezon City and the Depariment of Justice ("DOJ"). The case was subseguently
consolidated with the Company’s counter charge for libel.

The respondents were charged in their capacities as corporate officers and employees of the Compahy_
responsible for the alleged unauthorized airing of ABS-CBN's exclusive live coverage of the arrival in
the Philippines of Angelo deia Cruz, a Filipino overseas worker previously held hostage in lraq. Aside
from seeking to hotd the named respondents criminally liable for infringement and unfair competition,
ABS-CBN sought damages from the respondents jointly and severally in the aggregate amount of B200
million. L

On July 27, 2004, the Company and certain of its officers filed a case for libel against certain officers of
ABS-CBN for statements made in their programs Insider and Magandang Umaga Bayan relative to the
incident involving the dela Cruz feed. The Company alse seeks damages in the aggregate amount of
£100 mittion.

In a Resolution dated December 3, 2004, the DOJ dismissed the complaint for libel against the ABS-
CBN officers and employees and dropped the charges against the Company’s officers except for Ms.
Dela Pefia-Reyes and Mr. Manalastas against whom the DOJ found probable cause for violation of the
Intellectual Property Code. ABS-CBN filed a motion for partial reconsideration of the resolution on the
grounds that the other named respondents were erroneously exonerated. The Company filed a petition
for review with the DOJ with respect to the finding of probable cause against Ms. Dela Pefia-Reyes and
Mr. Manalastas and the dismissal of the case for libel which was denied. On August 1, 2005, the DOJ
reversed the fiscal’s resotution finding probable cause against Mr. dela Pefa-Reyes and Mr. Manalastas
and directed the fiscal to withdraw the Information. ABS-CBN filed a motion for reconsideration.
Meanwhile, the DOJ issued a Resolution dated September 15, 2005 denying the Company’s Petition for
Review and ruling that ABS-CBN’s officers and employees did not commit libel. The Company filed a
motion for reconsideration. '

On June 29, 2010, the DOJ issued a Resolution granting both the Company's and ABS-CBN's Motion
for Reconsideration, and directing the filing of Information against ABS-CBN's officers and employees
for libel. ABS-CBN moved for reconsideration which was denied by the DOJ. ABS-CBN filed a Petition
with the Court of Appeals. In the meantime, an Information for libel was filed by the Quezon C;ty
Prosecutor with the Regional Trial Court of Quezon City, Branch 88. :

The Company elevated the DOJ's June 29, 2010 Resolution directly to the Court of Appeals via a
Petition for Certiorari docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 115751, On November 9, 2010, the Court of
Appeals issued a decision granting the Company’s Petition for Cerfiorari and reversing the BOJ
Resolution dated June 29, 2010 and reinstating the DOJ Resolution dated August 1, 2005 which
ordered the withdrawal of Information for copyright infringement. ABS-CBN filed a Petition with the
Supreme Court where it is pending.

Civil Cases

A case for damages was filed by Ronaldo Virola against Miguel Enriquez and the Company. Ronaldo
Virola filed a case for damages arising from the airing of Imbestigador episodes showing the interviews
of "Myra” and "Chona” who accused Vircla of placing drugs in their drinks before molesting them. The
said Imbestigador episodes also showed the raid conducted by operatives of Task Force Jericho of the
Department of Interior and Local Government who applied for a warrant to search the residence of
Virola. The complaint sought 2800 thousand in moral damages, 2300 thousand in exemplary damages,
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attorney’s fees in the amount of B100 thousand and the cost of suit. The Regional Trial Court of
Caloocan dismissed the complaint after trial. Plaintiff appealed to the Court of Appeals.

On June 25, 2008, Mary the Queen Hospital filed a case for damages against the Company, Mike
Enriquez as well as certain other members of the show, Imbestigador. The hospital alleged that the
show damaged its reputation by faisely accusing them of illegally detaining a patient for failure to settle
hospital bills. The hospital claimed a total of B 5.5 million in moral, exemplary and temperate damages
as well as costs of the suit. The plaintiff is in the process of presenting its evidence.

Another case involved the Company and members of the show Imbestigador, stemmed from a story
involving a police officer allegedly extorting money from arrested drug dependents, which ultimately led
to his arrest. On September 4, 2008, the complaint sought to enjoin the airing of the story relating to his
arrest by filing a case for injunction. However, the plaintiff's application for restraining order was denied
by the RTC of Quezon City. Plaintiff then filed an amended complaint to include a claim for damages.
The plaintiff is siill presenting evidence before the trial court.

V. MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

Market Information
Stock Prices GMA7

Period in 2013 Highest Closing Lowest Closing

1Q 9.99 9.50
2Q 9.97 8.08
3Q 8.60 7.70
4Q 8.37 7.20

Stock Prices GMAP
Period in 2013 Highest Closing Lowest Closing

1Q 10.18 9.50
2Q 10,26 8.00
3Q 8.99 7.28
4Q 10.20 7.10

The Company’s common shares and Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine
Stock Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date
April 23, 2014, GMAT’s closing price is P7.72 for GMA 7 and P7.95 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

There are 1,743 holders of common equity as of March 31, 2014. The following are the top 20 holders of
the common equity of the Company:

Name of Shareholders No, of Common Shares zfe;.ﬁgt?g mor;(?:g;;?:;p
GMA Holdings, Inc. 857 509,800 25.49%
Group Management & Development, Inc. 789,813,389 23.47%
FLG Management & Development Corp. 669,929,127 19.93%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises, Inc. 453,882,095 13.49%
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Mame of Shareholders No. of Common Shares i?;ii::%’:moégfg:;?gp
Television International Corp. 334,378,037 9.94%
PCD Nominee Corp. 210,555,946 6.26%
Gozon Development Corp. 14,033,954 0.42%
Gozon Foundation Inc. 4,514,361 00.13%
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 4,007,006 0.12%
or Bl e . o1 e oo e 2,751,300 00.08%
Alegria F. Sibat 1,093,252 0.03%
Felipe S. Yalong 1,025,000 0.03%
Alberto Tio Ong 1,000,000 0.03%
Enrique Reyes Valencia 942,400 0.03%
Jose Mari L. Chan 872,000 0.03%
Judith Puavit Vazquez 588,000 0.02%
Anna Teresa G. Abrogar 529,000 0.02%
Jose P. Marcelo 501,498 0.01%
\(Jsa;?: Javier Gana and/or Ma. Eriinda G. 444,000 0.01%

The following are the top 20 holders of the Company’s preferred shares as of March 31, 2014:

Name of Shareholders No. of Preferred Shares szr%i:fiﬂz f::,—glwsrl;;fg;p
Group Management & Development inc.  2,625,805,308 35.0130%
FLG Management & Development Corp. 2,181,898 644 29.0939%
M.A. Jimenez Enterprises 1,508,978,826 20.1210%
Tetevision International Corp. 1,111,661,610 14.8231%
Gozon Development Corp. 48,245,306 0.6166%
Gozon Foundation inc. 15,020,670 0.2003%
Alegria F. Sibal 2,623,806 0.0350%
Jose P. Marcelo 1,203,594 0.0160%
Sotero H. Laurel 830,708 0.0111%
Nita Laurel Yupangeo 830,706 0.0111%
Jose C. Laurel V 830,708 0.0111%
Juan Miguel Laure! 830,706 0.0111%
Susana Laurel-Delgada 830,706 0.0111%
Ma. Asuncion Laurel-Uichico 830,706 0.0111%
Horacio P. Borromeo 784,164 0.0105%
Francis F. Obana 105,120 0.0014%
Eduardo Morato 38,028 0.0005%
Antonio Gomez 30,420 0.0004%
Jose N. Morales 30,420 0.0004%
Paul Sim 30,420 0.0004%

The information presented does not relate to an acquisition, business combination or other
reorganization. -

Dividend Information
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Dividends shali be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payabfe at such
times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash, shares or property
of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors shall determine. The
declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the Company shall be declared.
The Company has no contractual restrictions which would limit its ability to declare any dividend.

Dividend History of the Company

Year Amount Date Declared Type of Dividend
2005 2 218,521,203.5 February 17, 2005 Cash and Property
2005 £ 3,000,000,000.¢ October 11, 2005 Stock

2006 £ 1,150,000,000.¢ June 13, 2006 Cash and Property
2007 £ 1,560,000,000.0 March 19, 2007 Cash

2007 - 375,000,000.0 April 26, 2007 Slock

2007 R 1,000,000,000.0 July 2, 2007 Cash

2008 £1,214,163,001.0 May 21, 2008 Cash

2008 R 1,701,069,453.0 April 2, 2009 Cash

2010 P 2,187,089,296.56 March 25, 2010 Cash

2010 P 1,215,049,069.20 Qctlober 28, 201¢ Cash

2011 R 2,187,089,296,56 March 11, 2011 Cash

2012 P2 1,944,079,375 April 16, 2012 Cash

2012 P 1,264,794,293 August 22, 2012 Cash

2013 B 1,215,048,609 March 21, 2013 Cash

2014 R 1,312,253,577 April 2, 2014 Cash

The Company's Board of Directors has approved a dividend policy which will entitle holders of the
Common Shares to receive annual cash dividends equivalent to a minimum of 50% of the prior year's
net income based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors. Such recommendation will take
into consideration factors such as the implementation of business plans, operating expenses, budgets,
funding for new investments, appropriate reserves and working capital, among others. The cash
dividend policy may be changed by the Company’s Board of Directors at any time.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three years,

VI. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GMA Network, Inc. is committed to the principles of good governance and recognizes their importance
in safeguarding shareholders’ interests and in enhancing shareholder value. The Company has adopted
a Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the Company's adherence to these principles.
This Manual clearly sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific responsibilities
of the Board, the Board Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission and
covers policies, among others: :

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination Committee,
Audi7t and Risk Management Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (c)
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independent auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company’s governance policies, {f
stockholder rights, {g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penaities for non-compliance.

The Board of Directors, led by the Chairman, Atty. Felipe L. Gozon, strongly advocates accountabiiity,
transparency and integrity in all aspects of the business and commits themselves to the best practices
of governance in the pursuit of the Company’s Mission and Vision.

To ensure adherence to corporate governance, the Board designated a Compliance Officer who is also
the Company’s Corporate Secretary and Vice-President, Roberto O. Parel. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of good
corporate governance. :

Based on the Annual Corporate Governance Manual which the Company fiied on Company’s Manueﬁi
filed with the Commission on June 28, 2013, there have been no deviations from the Company’s
Manual as of date.

Board of Direciors

Compliance with the principles of good governance starts with the Company's Board of Directors. The
Board is responsible for oversight of the business, determination of the company’'s long- term strategy
and objectives, and management of the company’s risks by ensuring the company's internal controls
and procedures are observed. The Board of Directors ensures a high standard of governande, and
promotes and protects the interests of the Company, its stockholders and other stakeholders.

The Board consists of nine directors, two of whom are independent directors. All nine members of the
Board have the expertise, professional experience and background that allow a thorough discussion
and deliberation of issues and matters affecting the Company.

The two independent directors — former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban and Dr. Jaime C. Laya —
have no relationship with the Company, which would interfere with the exercise of independent
judgment in carrying our the responsibilities of a director. '

The Board comprises the following members:

Name Position

Felipe L. Gozon Chairman and CEO
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and COO
Anna Teresa G. Abrogar Director

Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez Director

Judith D. Vazquez Director

Laura J. Westfall Director

Felipe 8. Yalong Director

Artemio V. Panganiban Independent Director
Jaime C. Laya Independent Director

Board Performance

Directors attend regular meetings of the Board, which are held every quarter and other times as
necessary, and the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM). In its meetings, the Board reviews the
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries, approves plans, budgets and financial statements,
sets policies and guidelines for management, and discusses matters requiring Board attention and
approval. The Board met six {5) times in 2013. The attendance of the individual directors at these
meetings is duly recorded as follows:
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Director’'s Name Regular and Special Meetings

Present Absent
Felipe L. Gozon 5 0
Gilberto R. Duavit,Jr. 5 0
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 5 0
Felipe S. Yalong 5 G
Anna Teresa G. Abrogar 5 ¢
Judith D, Vazquez 5 5
Laura J. Westfall 4 1
Artemio V., Panganiban 5 0
Jaime C. Laya 5 b

All directors have individually complied with the SEC’s minimum attendance requirement of 50%.

The Chairman, Felipe L. Gozon, presided over all the Board meetings for the year. He likewise pressded
- over the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, with afl the members of the Board in attendance.

Board Remuneration

The amended by-laws of the Company provides that the Board of Directors shall be entitied to an
amount of not more than two and a half percent (2.5%) of the net income after income tax of the
corporation during the preceding year and per diems for every board meeting attended. Of the said
2.5%, one percent (1%} shali be distributed equally among the members of the Board of Directors, while
the remaining one and a half percent (1.5%) shall be distributed equally among the members of the
Executive Committee.

Committees and Meetings of the Board of Directors
Four committees were established to aid in complying with the principles of good governance and

address issues requiring the Board’s attention:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (Excom) consists of three members which includes the Chairman of the
Board and CEO Felipe L. Gozon, President and COO Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Director Joel G.
Jimenez. Mr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. serves as Chairman of the Committee. It acts on matters delegated
to it by the Board of Directors. The Excom acts by a majority vote and in accordance with the authority
granted by the Board. All actions of the Excom are reported to the Board for ratification at the meetsng
immediately following such action.

Nomination Committee
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The Nomination Committee is chaired by Felipe L. Gozon and composed of four members that include
an independent director in the person of former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban as Vice Chairman,
with Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez as members. The mission of the Nomination
Committee is to provide the shareholders with an independent and objective evaluation and assurance
that the membership of the Board of Directors is competent and will foster the longterm success of the
Corporation and secure its competitiveness. The Nomination Committee assists the Board of Directors
in ensuring that afl nominees to the Board of Directors are competent and qualified to be nominated as
Director based on internal guidelines. This is to ensure that: (a) there is a proper mix of competent
directors that would continuously improve shareholder's value; and, (b) Directors will ensure a high
standard of best practices for the Company and its stakeholders.

Compensation and Remuneration Commitiee

The members of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee are Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman),
Farmer Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban {Vice Chairman), with Judith D. Vazquez and Laura J.
Westfall as members. The Committee recommends a formal and fransparent framework of
remuneration and evaluation for the members of the Board of Directors and key executives to enable
them to run the Company successfully.

Audit and Risk Management Commitiee

Audit

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is currently composed of five members: Dr. Jaime C. Laya,
(Chairman), former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban (Vice Chairman), Anna Teresa M. Gozon-
Abrogar, Judith R. Duavit-Vazquez and Ms. Laura J. Westfall. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibilities by providing an independent and objective
assurance to the Company’s management and stakeholders in the continuous improvement of risk
management systems, business operations and proper safeguarding and use of the Corporation’s
resources and assets. The Audit and Risk Management Committee provides a general evaluation and
gives assistance in the over-all improvement of the risk management, control, and governance process
of the Corporation as designed by Management and provides assurance that these are properly
functioning.

The Committee conducts tenders for independent audit services, reviews audit fees and recommends
the appointment and fees of the independent auditors to the Board. The Board, in turn, submits the
appointment of the independent auditors for approval of the shareholders at the ASM.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee aiso approves the work plan of the Company's Internal
Audit Group, as well as the overall scope and work plan of the independent auditors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held five (5) meetings in 2013 wherein the Commitice
reviewed and approved, among others, the Company's 2012 Consclidated Audited Financial
Statements as prepared by the externat auditors.

Risk Management

The GMA Network's Board of Directors and management are mindfut of the risks and uncertainties
inherent in the business. In the formulation of corporate strategy and business decision-making,
potential risks are always taken into account. Necessary steps are taken to minimize, if not eliminate,
such risks.
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The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board in the oversight of the company’s risk
management, ensures that it has the proper controls in place, identifies and evaluates significant risk
exposures and contributes to the improvement of risk management and contro| systems.

Both radio and television broadcasting are highly competitive businesses. GMA stations compete for
listeners/viewers and advertising revenues within their respective markets directly with other radio and
lor television stations, as well as with other media such as cable television and/ or cable radid,
newspapers, magazines, the internet, billboard advertising, among others. Audience ratings and market
shares are subject to change, and any change in a particular market could have a material adverse
effect on the revenue of our stations located in that market. '

Considering the potential impact of various risks to the company’s ability to deliver quality content
across multiple platforms, the Company has established a Programming Committee that deliberaté#
weekly on the programming issues and strategies of the network. Regular monthly meetings of the
Company’s officers are also held to discuss plans, operational issues and strategies, implementation of
projects and recommendations for improvements.

The Company's financial results are dependent primarily on its ability to generate advertising revenue
through rates charged to advertisers. The advertising rates a station is able to charge is affected by
many factors, including the ratings of its programs and the general strength of the local and national
economies, Generally, advertising declines during periods of economic recession or downturns in the
economy. As a result, the Company's revenue is likely to be adversely affected during such periods.

Management, being accountable to the Board, also prepares financial statements in a timely manner in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in the Philippines. Management's statement
of responsibility with regards to the Company’s financial statements is included in this annual report,

The consolidated financial statements of GMA Network and its subsidiaries have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards which are aligned with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The financial statements are audited by external auditors and reviewed by the
Audit and Risk Management Committee (with the support of the Internal Audit Group) to ensure that
they fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position and results of the Company's
operations before these are presented to the Board of Directors for approval. :

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the
Company’s financial position, performance and prospects each time it makes available its quarterly and
annual financial statements to the public. g

Management

The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is Felipe L.. Gozon, while Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr
holds the position of President and Chief Operating Officer.

The CEO is accountable to the Board for the development and recommendation of strategies and the
execution of strategic directions set by the Board, while the COO is responsible for the day-to-day
‘management of the Company and the implementation of the directives provided by the CEO and the
Board's policies and decisions. Both the CEO and COO are guided by the Company’s Mission, Vision,
and Core Values.

Management regularly provides the Board with complete and accurate information on the operations
and affairs of the Company.

Employee Relations
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Employees are provided an empioyee handbook which contains the policies, guideiines for the duties
and respeonsibilities of an employee of GMA Network, Inc. The Handbook also details the benefits and
privileges accruing to all regular employees.

The News and Public Affairs Ethics Manual, on the other hand, sets the standards and rules on how
News and Public Affairs personnel should conduct themselves at work.

Through an external newsletter and the intranet facilitated by the Corporate Affairs Division, employees
are updated on material developments in the organization.

The Company also provides training programs and seminars for career advancement and development.
The Company has aiso initiated activities centered on the safety, health and welfare of its em ployees,

Prompt Disclosures and Timely Reporting

GMA Network, Inc. adheres to a high level of corporate disclosure and transparency regarding the
company's financial condition and state of corporate governance on a regular basis. Through the
Investor Relations and Compliance Division (IRCD), shareholders are provided disclosures:
announcements and periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the
Philippine Stock Exchange. These are also available on line through the Company's investor Relations
website www.gmanetwork.corm/corporate/ir, '

The Company, through the IRCD, holds regular Analysts' and Investors' briefings that are attended by
the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Finance Officer as well as other
high ranking officers. Meetings with Fund Managers, Investment, Financial and Research Anaiysts are
likewise handled by the IRCD.

Consolidated audited financial statements are submitted to the SEC on or before the prescribed period
and distributed to the shareholders prior to the ASM.

The financial soundness indicators that the Company monitors are the following:

2013 2012 - as restated InciDech g
ey Performance Indicaiors (in mitions BhP1|  dn millions BRPH (in millions PhE}
Revenues 12.950.9 12,0859 G649 755
Aiffime revenuas 14,738.6 10,8589 giB7 8%
Cash aperating expanses 82627 g.ao83 RG34 %
EBITDS, 3718.2 34212 20974 9%
HNetincome hefore tax 2,387.3 23143 734 3%
hletincome after tax 1,675.0 16208 G427 A%

2013 2012 - as restated IncrDach Tl -
Currerd rafio 2158 1.84 421 1% _'f_;;
Assatto-Equity ratio 145 1.58 {047 B
MHet debi-to-Equity ratin {0.07} 00s (012 -244%|
Debt-to-Equity ratip 813 .21 (0.08) -40%
Interast Rate Coverage ratio 44,85 54 B4 (5 09y ~18%
Grass Profit margin 54% 6% {0023 -4 %
EBITDA margin 18% 19% a0 -4%
Metincome margin 13% 1355 (RETE -4%5
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‘ STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONSOLIDATED

FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Aprit 2, 2014
Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC Building, EDSA Greenhilis
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

The management of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries {the Group) is

responsible for the

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2013

and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, including the

additicnal components attached therein, in accordance with the Philippine Firancial Reporting
Standards. This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies,

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the

same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co,, the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders Has examined
the consolidated financial statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries in accordance with the
Phitippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on

the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

ZON GILBERTO R. DUAV}
Chédirman of the Board President N
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

e Vice Pl
Chief Financial G

o7

IR i !u .4
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thish' Il #af af
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147-748 and (Felipe S. Yalong) TIN 102-874-052. '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Network, Inc.

GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GMA Network, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 3 i,
2013 and 2012, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility Jor the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An andit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



SGV

Building a better
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GMA Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ramon D. Dizon

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 46047

SEC Accreditation No. 0077-AR-3 {Group A},
February 21, 2013, valid until February 20, 2016

Tax Identification No. 102-085-577

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-17-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015

PTR No. 4225167, January 2, 2014, Makati City

April 2, 2014



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31 Jantiary 1
2012 2012
(As restated - (As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 30 and 3 )] P1,749,631,196 PB1,287,285560 P1,228,721,246

Short-term investments (Notes 6, 30 and 31) 7,874,002 8,538,142 -
Trade and other receivables (Notes 7, 20, 30 and ib 3,521,430,443  3,842,389,037 4,161,334,959
Program and other rights (Note 8) 1,209,229,281  1,189,140,670 729,998 151
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 9N 635,093,804 765,576,161 742,793,269
Asset classified as held for sale (Note 15) - 26,432,472 26,432, 472
Taotal Current Assets 7,123,258,726  7,119,362,942  6,889,280,097
Noncurrent Assets
Auvailable-for-sale financial assets (Notes 10, 30 and 31) 135,552,548 106,343,598 105,796,848
Investments and advances (Notes 11 and 20} 139,463,938 132,825,989 125,436 274
Property and equipment at cost {Note 12) 3,589,631,78F  3,621,092,076 3,253,617,325
Land at revalued amounts (Note 13) 1,805,300,051  1,409,585,706  1,409,585,706
Investment properties (Note 14) 68,532,209 64,751,408 68,029.711
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 28) 88,150,862 86,575,385 61,918,628
Other nencurrent assets (Note 15) 142,026,836 141,745,998 128,780,220
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,960,678,225  5,562,920,157  5,153,164,722

£13,083,936,951 P12,682,283,099 P12,042 444,819

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities

{(Notes 16, 20, 30 and 31) P1,781,441,508 P1,586,203,314 P1,443,691,506
Short-term loans (Notes 17, 30 and 31) 1,106,875,000  1,700,000,000 -
Income tax payable 276,055,023 196,608,438 93,651,733
Current portion of obligations for program and other rights

(Notes 18,30 and 31) 141,096,456 184,585,619 39,843,813
Dividends payable (Notes 30 and 31) 8,868,629 7,648,097 4,942,280

Total Current [.iabilities 3,314,337,516  3.675,045468  1,582,129,334
Moncurrent Liabilities
Pension liability (Note 26) 605,248,052 406,944,434 410,432,453
Other long-term employee benefits (Notes 26, 30 and 31) 264,368,057 242,656,177 258,843,508
Deferred tax labilities - net (Note 28) 41,580,015 144,250,390 132,605,086
Noncurrent portion of obligations for program and other
rights (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 33,330,130 63,955,130 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 944,526,254 857,806,131 801,881,049
Total Liabilities 4,258,863,770 4,532.851,599 2384 010,383

(Forward)



December 31 January 1
2012 2012
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2}
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Company
Capital stock (Note 19) P4,864,692,000 P4,864,692,000 P4,864,692,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,659,035,196  1,659,035,196  1,659,035,196
Revaluation increment in land - net of tax {Note 13) 1,621,158.064 744,158,022 744,158,022
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement plans - net of tax (24,953,087) 35,347,937 {42,731.226)
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial
assets - net of tax (Note 10) 3,083,187 4,065,927 2,752,687
Retained earnings (Note 19) 1,299,681,630 347,781,404 2,439,766,439
reastry stocks (Note 19) (28,483,171 (28,483,171 (28,483,171
Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine Depaosit
Receipts (Note 19) (5,790,0156) {5,790,016) (5,790,016)
Total Equity Attributable to Parent Company 8,788,423,823  8,120,807,299 8,633,399,931
Equity Attributable to Non-controlling Interest (Note 2) 36,649,358 28,624 201 25,034,505
Total Equity 8,825,073,181  8,149,431,500 9,65 8,434,436

#13,083,936,951 P12,682,283,099 212,042,444,319

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finmmoia] Statements.



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended
2012 2011
(As restated - (As restated -
2013 Note 2} Note 2)
NET REVENUES (Note 21) #12,950,879,322 ®12,085,934,970 P11,421,725,686

PRODUCTION COSTS (Note 22)

£,956,381,705

5,285,143,492

5,167,039.613

GROSS PROFIT 6,994,497.617 6,800,791,478 6,254,686,673
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 23} 4,608,945,146 4,518,636,519 4,087,739,232
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense and financing charges (Note 17} (53,115,234) (42,907,736) (11,486,044
Net foreign currency exchange loss (31,320,982) (23,660,355 (5,772,169)
Interest income (Note 6) 23,990,805 34,740,879 28,581,677
Equity in net losses of joint ventures {Note 11) (5,362,051) - -
Others - net (Notes 25 and 27 67,561,044 64,022,050 56,854,152
1,753,582 32,194,838 68,177,676
" INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,387,306,053 2,314.349,797 2,235,125,117

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 283

Current 909,120,348 740,211,754 564,101,113
Deferred {196,359,299) (46,634,794) {38,796,573)
712,331,041 693,576,960 525,304,540
NET INCOME 1,674,975,012 1,620,772,837 1,709,820,577
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) - net of tax
Item fo be reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods -
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets
{Note 10y (982,740) 1,313,240 757,000
Ttems not 1o be reclassified ro profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Revaluation increment in land {(MNote 133 277,000,042 - -
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement plans (60,301,824) 77,784,653 (64.743,592)
215,716,278 79,097, 895 (63,986,592)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

£1,890,691,290

P1,699,870,732

P1,645,833,985

Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controiling interest

P1,606,249,835
8,025,157

P1,616,888,633
3,884.204

R1,704,619,533
5,201,044

P1,674,975,012

21,620,772.837

B1,709,820.577

Other comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company B215,716,278 B79,392,403 (P63,986,592)
Non-conirolling interest - (294,508) -
P215,716,278 B79,097,895 {P63,986,592)
Basie / Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 2% £0.343 B(.333 P0.351

See accompanying Notes to Cansolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
(Asrestated - (As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2)
CASH FLOWS FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P2,387,306,053 P2,314,349,797 $2.235,125,117
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile income before income
tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12, 14,22
and 23) 705,440,885 610,002,917 518,764,761
Program and other rights usage (Notes 8 and 22) 565,357,691 460,937,465 317,520,415
Pension expense (Note 26) 116,158,183 120,401,310 90,741,183
Interest expense and financing charges 53,115,224 42,907,736 11,486,044
Net unrealized foreign currency exchange loss (gain) 45,628,791 2,507,337 (3,312,399)
Amortization of software costs (Notes 15 and 23) 30,995,844 27,733,938 25,711,619
Interest income (Note 6) {23,990,805) (34,740,879) (28,581,671
Dividend income (Note 25) {22,1306,300) (1,394,334) {41,729)
Gain on sale of property and equipment {(Note 25) {(11,243,736) (28,045,447 (16,040,347)
Equity in net losses of joint ventures (Note 1 N 5,362,051 - -
Loss on asset written off (Notes 14 and 25) 2,703,576 - ~
Provisions for impairment loss on:
AFS financial assets (Notes 10 and 23) 1,053,330 1,053,550 -
Advances fo joint venture (Notes 11 and 23 - 2,610,287 -
Reversal of impairment loss on investment properties
{(Notes 14 and 25) - - (4,990,219)
Working capital adjustments:
Decreases (increases) in:
Short-ferm investments 564,140 (8,538,142 -
Trade and other receivabies 332,650,827 319,057,445 1,315,195,961
Program and other rights (585,446,302)  (920,079,984)  (489,445,973)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 130,482,357 (22,782,892)  (107,695,130)
Increases (decreases) in:
Trade payables and other current lizbilities 185,598,978 141,445,141 {105,719,119)
Obligations for program and other rights (76,383,888) 209,399,388 (37,221,513)
Other long-ierm employee benefits 21,711,880 (16,187,331) 65,176,159
Contributions to retirement plan assets (Note 26) (3,578,687) - (3,508,621}
Benefits paid out of Group’s fund {4290,198) (12,768,395} {6,036,107)
Cash flows provided by operations 3,861,036,122  3,206,869,407  3,777,128,425
Interest received 24,023,042 35,878,401 28,769,014
Income taxes paid (829,742,855)  (637,255,049)  (711,633,801)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,033,316,309  2,605,492,759  3,094,263,638

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
{As restated - (As restated -
2813 Note 2) Note 2)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:

Property and equipment (Note 12)

Software costs (Note 15)

Investment in joint venture (Note 11)

Investment properties (Note 14)

Land at revalued amount
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets
Cash dividends received

(P672,652,227) (P976,038,618) (P903,210,615)
(12,309.842)  (35,652,642)  (34,675,997)
(10,000,000) -
- (2,815,163)

- - (6,463,241)
13,257,506 30,384,703 22,693,438
7,465,632 (5,047,064)  (2,299,345)
144,387 1,439,038

(1,846,519)

Net cash used in investing activities

(666.985,450)  (995,709,234) _ (925,33 1.885)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from availments of short-term loans {Note 17)
Payments of

Short-term loans {Note 17)

Cash dividends (Note 19)

Interest and financing charges

1,825,000,606  3,200,000,000 950,000,000

(2,500,000,006) (1,500,000,000)  (950,000,000)
(1,213,829,077) (3,206,167,851) (2,187,640,052)
(52,848,510)  (41,841.069)  (11,486,044)

Net cash used in financing activities

{1,941,677,587) (1,548,008,920) (2,199,126.096)

MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AMD
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

447,553,272 61,774,605  (30,194,343)
14,792,364 (3,210,291) 4,783,599

1,287,285,560  1,228,721,246  1,254,131,990

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 6)

P1,749,631,196 P1,287,285,560 B1,228,721,246

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

GMA Network, Inc. (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries {collectively referred to as

“the Group”) are incorporated in the Philippines. The Group is primarily involved in the business
of radio and television broadcasting. The Group is also involved in film production and other
information and entertainment-related businesses. The registered office address of the Parent
Company is GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City. The Parent
Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 14, 1950.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange. :

On July 20, 1995, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the extension of the corporate term of
the Parent Company for another 50 years from June 14, 2000. In 1997, the SEC approved the said

extension.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the BOD on April 2, 2014,

b

Basis of Preparation, Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures and Basis of
Consolidation

Basis of Preparation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and land used in operations, which are measured at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent
Company’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso,
except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period. In addition, the Company presents an additional statement of financial position at the
beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an
accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial
statements. An additional statement of financial position as at January 1, 2012 is presented in
these consolidated financial statements due to retrospective application of certain accounting

policy.
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) IS, Employee Benefits (Revised), becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after J anuary 1, 2013 but was early adopted by the Group on
Januvary 1, 2012. The Group applied the changes in accounting policies retrospectively, restated
its balances from the earliest period presented and disclosed the impact of the adoption on the
balances in the Group’s December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements.

The Group appiied, for the first time, PFRS 10, Consolidated F. nancial Statements, that requires
restatement of previous consolidated financial statements. Several other new and amended
standards and interpretations were applied for the first time in 2013. The nature and impact of
each new and amended standards and interpretations are described below,

®  PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities (Amendments), the amendment requires an entity to disclose information ghout
rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures
are required for all recognized financial instruments that are offset in accordance with PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial
instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar
agreement’, irrespective of whether they are offset in accordance with PAS 32. The
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format, unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum Quantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial Habilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

a. 'The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;

b. The amounts that are offset in accordance with the eriteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of fAnancial position;

¢. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;

d.  The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:

i, Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all
of the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
. Amounts related to financial collateral (inciuding cash collateral); and

¢. The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in {¢) above.

The Group does not have significant offsetting arrangement, thus, the adoption of this
amendment does not have impact on the consolidated financial statements.

= PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statemenis, replaced the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, that addressed the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also included the issues raised in SIC 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose
Entities. PFRS 10 established a single control model that applied to all entities including
special purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 require management to exercise
significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to
be consolidated by the Parent Company, compared with the requirements in PAS 27.

The application of PFRS 10 affected the accounting for the Group’s interest in RGMA
Network, Inc. (RGMA). For all financial years up to December 31, 2012, RGMA was
considered to be an associate under the previously existing PAS 28, Investmenis in Associates,
and was accounted for using the cost method in the Parent Company financial statements and
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. At the date of initial application of



PFRS 10, the Group assessed that it controls RGMA based on the factors explained in Note 2,
Basis of Consolidation.

The Group consolidated the financial statements of RGMA based on its 49% equity interest
and accounted for the balance of 51% as non-controlling interests. The assets, liabilities and
equity of RGMA have been retrospectively consolidated in the financial statements of the
Group. Non-controlling interests have been recognized at a proportionate share of the net
assets of the subsidiary. The opening balances as at January 1, 2011 and comparative
information for years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 have been restated in the
consolidated financial statements.

The quantitative impact on the financial statements is provided below.

Impact on statements of comprehensive income {increase/(decrease) in total comprehensive
income) for the years ended December 31 -

2013 2012 2011
Inthousands  In thousands  In thousands
Revenues £ - B
Cost of goods sold 69,522 65,375 62,072
Gross profit 69,522 63,375 62,072
Expenses (88,388 (79,414) {76,714)
Finance cost i 4 7
Hquity in net loss of an associate - 3,732 5,019
Interest income O (15) (14
Others (3,110) 3,176 2
Income before income tax 22,476 7,142 9,628
Provision for income tax 6,741 3,258 4,427
Total net income 15,735 3,884 5.2
Other comprehensive loss - (577) -
Total comprehensive income 215,733 B3,307 85,201
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 27,710 B B
Non-controlling interest 8,025 3,884 5,201
Other comprehensive income attributabie to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company ~ (283) -
Non-conirolling interest - (295} -

As a result of the application of PFRS 10, the retained earnings attributable to the parent
company had decreased by #148.02 million and the non-controlling interest had increased by
P19.83 million as at January 1, 2011,

The transition did not have any significant impact on the Group’s basic or diluted earnings per
share (EPS).

PFRS 11, Joint drrangements, replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13,
Jointly-controlled Entities (JCEs) - Nonmonetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11
removed the option to account for jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation.
Instead, jointly controlled entities that meet the definition of a Jjoint venture must be accounted
for using the equity method. The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for using



the equity method based on the percentage share of capitalization of the Group in accordance
with the joint venture agreements.

PERS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, sets out the reguirements for disclosures
refating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities. The requirements in PFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the previously existing
disclosure requirements for subsidiaries (for example, where a subsidiary is controlled with
less than a majority of voting rights). The Group’s non-controlling interest is immaterial and
there are no uncensolidated structured entities. PFRS 12 disclosures are provided in Note 11.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all
fair value measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS, PFRS 13
defines fair value as an exit price.

As a resuit of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Group reassessed its policies for measuring fair
values, in particular, its valuation mputs such as non-performance risk for fair value
measurement of liabilities. The Group has assessed that the application of PFRS 13 has not
materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Group. Additional disclosures, where
required, are provided in the individual notes relating to the assets and Habilities whose fair
values were determined. Fair value hierarchy is provided in Note 3.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income {Amendments), becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or affer

July I, 2012, The amendment to PAS 1 changed grouping of items presented in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCT). Items that may be reclassified (or “recycled™) to profit or loss
at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) will be presented
separately from items that will never be recycled. The amendment was applied retrospectively
and resulted to modification of the presentation of OCL

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011). As a consequence
of the issuance of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity
method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates, This standard affects the
disclosures of the consolidated financial statements,

The following new and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations are not applicable to
the Group. Thus, adoption of these standards has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Government
Loans (Amendments). The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a
current standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early
application, provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented
in the entity’s first PFRS financial statements.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011). As 2 consequence of the
issuance of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS 12, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting
for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in the separate financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine. This interpretation applies to waste removal costs (“stripping costs™) that are mecurred
in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine {“production stripping



costs™). If the benefit from the stripping activity will be realized in the current period, an
entity is required to account for the stripping activity costs as part of the cost of inventory.
When the benefit is the improved access to ore, the entity should recognize these costs as a
non-current asset, only if certain criteria are met (“stripping activity asset”). The stripping
activily asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement of, an existing asset.
After initial recognition, the stripping activity asset is carried at its cost or revalued amount
less depreciation or amortization and less impairment losses, in the same way as the existing
asset of which it is a part.

The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2009-2011 Cyclej contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRS. The Group does not expect these amendments to have significant impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarifies that, upon
adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs in accordance with its previous
generally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the
amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial position at the date of
transition.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the Requirement for
Comparative Information. The amendment clarifies the requirements for comparative
information that are disclosed voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective
application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in
the financial statements. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes
to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparaiive information beyond the
minimum required comparative period. The additional comparative period does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements. On the other hand, supporting notes for the
third balance sheet (mandatory when there is a retrospective application of an accounting
policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements) are
not required. The amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s

financial position or performance.

PAS 16, Property, Planmt and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment. The
amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments - Tax Effect of Distribution to Holders of Equity Instruments.
The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12,
Income Taxes.

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information
Jor Total Assets and Liabilities. The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for
a particular reportable segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change from the
amount disclosed in the entity’s previous annual financial statements for that reportable
segment.



Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group will adopt the following new standard, interpretation, amendments and improvements
to existing standards when these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does
not expect these changes to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements,

Effective in 2014

Invesiment Entities (dmendments to PFRS | 0, PFRS 12 and PAS 27). The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after J anuary 1, 2014. They provide an
exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity under PFRS 10, The exception to consolidation requires investment entities
to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies. This interpretation becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after J anuary 1, 2014. This clarifies that an entity recognizes a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the
interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum
threshold is reached.

PAS 32, Financial Instrumenis: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments). The amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to offset” and also clarify the application of the
PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems)
which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous,

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments). The amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided PFRS 13 is
also applied. These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the
disclosures required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which impairment loss has
been recognized or reversed during the period.

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments). The amendments become effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging
instrumnent meets certain criteria.

Effective in 2015

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments).
The amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2014. The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to
defined benefit pians, Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shali be
accounted for as reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of
the remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service.
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans.
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Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 Cycle). The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2610-
2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following standards:

PERS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition. The amendment shall be
prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after fuly 1, 2014. The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market
condition and added the definitions of performance condiiion and service condition to clarify
various issues,

PERS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination. The amendment shall be prospectively applied to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014, The amendment clarifies that 2
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument should be
classified as a financial liability or as equity in accordance with PAS 32. Contingent
consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (or
PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted).

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segmentis’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets. These amendments are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendments require entities to disclose the Jjudgment made by management in aggregating
TWO or more operating segments. This disclosure shouid include a brief description of the
operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that
have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar
economic characteristics. The amendments aiso clarify that an entity shall provide
reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if such
amounts are regularly provided fo the chief operating decision maker. The amendments only
affect the Group’s financial statements disclosures.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables. The amendment
clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendments only affect
the Group’s financial statements disclosures,

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumuiated Depreciation, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 1, 2014 after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately
preceding annual period. The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the
revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in 2 manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaiuation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

5. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel, becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The
amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or
any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services
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to the reporting entity or to the Parent Company of the reporting entity. The amendments also
clarify that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity
(also referred to as management entity) is not required o disclose the compensation paid or
payable by the management entity to its employees or directors. The reporting entity is
required to disciose the amounts incurred for the key management personne! services provided
by a separate management entity.

PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, The
amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying
amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in
one of the following ways;

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is comsistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumnulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b.  The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.
The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated

amnortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle). The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011-
2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following standards:

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
‘Effective PFRS’. The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current
standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application,
provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
entity’s first PFRS financial statements.

P¥RS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangement. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied
prospectively, The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the
formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of the Joint arrangement itself.

PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception, becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after july 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment
clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial
iabilities and other contracts.

PAS 40, Investment Property, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment clarifies the interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying property as investment property or owner-
occupied property. The amendment stated that Jjudgment is needed when determining whether
the acquisition of investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a
business combination within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of
PFRS 3.



Standard with No Mandatory Effectivity

PYRS 9, Financial Instruments, as issued, reflects the first phase on the replacement of

PAS 39 and applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as
defined in PAS 39. Work on impairment of financial instruments and hedge accounting is still
ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets
to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value
option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash Aows
and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the amount
of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OCL. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 19
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward
into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the
FVO.

On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of PAS 39
with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge
effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk on that
economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not
only for financial items, but also for non-financial items, provided that the risk component is
separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and ailowing the time value of an option, the
forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded
from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures tor hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and
impairment methodology. The Group will not adopt the standard before the completion of the
limited amendments and the second phase of the project.

Interpretation with Deferred Effective Date

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 135, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate. This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be aceounted for under

PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The
SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting
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Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against
the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
and the following subsidiaries, which are all inco

2013 and 2012:

Principal Activities

the Parent Company
rporated in the Philippines, as at December 31,

Entertainment Business:

Alta Productions Group, Inc,

Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc.

GMA Network Films, Inc.

GMA New Media, Inc. (GNMI)

GMA Worldwide (Philippines),
Inc.

Pre- and post-production services

‘Television entertainment production

Film production

Converging Technology

International marketing, handling foreign
program acquisitions and international
syndication of the Parent Company’s
programs

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Music recording, publishing and video

Ine.
RGMA
Scenarios, Inc.*

ScriptZ010, Inc.**

Advertising Business:

GMA Marketing & Productions,

inc. (GMPT)

Digify, Inc. (Digify)***

Others:
Media Merge Corporation**#

Ninja Graphics, Inc, #***

*Under liguidation
**ndirecily owned through Citynet
***ndirectly owned through GNMT

distribution

Radio broadcasting and management

Design, construction and maintenance of
sets for TV, stage plays and concerts;
transportation services

Design, construction and maintenance of
sets for TV, stage plays and concerts;
transportation and manpower services

Exclusive marketing and sales arm of
GMA’s airtime; events management;
sales implementation, traffic services
and monitoring

Crafting, planning and handling advertising
and other forms of promotion including
multi-media productions

Business development and operations for
the Parent Company’s oniine
publishing/advertising initiatives

Ceased commercial operations in 2604

**¥ ¥ indirectly owned through Alta; ceased commercial operations in 2004

Percentage

of Ownership
Direct Indirect
100 -~
160 —
100 —
100 -
100 -
100 -
49 -
- 100
- 100
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 31
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Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Conirol
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if] the Group has:

% Power over the investee (that is, existing rights that give it the current abiliiy to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

®  Exposurg, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investes,
includmg;

*  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
= The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control, Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains contral over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. All significant intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized gains and losses are likewise eliminated,

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Parent Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company. This includes the equity interest in RGMA
Network.

The Group does not have subsidiaries that have non~controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses conirol over a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

= Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

®  Derecognizes the cumulative translation adjustments recorded in equity;

®*  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

" Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

*  Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.
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Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent
Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

Additional Investments in Joint Venture (see Note 1 D
On November 15, 2013, the Group, through GNM], converted its cash advance to Philippine
Entertainment Portal (PEP), a joint venture, amounting to £12.00 million into additional shares of

stock 1z PEP,

In March 2012, the Group through GNMI, invested 210.00 million for its joint venture with
Manila Jockey Club (MJC), Inc. called “Gamespan, Inc.” (Gatmespan). (Gamespan has not yet
started commercial operations as at December 31, 2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current and Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on current or noncurrent classification.

An asset is current when it is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the
normal operating cycle or within twelve (12) months after the statement of financial position date,
when it is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or cash or cash equivalents unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to seftle a liability for at least twelve (12) months after the
statement of financial position date. All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled
within twelve (12) months after the statement of financial position date, when it is held primarily
for trading, or when there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve (12) months after the statement of tinancial position date. All other liabilities are

classified as noncurrent.

Cagh and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from acquisition date and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value,

Financia] Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments,
AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and where appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting period.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at FVPL.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade and
other receivables (excluding advances to suppliers), refundable deposits (included under “Other
noncurrent assets™ account in the consolidated statements of financial positions) and AFS financial

assets.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group does not have any financial asset at FVPL, HTM
investments or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

“Day I Difference”. Where the transaction price is different from the fair value of other
observable current market fransactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments (a “Day 1 Difference™) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data
which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and mode! value is
only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing
the “Day 1” difference amount,

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as described below:

* Loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest amortization is included in interest income in profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized under “General and administrative expenses” account
in the statements of comprehensive income.

*  AFS financial assets. AFS financial assets include equity investments. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as neither held for trading nor designated
at FVPL.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the “Unrealized gain
(loss) on AFS financial assets” account until the investment is derecognized, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other income, or the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the “Unrealized gain (loss) on
AFS financial assets™ account to profit or loss under other gxpense.

AFS equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any impairment. If a reliable measure of fair value subsequently becomes available, the
asset is remeasured at that fair value, and the gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive
income (provided it is not impaired). If a retiable measure ceases to be available, the AFS
equity investment is thereafter measured at cost, which is deemed to be the fair value on that
date. Any gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income shall remain in
equity until the agset has been sold, otherwise disposed of or impaired, at which time it is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the
near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is perniitted when the financial assets meet the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets
for the foreseeable future or untii maturity. Reclassification to the HTM category is permifted
only when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that
has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate, Any difference between the new amortized cost and
the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate., If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to profit or ioss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

*  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

* Either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group assesses, at each reporting period, whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an ncurred “loss event”™) and that loss event has an fmpact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
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estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

*  Financial assets carried at amortized cost. For tinancial assets carried at amortized cost, the
Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objeciive evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest nsed to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The accrued interest is
shown under interest income in profit or loss. Loans together with the associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent vear, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a previous write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to interest cxpense in profit or loss.

* AFS financial assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AF S, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in
profit or loss - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
FVPL and loans and borrowings, The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabifities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and
borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.
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The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other current Habilities (excluding
payable to government agencies and customers’ deposits), short-term loans, current and
noncurrent obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable and other long-term
employee benefits,

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group does not have financial liabilities at FVPL.

Subsequent Measurement. Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
amortization is included as interest expense in profit or loss,

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a new
liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financia] Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: '

= in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
*  in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest,

A fair value measurement of a nonfinanciai asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.



-17-

‘The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of refevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporiing period,

‘The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurements. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy.

The Group recognizes transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels by re-assessing
categorization (based on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) as at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Program and Cther Rights

Program and other rights with finite and infinite lives are stated at amortized cost less any
impairment in value. The cost of programs and other rights with finite lives is amortized based on
the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights and are fully amortized on the date of
expiry. The cost of program and other rights with infinite lives is amortized on accelerated
method based on the sum of the year’s digit of tent (10) years with salvage value of 10% of the
total cost. Amortization expense is shown as “Program and other rights usage”.

For series of rights acquired, the cost is charged to income as each series is aired on a per episode
basis.

For rights intended for airing over the international channels, the cost is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the number of years indicated in the confract.

Program and other rights are classified as current assets because the Group expects to air any
given title at any time within its normal operating cycle,

Prepaid Production Costs

Prepaid production costs, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in
the consolidated statements of financial position, represent costs paid in advance prior to the airing
of the programs or episodes. These costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and
other costs directly attributable to production of programs. These are charged to expense upon
airing of the related program or episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined
not to be aired are charged to expense, :
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Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory, included under “Prepatd expenses and other current assets”
account in the consolidated statements of financial position, is stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Net realizable value is the

current replacement cost.

Tax Credits

Tax credits represent claims from the government arising from airing of government commercials
and advertisements availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362. Pursuant to PD No. 1362,
these will be collected in the form of tax credits which the Group can use in paying for import
duties and taxes on imported broadcasting related equipment. The tax credits cannot be used to
pay for any other tax obligation to the government.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group’s tax credits are classified as current.

Asset Classified as Held for Sale

Asset classified as held for sale is measured at the lower of jts carrying amount and fair value less
costs o sell. An asset is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use. This condition js
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. An extension of the period required to complete a saie does not preciude an asset
(or disposal group) from being classified as held for sale if the delay is caused by events or
circumstances beyond the Group’s control and there is sufficient evidence that the entity remains
committed to its plan to sell the asset (or disposal group).

Investments and Advances

Investment in an Associate. This account consists of investments in and permanent advances to an
associate,

The Group’s investment in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. An associate
is an entity in which the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statements
of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate. Goodwill relating to the asseciate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income reflect the share of the results of operations
of the associate. When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the

associate,

The Group’s share in profit (loss) of the associate is shown on the face of the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income as “Equity in net earnings (losses) of associates and joint
ventures”, which is the profit (loss) atiributable to equity holders of the associates.
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The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the

Group,

Alfter application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
an additional impairment loss on its investment in associate. The Group determines at sach
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount
in the “Others - net” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any
remaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Interests in Joint Ventures. This account consists of interests in and permanent advances to joint
ventures,

The Group has interests in joint ventures. A jeint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the afrangements,
Joint control is the confractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require inanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. The Group recognizes its interests in the Joint ventures using the equity method. The
financial statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to climinate the Group’s
share of intragroup balances, transactions and unrealized gaing and losses on such transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures. Losses on transactions are recognized immediately if
the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realizable value of current assets or an
impairment loss. The Group ceases to use the equity method of accounting on the date from
which it no longer has joint control over, or significantly influence in the joint ventures or when
the interests become held for sale.

Upon loss of joint control, the Group measures and recognizes its remaining investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the former joint venture upon loss of joint
control and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in
profit or loss. When the remaining investment constitutes significant influence, it is accounted for

as investment in an associate,

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Land is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the
date of the revaluation, Valuations are performed frequently to ensure that the fair value of a
revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the
“Revalyation increment in land” account under equity, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is recognized in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the “Revaluation
mcrement in land” account,

Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Buildings, towers and improvements 11-20 years
Antenna and transmitter systems and broadcast equipment 3-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An item of property and equipment and arty significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future sconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are
reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization is credited or charged to current operations,

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for capital appreciation and rental.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment in value.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 11-20 years.

The remaining useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefiis are
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. Fora
transter from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under property and equipment up o the date of change in use.

Investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position, is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Software Costs

Costs incurred in the acquisition and customization of new software, included under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position, are capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over thres to five years,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments
and advances, property and equipment, investment properties and software costs are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are considered impaired and are written down to their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of these nonfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s fair value less cost 1o seil or value in use and is determined for an individual
assel, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses, if any, are
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset,

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss,
except for land at revalued amount where the revaluation is taken to other comprehensive income,
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over iis remaining useful life. For land at revalued amounts, the impairment is
aiso recognized in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

In the case of investments in associates and interests in joint ventures, after application of the
equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investments in associates and interests in joint
ventures. The Group determines at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that the investments in associates and interests in joint ventures are impaired. Ifthis is the case,
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the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount of investments in associates and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Egquity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Lreagury Stock and Underlying Shares of Acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equity instruments are deducted from equity, No gain or
loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Dividends on Common Shares of the Parent Company

Dividends on common shares are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when approved
by the BOD of the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after reporting
period are dealt with as an event after reporting period.

Revenues

Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econcmic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or
agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Airiime Revenue. Revenue is recognized as income in the period the advertisements are aired.
Such revenues are net of co-producers’ share. The fair vaiues of capitalizable exchange deals are
included in airtime revenue and the related accounts. These transactions represent advertising
time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or service,

Payments received before broadeast (pay before broadcast) are recognized as income on the dates
the advertisements are aired. Prior to liquidation, these are net out against outstanding accounts
receivable since a right of offset exists between the pay before broadeast balance and the regular
aceounts receivable with credit terms. These are reciassified to deferred liability under
“Customers deposits” account when no right of offset exists.

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant to ex-deal contracts executed between the
Group and its customers are recorded at fair market values of assets received. Fair market value is
the current market price.

Tax credits on aggregate airtime credits from government sales availed of under PD No. 1362 are
recognized as income upon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements and
when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and taxes on imported
broadcasting related equipment.

Subscription Income. Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
subscription agreements,
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Commission. Revenue is recognized as income on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms
of the related marketing agreements.

Production and Others. Production revenue is recognized when project-related services are
readered. Others pertain to revenue from sponsorship and licensing income. Revenue from
sponsorship and licensing is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

Rental Income. Revenue from lease of property and equipment is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
vield on the asset,

Co-producers’ Share
Co-producers’ share is deducted from gross revenues in profit or loss in the period the
advertisements are aired.

Share of co-producers on revenues of specific programs are covered by duiy authorized contracts
entered into between the Group and the co-producers. The co-producers normally undertake the-
production of such program in return for a stipulated percentage of revenue.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cosis directly attributabie to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of
the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Expenses
Expenses presented as “Production costs” and “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statements of comprehensive income are recognized as incurred.

Pension and Other Employee Benefits

The Parent Company and one of its subsidiaries have funded, noncontributory defined benefit
retirement plans covering permanent employees. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Defined Benefit Plans. The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value
of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset
ceiling, The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
*  Service cost
“  Netinterest on the net defined benefit obligation or asset
®  Remeasurements of net defined benefit obligation or asset
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Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as part of production costs and general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Past service costs are
recognized when pian amendment or curtailment oceurs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit obligation or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit obligation or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit obligation or asset is recognized under “Other expense or
income” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit obligation) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Fair value of plan assets
is based on market price information, When no market price is available, the fair value of plan
assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflecis
both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those
assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related
obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined
benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Termination Benefits. Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the
termination of an employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an
offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of empiloyment.

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are measured in
accordance with the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-
term employee benefits, or other long-term employee benefits.

Lmployee Leave Enritlements. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability
when they accrue to the employees, The liability relating to employee leave entitlement is
recognized for services rendered equivalent to the maximum credit leaves earned by the employee,
which is expected to be settled upon the employee’s resignation or retirement. The present value
of the noncurrent portion of the liability is determined by applying the discount rate based on
government bonds.
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Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of

the arrangement at inception date, whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as Lessee. Leases which do not ansfer to the Group substantiaily all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as

incurred,

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
are recognized as income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the lease ferm. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
earned. '

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign correncies are
retransiated at the functional currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. Al
differences are taken to profit or loss in the conselidated statements of comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
transfated using the exchange rates at the dates of the injtial transactions. Nonmonetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. For income tax purposes, foreign exchange gains and losses
are treated as taxable income or deductible sxpenses when realized,

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at
reporting period,

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax {RCIT) and
unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probabile that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits
of excess MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, except:

*  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

® Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments 1n subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the fransaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable fumure.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Incorne tax relating to other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income
section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of
VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is inciuded as part
of “Prepaid expenses and cther current assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabilities™
accounts in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income, net of income attributable to preferred shares,
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive
adjustments for any stock dividends declared.



=27 -

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (inclusive of income attributable to preferred
shares) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, plus the
weighted average number of common shares that would be issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential common shares.

Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed
separately into three business activities (see Note 5). Such business segments are the basis upon
which the Group reports its primary segment information. The Group considers television and
radio operations as the major business segment. The Group operates in two geographical areas
where it derives its revenue.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group Xpects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement ic virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not reco gnized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
year-end gvents that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes fo consolidated financiai

statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make Jjudgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and related notes at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these Jjudgments,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Functional Currency. The consolidated financial staternents are presented in Philippine peso,
which is the Parent Company’s functional currency. The Philippine peso is also the functional
currency of all the subsidiaries. It is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates.
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Asset Classified as Held for Sale. In January 2011, the Group, through GNMI’s BOD, announced
its decision to dispose of its shareholdings in X-Play Online Games Incorporated (X-Play), a joint
venture. The Group assessed that the interest in X-Play met the criteria to be classified as held for
sale at that date for the following reasons:

® X-Play is available for immediate sale and can be sold to a potential buyer in its current
condition,

3 GNMI’s BOD had entered into preliminary negotiations with a potential buyer,

® IP E-Games Ventures, Inc. (IPE) and GNMI subsequently executed an option agreement
whereby GNMI was granted an option to sell its shareholdings in X-Play to IPE, which can be
exercised within a period of one (1) year from execution date on October 19, 2011,

On March 19, 2013, GNMI and IPE extended until June 30, 2013 the exercise period of the
option agreement.

As at December 31, 2013, the sale of investment in X-Play has not materialized. The Group
reassessed the classification of investment in X-Play and reclassified it under “Other Noncurrent
Assets” account in the Group’s statement of financial position (see Note 35).

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than majority of voting rights. The Group
considers that it controls RGMA even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. This is
because the Group is the single largest sharcholder of RGMA with a 49% equity interest. The
remaining 51% of the equity shares in RGMA are owned by several parties. Since

September 27, 1995, which is the date of incorporation of RGMA, there is no history of the other
shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvote the Group.

Assessing Joint Control of an Arrangement and the Type of Arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The Group
assessed that it has joint control in all its joint arrangements by virtue of a contractual agreement
with other sharcholders. The Group’s Joint ventures have separate legal entity and its steckholders
have rights to its net assets.

The carrying value of the investments in Joint venture amounted to #16.64 million and
£10.00 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 11).

Operating Leases - Group as Lessee. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a
lessee. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that the lessors retain all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties and thus accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Rental expense charged to operations amounted to £919.49 million, 2787.88 million and
P851.99 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 27).

Tax Credits. The Parent Company has determined that tax credits earmed from airing of
government commercials and advertisements are recognized based on the Parent Company’s
forecast of importation for the next twelve (12) months from reporting period in which the tax
credits will be applied and when the application is reasonably certain.

Revenue from tax credits recognized in profit or loss amounted to P44.80 million, £40.00 million
and £67.20 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 21),
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Classification of Leave Entitlements as Current or Noncurrent. The Group assesses the
classification of its leave entitlements as either current or noncurrent based on the historical
experience of the outstanding leave availed.

Other employee benefits classified as current under “Trade payables and other current liabilities™
account in the consolidated statements of financial position amounted to B17.26 million and
P11.29 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, while other employee benefits
classified as noncurrent amounted to 2264.37 million and B242.66 million as at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 20),

Hstimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Lstimating Allowance for Doubiful Accounts. Provisions are made for specific and groups of
billed accounts where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates these
accounts based on available facts and circumstances that affect the collectability of the accounts.
The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and collective assessment. The
factors considered in specific and collective impairment assessments include, but not fimited to,
the length of the Group’s relationship with custemers, customers’ current credit status and known
market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The
amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different
Judgments or utilized different methodologies. An increase in allowance for doubtful accounts
would increase the recorded general and administrative expenses and decrease current assets.

Provision for doubtful accounts amounted to 20.85 million, B35.79 million and 224.63 million in
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 23). Trade and other receivables, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts, amounted to $3,521.43 million and B3,842.39 million as at

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 7).

Amortization of Program and Other Rights. The Group estimates the amortization of program and
other rights with finite fives based on the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights. The
Group estimates that programs are generally more marketable in their initial airing as compared to
the succeeding airings. In addition, estimation of the amortization of program and other rights is
based on the Group’s experience with such rights. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

Program and other rights usage amounted to 2565.36 million, #460.94 miilion and

$317.52 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 22). Program and other rights, net
of accumulated impairment loss, amounted to £1,209.23 miilion and £1,189.14 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 8).
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Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below jts cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgment, The Group treats “significant” generally as a decline of 20% or
more below of the original cost of investment, and “prolonged” as period longer than twelve (12)
months. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price
for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

Provision for impairment loss amounted to 21.05 million each in 2013 and 2012 and nil in 2011
(see Note 23). The carrying value of AFS financial assets amounted to 2135.55 million and
#106.34 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2012, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimating Allowance for Inventory Losses, The Group provides allowance for inventory losses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation of the inventories.

The carrying vailue of materials and supplies inventory amounted to 258.58 million and
272.47 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9), There were no
provisions for inventory iosses in 2013,29012 and 2011,

Lstimaring Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Software Costs and Investment Properties.
The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properties based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use
of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs
and investment properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
svaluation and experience with similar assets. ¥ is possible, however, that future results of
operations couid be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives
of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties would increase the recorded
general and administrative expenses and decrease noncurrent assets,

There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties in 2013 and 2012.

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an independent appraiser to determine the fair value of
the land used in operations. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence
adjusted based on certain elements of comparison. The fair value amount would differ if the
Group made different judgments and estimates or utilized a different basis for determining fair
value.

Valuations from an independent appraiser are performed every five years to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materiaily from its carrying amount.

The revaiued amount of land amounted to £1,805.30 million, and 21,409.59 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 (see Note 13).
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. For prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments and
advances, property and equipment, investment properties and software costs, impairment testing is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
agset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review inciude
the following:

* significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
resuits;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

" significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and the
asset’s value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Provision for impairment loss on the advances to joint venture amounted to nil in 2013 and 2011
and $2.61 million in 2012 (see Notes 11 and 23y

The balance of nonfinancial assets as at December 31 follows:

2012
(As restated -
2013 see Note 2)
Property and equipment (see Note 12) 23,589,651,781 B3,621 092,076
Investments and advances (see Note 11) 138,463,938 132,825,989
Tax credits (see Note 9) 117,846,102 118,795,762
Prepaid production costs (see Note N 84,826,707 181,683,840
Investment properties (see Note 14) 00,532,209 64,751,405
Software costs (see Note 15) 37,654,045 356,340,047

P4,029,974,782 P4,175,489,119

Taxes. The Group has exposures to the tax rules and regulations in the Philippines and significant
judgment is involved in determining the provision for these tax exposures. The Group recognizes
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes are due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognized,
such difference will impact profit or loss in the period in which such determination is made.

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets on nondeductibie temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO
and excess MCIT over RCIT at each reporting date and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be available to aliow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Based on the Group’s assessment, not all nondeductible temporary difference and carryforward
benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT over RCIT will be realized.
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Recognized deferred tax assets amounted to B513.65 million and P287.72 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, while unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to
$20.90 million and B16.84 million as at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 28).

Pension Benefits. The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of pension benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts.
Those assumptions are described in Note 26 and include, among others, discount rate and salary
increase rate. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

Pension liability amounted to 8605.25 million and £406.94 million as at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively (see Note 26).

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities. The Group carries AFS financial assets at fair
value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments. The significant
components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective svidence

(i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates). However, the timing and amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized different valuation methodologies and
assumptions. Any changes in the fair value of AFS financial assets would affect the statements of
comprehensive income. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are enumerated in

Note 31.

Lh

Segment Information

Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products and
services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

*  The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadcasting
activities and which generates revenue from saie of national and regional advertising time.

* The international subscription segment which engages in subscription arrangements with
international cable companies.

*  Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services,

The Executive Committee, the chief operating decision maker, and Management monitor the
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net
income or loss and is measured consistently with net income or loss in the consolidated financial
statements. On a consolidated basis, the Group’s performance is evaluated based on consolidated
net income for the year.

Ceographical Segments

The Group operates in two major geographical segments. In the Philippines, its home country, the
Group is involved in television operations. In the United States and in other locations (which
inciude Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada, Guam, Singapore, Hongkong and Japan), the
Group ties up with cable providers to bring television programming outside the Philippines.
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The Group’s revenues are mostly generated in the Philippines, which is the Group’s country of
domicile. Revenues from external customers attributed to foreign countries from which the Group
derives revenue are individually immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.

Noncurrent assets consisting of property and equipment, fand at revalued amounts, investment
properties and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does not have a single external customer whose revenue amounts to 10% or more of
the Group’s revenues.

Inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business
segments and among geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive
market prices charged to unrelated customers for simiiar services. Such transfers are eliminated
upon consolidation.

Measurement Basis

The amount of segment assets and labilities and segment profit or loss are based on measurement
principles that are similar to those used in measuring the assets and Habilities and profit or loss in
the consolidated financiai statements, which is in accordance with PFRS,
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2012
(As restated -
2013 see Note 2)
Cash on hand and in banks P1,465,684,717 P1,040,436,077
Short-term deposits 283,946,479 246,849,483

#1,749,631,196  P1,287.285,560

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

Short-term investments amounting to #7.87 million and 28.54 million as at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively, with original maturities of more than three months to one year, are shown
separately in the consolidated statements of financial position,

Interest income, net of final tax, earned from bank deposits and short term investments amounted
to #23.99 million, 234.74 million and 228.53 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

7. Trade ard Other Receivables

2012
(As restated -
2013 see Note 2)
Trade:

Television and radio airtime $2,669,278,916 £3,161,664,105
Subscriptions 771,491,924 618,236,636
{thers 146,927,889 148,700,853

Nontrade:
Advances to suppliers 133,338,872 91,846,350
Advances to officers and employees 4,623,714 30,288,652
Others 69,747,905 64,784,113
3,795,409,220  4,115,520,709
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 273,978,777 273,130,772

$3,521,430,443  $3,842.389,937

Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airtime. Television and radio airtime receivables are unsecured,
noninterest-bearing and are generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the
customers. [nvoicing normally takes around 30 days from airing.

Television and radio airtime receivables include unbilled airtime receivables, arising when
advertisements have been aired but billing or acceptance by the customer has been delayed due to
time lag in completing all required documents.
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Television and radio airtime receivables are presented net of applicable payments received before
broadcast amounting to £230.23 million and £168.58 million as at December 3 1, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, since a right of offset exists between the advance payments and the regular
outstanding trade receivabies.

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivabie pertain to receivables from international
channel subscriptions and advertisements. These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and normally
collected within 30-60 days.

Other Trade Receivables. Other trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are
generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nontrade Receivables

Advances to Suppliers. Advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to
acquisition of inventories and fixed assets and availment of services and others within the next
financial year,

Advances to Officers and Employees and Other Nontrade Receivables. Advances to officers and
empioyees and other nontrade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are normally collected
within the next financial year.

Allowance for Doubtfui Accounts
The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

2013
Television and
Radie Airtime Others Total
Balance at beginning of year £269,872,570 #3,258,202  P273,130,772
Provision for the vear (see Note 23 - 848,005 848,005
Balance at end of year #269,872,570 4,106,207  $273,978,777
2012

(As restated - ses Note 2)
Television and

Radio Airtime Others Tota}
Balance at beginning of year 234 640,484 B3,656,669  £238,297,153
Provision for the year (see Note 23) 35,232,086 553,121 35,785,207
Write-off - (951,588) (951,58%)

Balance at end of year 2269,872,570 £3,258202  P273,130,772
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The allowance for doubtful accounts for television and radio airtime and other receivables in 2013
and 2012 are results of specific and collective impairment assessments performed by the Group as

follows:

2012
(As restated -

2013 see Note 2)
individually impaired #260,570,950 £266,956,063
Collectively impaired 13,407,827 6,174,709

P273,978,777 B273,130,772

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the aging analysis of receivables that were not mmpaired

follows:;

2013
Trade
Television and
Radio Airtime Subscriptions Others Nontrade* Total
Neither past que nor impaired £1,304,687,771 B479,659,930 P88,622,679 P46,255963  £1,913,230,343
Past due but not impaired:
[-30 days 259,644,010 45,725,346 12,159.223 4,556,526 322,085,099
31-60 days 166,885,464 48,074,195 5,356,215 2,928,691 223,244,565
61-90 days 96,856,996 39,281,104 1,994,122 1,699,754 139,831,976
91-180 days 100,465,459 7,522,412 3,199,353 1,763,079 112,860,503
181-365 days 310,130,562 32,077,652 4,835,945 5,442,514 412,486,673
Dver | vear 160,736,084 59,181,285 26,743,945 17,721,098 264,352,412
22,399,406,346 2771,491,924 P142.821,682 B74371,619  ®3388,091,571
*Excluding advances io suppliers amounting to 2133.34 million as at December 31, 2073,
2012
(As restated - see Note 2)
Trade
Television and
Radio Airtime Subscriptions Others Nopade® Total
Neither past due nor impamed $2.325,020 464 ¥228237,153 213,789,346 B3,057,742  £2,745,104.710
Past due but not impaired:
1-30 days 200,283,483 43,541,678 8.368.681 5,612,936 257,806,775
31-60 days 276,000 212,194,922 4,075,532 3,246,372 219,792,826
6196 days 153,605,708 35,811,981 570,133 284,441 190,272,263
91-180 days 104,585,378 41,492,804 4,336,073 257,793 130,672,048
181-365 days 59,854,871 33,020,637 5,989,073 289,441 119,154 022
Over 1 year 48,165,633 3,937,456 8313813 7,324,040 67,740,942
P2.891,791,535 618,236,636 P145,442,651 POS672,765  P3,750,543,587

*Excluding advances o suppliers amounting o 291,83 million as ar December 3], 2012,

Trade and other receivables that are not imp

good and collectible.

The Group’s unbilled receivabies amounted to
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respective
past due nor impaired”

aired are assessed by the Group’s management as

#27.28 million and B56.44 million as at
ly. These are included in trade receivables as “neither
but with age of 31-60 days from date of airing.



8. Program and Other Rights

2013
Programand  Story Format
Film Rights Rights Totai
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year ?1,161,376,706 B30,466,224 $£1,191,842,930
Additions 538,361,476 47,084,826 585,446,302
Program and other rights usage
(see Note 22) (504,422,071 (60,935,620)  (565,357,691)
Balance at end of year 1,195,316,111 16,615,430  1,211,931,541
Accumulated impairment in value -
Balance at beginning and end of year (2,702,260) - (2,702,260
P1,192,513,851 216,615,436 P1,209,229.281
2012
Program and Story Format
Filin Rights Rights Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year $661,208,475 P71,491,936  B732,700,411
Additions 919,516,659 563,325 920,079,984
Program and other rights usage
{see Note 22) {(419,348,428) {41,589.037) (460,937 .463)

Balance at end of vear
Accumulated impairment in value -
Balance at beginning and end of year

1,161,376,706

(2,702,260)

30,466,224

1,191,842,930

(2,702,260)

21,158,674,446

30,466,224 £1,189,140,670

No impairment losses on program and other rights were recognized in 2013, 2012 and 2011,

9. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

2012
(As restated -

2013 see Note 2)
Creditable withholding taxes £150,711,335 P133,179,149
Input VAT 148,282,430 184,698,052
Tax credits 117,846,102 118,795,762
Prepaid production costs 84,826,707 181,683,840
Prepaid expenses 74,805,769 74,702,148
Materials and supplies inventory at cost 58.877.911 72,473,600
Others 43,610 43,6190
£635,093,804 P765,576,161

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. The Parent Company expects to utilize these tax

credits within the next financial year,
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Prepaid production represents costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the programs or
episodes. The Group expects to air the related programs or episodes within the next financial
year,

Prepaid expenses include prepayments for rentals, insurance and other expenses.

. Avaiiable-for-Sale Financial Assets

2013 2012

Investments in shares of stock:
Unquoted £130,662,548 $101,753,598
Quoted 4,890,600 4,590,000

P135,552,548 2106,343,508

The fair value of unquoted shares is not reasonably determinable due to the unpredictable nature
of future cash flows and lack of other suitable methods of arriving at its fair value.

The movements in this account are as follows:

2013 2012
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year #107,397,148 2105,796,348
Additions 31,502,800 -
Net change in the fair value of AFS
financial assets (1,240,300) 1,600,300
Balance at end of the year 137,659,648 107,397,148
Allowance for decline in value:
Balance at beginning of vear 1,053,530 -
Impairment loss (see Note 23) 1,053,550 1,053,550
Balance at end of year 2,107,100 1,053,550

P135,552,548 £106,343,598

In 2012, the Parent Company recognized 50% impairment loss of the cost of its unquoted AFS
{inancial asset which ceased commercial operation. In 2013, the Parent Company recognized
impairment loss for the remaining 50%. The impairment loss is included under “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 2.

The movements in net unrealized gain on AFS financial assets are as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year £4,065,927 2,752,687
Gain (loss) due to changes in fair market value of
AFS financial assets {1,240,360) 1,600,300
Tax effect of the changes in fair market values 257,560 (287,060)
(982,746) 1,313,240

£3,083,187 4,065,927
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The net unrealized gain on AFS financial assets are deferred and presented separately under the
equity section of the consolidated statements of financial position. No portion of the net
unrealized gain on AFS financial assets was transferred to profit in loss in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

11. Investments and Advances

Following are the details of this account in 2013 and 2012:

2012
{As restated -
2013 see Note 2)
Investment in associate and interests in joint
ventures £54,988,568 248,350,619
Permanent advances to associates and joint ventures
{see Note 20) 84,475,370 84,475,370

#139,463,938

P132,825,989

The movements in the above amounis are as follows:

2012
{As restated -
2013 see Note 2)
Investment in an associate and interests in joint
ventures
Acquisition cost:
Balance at beginning of year £119,722,056 £109,722.056
Additions 12,000,000 10,000,000
Balance at end of vear 131,722,056 119,722,056
Accumulated equity in net losses:
Balance at beginning of year (71,371,437) (71,371,437)
Equity in net losses during the year (5,362,051) -
Balance at end of year (76,733,488) (71,371,437)
54,988,568 48,350,619
Advances to an associate and joint ventures
(see Note 20):
Balance at beginning of year 84,475,370 87,085,657
Impairment loss (see Note 23) - {2,610,287)
Balance at end of year 84,475,370 84,475,370
Total investments and advances 139,463,938 P132,825 989

In 2012, the Parent Company recognized a provision for impairment loss amounting to

$2.61 million for the net carrying value of its advances to INQ?7 Interactive, Inc. (INQ7). The
recognized impairment loss is inciuded under “General and administrative expenses” in the 2012
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see Note 23),
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The ownership interests in associate and joint ventures, which are all incorporated in the
Philippines and are accounted for under the equity method, consist of the following as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Percentage of

Principal Activities Ownership
Associate -
Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation
(Mont-Afre) Real Estate 49
Joint Ventures:
ING7 Internet Publishing 50
PEP Internet Publishing 50
Gamespan Betting Games 50

The carrying values of investments and the related advances are as follows:

2013
Advancss
Investments {see Note 20) Total
Associate -
Mont-Aire £38,350,619 P84.475,370 $122,825,989
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,813,158 - 8,813,150
PEP 7,824,790 - 7,824,790
P54,988,568 84,475,370 $139,463,938
2012
{As restated - see Note 2)
Advances
Investments {see Note 20} Total
Associate -
Mont-Aire £38.,350,619 £84,475,370 P122,825,989
Joint venture -
Gamespan 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
48,350,619 £84,475,370 P132,825,989
PEP

On November 15, 2013, the Group, through GNMI, converted its cash advances to PEP
amounting to 212.00 million to additional investment in joint venture. As a result, the Group
recognized previous years’ accumulated share in net losses amounting to ®3.86 million and its
share in net losses amounting to 20.31 miilion in 2013 (ses Note 32).

Gamespan .
On March 22, 2012, the Group, through GNMI, executed a Shareholder’s Agreement with MJC

for the establishment of Gamespan, a joint venture corporation. The joint venture was organized
to operate and manage the hardware and software owned by MIJC, set-up new media infrastructure
for offering and taking bets in horse racing and other sports.

As at December 31, 2013, the Company recognized share in the pre-operating expenses of
Gamespan amounting to 21,19 million.
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INQ7

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s interest were applied
against its advances to the Parent Company. INQ7 ceased operations in 2007. In 2013, INQ7
submitted a request to liquidate its assets to SEC,

All associates and joint ventures are not listed in any public stock exchanges.

The table below shows the condensed financial information of Mont-Aire as at December 31 s
2013 and 2012, respectively:

Current assets B53,469,276

Noncurrent assets 107,750,283

161,219,559

Current liabilities 1,269,154

Noncurrent liabilities 81,683,836

82,952,990

Net assets 78,206,569
Proportion of the Company’s ownership 49%

Carrying amount of investment 238,350,619

In 2013 and 2012, the Group has no share in the result of operations of Mont-Aire since it ceased
commercial operation in 2009,

The Group’s share in net income (loss)/total comprehensive income {loss) of the Group’s joint
ventures that are individually immaterial amounted to (21.50 million), (B1.45 million) and
£1.78 million in 2013, 2012 and 201 1, respectively,

- Property and Equipment at Cogt

2013
Additiens/
Depreciation
{see Notes 22
January I and 23} Dispesals Reclassifications December 31
Cost:
Buildings, towers and improvements $2,772,239,043 R44,523,065 B B2.247,764  $2.819,009.872
Antenna and transmitter systems and
broadcast equipment 5,317,832,415 422,370,081 (4,849,146) 22,278,457 3,757,631,807
Communication and mechanical equipment 822,526,941 167,621,242 (4,467 368) {1,467,354) 924,212,963
Transportation equipment 418,713,866 71,014,303 (16,984,439 - 472,743,730
Fumiture, fixtures and eq uipment 191,303,456 5,935,893 (7,406,477 169,670 190,002,542
9,522,615,721 651,464,584 £33,70r1,9303 23,228,537 10,163,600,912
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization:
Buildings, towers and {mprovements 1,207,772,932 135,238,724 - - 1,343,811,656
Antenna and transmitter systems
and broadcast equipment 3,902,638,943 379,807,870 (4,849,146} - 4,277,597,672
Communication and mechanical equipment 626,626,302 98,680,935 (4,453,306} - 720,853,931
Transportation equipment 213,532,494 77,881,288 {15,002,230) - 276,411,552
Furniture, fixtures and sguipment 158,229,348 10,469,929 {7,388,972) 71,803 161,382,108
6,108,800,324 792,078,746 (31,694,154) 71,803 6,779,256,919
Construction in progress and equipment
for installation 207,276,879 21,187,643 - (23,156,734} 205,307,788
£3,621,092,076 (#29.426,519) *2,013,776) B P3589651,781
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2012
{As restated ~ see Note 2)
Additions/
Pepreciation
{see Notes 22
January 1 and 23) Dispesals Reclassifications Becember 31
Caost:
Buildings, towers and improvements B2 511,575,392 £196,950,973 (B689,501) B44.402,179  B2,772,239,043
Aptenna and rangmitter systems and
broadeast equipment 4,825, 470,654 47 507,084 (2,369,505) 15224182 5317,832,413
Communication and mechanical equipment 736,890,359 86,949,288 (1,642,729) 330,023 822,526,941
Transportation equipment 387,809,910 116,471,754 (83,626,523) (1,941,315 418,713,866
Furaiture, fixtures and squipmeny 177,780,104 13,175,925 (1,012,13%) 1,359,559 181,303 456
8,659,526 419 893,055,064 (89,340,390) 59,574,628 9,322,615.721
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization:
Butidings, towers and improvements 1,G81,171,096 127,291,335 (689,499) - 1,207,772.932
Antenna and transmitter systems
and broadcast equipment 3,587,194, 739 317,778,912 {2,334,693) = 3,902,638948
Communication and mechanical equipment 545,866,956 82,335,375 (1,575,529) - 626,626,802
Transportation eguipment 227,125,143 68,414,681 (82,007,330} - 213,532,494
Furniture, fixfures and equipment 148,219,123 10,904,308 {894,083) — 158,229 348
5,589,577 047 606,724 611 (87,501,134) - 6,108,800 524
Construction in progress and equipment
for instailation 183,667,953 82,983 554 - (59,374,628) 207,276 879
B3,253,617,325 £369,314,007 (P1,839,256) B #1621,092078

The amount of depreciation expense includes amortization of previously capitalized borrowing
costs amounting to 10.08 million each year. No borrowing costs were capitalized in 2013 and
2012,

The cost of fuily depreciated assets stiil used by the Group amounted to 4,050.18 million and
84,200.30 miilion as at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively, The Group has no idle
property and equipment as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Construction in progress pertains to the costs incurred for signal strengthening of transmitters
nationwide and construction/improvement of studios and stations in the regions.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, no property and equipment have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s liabilities.

13. Land at Revalued Amounts

2013 2012
Cost -
Balance at beginning and end of year #346,502,817 £346 502,817
Revaluation increment:
Balance at beginning of year 1,063,082,889 1,063,082,389
Additions 395,714,345 -
Balance at end of year 1,458,797,234 1,063,082, 889

£1,805,300,051 $1,409,585,706

Land used in operations was last appraised on December 17, 2013 by an independent firm of
appraisers, Crown Property Appraisal Corporation, and is valued in terms of its highest and best
use.
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As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, no land has been pledged as collateral or security for any of
the Company’s liabilities and the Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its fand and no

contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop laud or for repairs, maintenance and

enhancements,

14, Investment Properties

2013
Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total
Cost;
Balance at beginning of year $33,975,381 P73,565,501 R107,540,882
Additions - 1,846,519 1,846,519
Write-off (see Note 25) {2,687,500) (257,200) (2,944,706)
Balance at end of year 31,287,881 75,154,828 106,442,701
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of vear —~ 40,744,304 40,744,304
Depreciation during the year
{see Note 23) — 3,362,139 3,362,139
Balance at end of year - 44,106,443 44,106,443
Accumulated impairment in vaiue:
Balance at beginning of year - 2,045,173 2,045,173
Write-off (see Note 25) — (241,124 {241,124
Balance at end of year — 1,804,049 1,804,049
Belance af end of year 231,287,881 $29,244,328 £60,532,209
2012
Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total
Cost -
Balance at beginning and
end of vear £33,975,381 F73,565,501 P107,540,882
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of year - 37,465,998 37,465,998
Depreciation during the year
{see Note 23) - 3,278,306 3278306
Balance at end of year - 40,744,304 40,744 304
Accumulated impairment in valye -
Balance at beginning and
end of year - 2,045,173 2,045,173
P33,975,381 #30.776,024 Po4,751,405

In 2013, the Parent Company wrote off some of its investment properties with carrying value of
£2.70 million due to dispute in ownership (see Note 25).

The fair market value of investment properties owned by the Group amounted to 2133,67 million
as at December 31, 2013, as determined by independent appraisers, Crown Property Appraisal
Corporation, Philippine Appraisal Co. Inc. and Cuervo Appraisers, Inc.
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The fair market value of investment properties owned by GMPI and Scenarios amounted to
B21.09 million as at December 31, 2012, while the rest of the investment properties owned by the
Parent Company and Alta amounted to B102.13 million as at December 31, 2005, as determined
by independent appraisers.

The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair vaiue hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in accordance with Fnternational Valuation Standards.

While fair values of the majority of investment properties were not determined as at December 31,
2012, the Group’s management believes that there were no conditions present in 2012 that would

significantly reduce the fair value of the investment properties from that determined in 2005.

Rental income and the directly related expenses arising from these properties follow:

2013 2012 2011

Rental income derived from
investment properties #2,942,417 23,382,565 R2,175,581
Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and
maintenance) from
investment properties {3,647,263) (3,175,500) {3,097,803)
(B704,346) 2207,065 (8622,222)

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, no investment properties have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restriction on the realizability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop investment
properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

15, Other Noncurrent Assets

2013 2012
Software costs P37,654,045 B56,340,047
Deferred input VAT 31,901,813 36,157,216
Investment in stocks 26,432,472 -
Guarantee deposits 16,871,190 16,769,795
Refundable deposiis 15,671,300 16,092,343
Investment in artworks 10,406,255 10,406,255
Video rights and other noncurrent assets 3,089,751 5,980,342

R142,026,836 P141,745,998
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The movements in software costs follow:

2013 2012
Cost:

Balance at beginning of year £222,169,322 R2186,516,860
Additions 12,309,842 35,652,462
Balance at end of vear 234,479,164 222,169,322

Accumulated amortization:
Balance at beginning of vear 165,829,275 138,095,337
Amortization during the year (see Note 23) 30,995,844 27,733,938
_Balance at end of year 196,325,119 165,829,275
237,654,045 256,340,047

X-Play

As discussed in Note 4, the Group, through GNMT’s BOD, announced its decision to dispose of its
shareholdings in X-Play on January 1, 2011, and classified its investment in X-Play as asset held
for sale. The carrying value of asset held for saje previously classified as interest and advances to
joint venture amounted to £26.43 million.

In connection with the planned disposal of X-Play, in March 2013, GNMZ and IPE extended untif
June 30, 2013 the exercise period of the option agreement which both companies entered on

October 19, 2011 whereby IPE grants GNMI the option to sell all, but not less than all, of shares
in stock of X-Play for a purchase price of £75.00 million in cash. Also, on March 23, 2012,

GNMI agreed to subscribe to 2130.00 million worth of shares of IPE’s authorized but unissued
capital stock to be offered on its Initial Public Offering in exchange for GNMI shares of stock in
X-Play at a subscription price per share equivalent to the offering price.

As at December 31, 2013, the sale of investment in A-Play has not materialized. The Group
reassessed the classification of investment in X-Play and reclassified it under “Other Noncurrent

Assets” account in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

16. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

2012
(As restated -

2013 see Note 2)

Trade payables £397,999,260 $382,190,859
Payable to government agencies 513,380,880 801,878,448
Customers’ deposits 447,112,904 -

Accrued expenses:

Production costs 173,228,937 139,610,404
Payroll and talent fees 115,828,416 136,879,445
Commission 21,080,670 17,930,573
Utilities and other expenses 44,676,360 36,349,148
Others £8,137,281 51,364,437

P1,781,441,508

R1,586,203,314
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Trade payables to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from
7-30 days.

Payable to government agencies is remitted within 30 days after reporting period.

Customers’ deposits include unimplemented payments received before broadcast from customers
who have no outstanding trade receivables from which advance payments can be offset. These
deposits will be seitled and implemented within the next financial vear,

Accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within the
next financial year.

. Short-term Loans

The Parent Company obtained unsecured short-term peso and USD denominated loans from
various local banks for the payment of the dividends declared during the year. Details of the
short-term loans are as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year 21,700,0006,000 P
Additions 1,825,000,000  3,200,000,000
Payments {2,500,000,000) ( 1,500,000,000)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 81,875,000 -
Balance at end of year £1,106,875,000  21,700,000,000

The interest rate of the short-term loan ranges from 1.73% to 5.00% in 2013 and a fixed rate of
4.00% in 2012. Interest expense incurred related to the short-term loans amounted fo
$47.96 million, B37.63 million and 29.68 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

. Obligations for Program and Other Rights

This account consists of

2013 2012
Current obligations for program rights £141,096,456 2134,585,619
Noncurrent obligations for program rights 33,330,130 63,955,130

B174,426,586 P2438,540,749

Obligations for program and other rights represent liabilities to foreign and local film suppliers for
program and other rights purchased by the Group. The current portion of the obligations for
program rights is noninterest-bearing and is generally payable in equal monthly or quarterly
installments. The amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 represent the nominal amounts of the obligations which are expected
to be settled within the next 12 months.

The noncurrent portion of obligations for program rights is payable in four years and is presc?nted
at its present vaiue using 4.03% discount rate in the consolidated statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.



-49.

19. Equity

a,

Capital Stock

Number
of Preferred
Shares

Number
of Common
Shares

Authorized - 0.20 par value per preferred
share/R1.00 par value per common share

7,500,000,000

5,000,000,000

Subscribed and issued at beginning and end of year

7,560,000,000

3,364,692,000

Treasury shares

492,816

3,645,000

Underlying shares of the acquired PDRs - 750,000

The preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identicai in all respect
regardless of series. Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the
dividends paid to common shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionately by the Parent
Company’s BOD consequent to any stock split or stock dividend declaration affecting the
common shares and preferred shares. Preferred shares are convertible at the option of the
shareholders at the ratio of five preferred shares to one common share, based on par value,

referred shares enjoy priority over common shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent
Company in the event of dissolution and liquidation, at such rates, terms and conditions as the
BOD may determine. Each preferred share is entitled {o one vote and shall have the same
voting rights as the common shares,

The Parent Company’s BOD may specify other terms and conditions, qualifications,
restrictions and privileges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof, insofar as such
terms, conditions, qualifications, restrictions and privileges are not inconsistent with the
articles of incorporation and any applicable law or regulation.

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities
with the SEC which was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68, As Amended (201 1

Authorized and Issue/Offer
Securities issued shares Price
Initial public offering 91,346,000 R8.50
Underlying common shares of PDRs 945,432,000 8.50
Over-allotment common shares 13,701,000 8.50
Comumon shares covering employee stock option plan 57,000,000 8.50
Underlying shares of the acquired PDRs 945,432,000 3.50

Retained Earnings

The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted for the payment of dividends to the
extent of 34.27 million as at Decermnber 31, 2013 and 2012, representing the cost of shares
held in treasury amounting to ®28.48 million in 2013 and 2012 and underlying shares of the
acquired PDRs amounting to 5,79 million in 2013 and 2012.
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Consolidated retained eamings include undeclared retained carnings of subsidiaries amounting
to #100.08 million and B58.82 million as at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. The
Parent Company’s retained carnings available for dividend declaration, computed based on the
guidelines provided in Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), amounted to
£1,343.61 million and £932.19 million as at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively.

The BOD of the Parent Company approved the declaration of the following cash dividends in
2013, 2012 and 2011:

Total Cash

Cash Dividend Dividend

Year  Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Declared
2013 March 4, 2013 April 17, 2013 20.25 21,215,049,609
2032 March 28, 2012 April 16, 2012 BO.40 21,944 079 375
August 1, 2012 August 22, 2012 0.26 1,264,764 203

P3.208,873,668

2001 March 11,2011 April 8, 2011 B045 P2,187,080,297

20. Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control. '

Transactions with related parties including the terms and conditions are as follows:

Amount/
Volume of Receivables
Related Party Category Year  Transactions (Payables) Terms Conditions
Associate -
Mont-Aire Noninterest-bearing 2013 P P84,475,370 Noninterest- Unsecured,
advances {see Note [ 1) 2012 - 84,475.370 bearing not impaired
Common
stockholders -
GMA Kapuso Noninterest-bearing 2013 - 562,901 Noninterest- Unsecured;
Foundation Inc. advances (see Note 7y 2012 - 692,749 bearing not impaired
Donations 2013 112,370 —  Noninterest- Unsecured
2012 93,045 - bearing
Other related :
party -
Belo, Gozon, Legal, consuiting and 2013 16,110,391 -~ Moninterest- Unsecured
Elma Law retainers’ fees 2012 4,468,300 (865,200) bearing

{see Note 16)

The advances made by the Parent Corapany to Mont-Ajre in previous years are intended for future
capital subscription.
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, follows:

2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -

2013 see Note 2) ses Note 2}
Salaries and other long-term benefits $£294,044,757 B279,432,700 £252,819,439
Pension benefits 40,322,398 39,191,038 29,357,229
B334,367,155 B318,623,738 282,176,668

Equity Investments of the Retirement Fund

The Group’s retirement fund includes equity investments in GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
amounting to 259.10 million and £408,77 million in 2013, respectively, and B63.56 million and
2496.56 million in 2012, respectively (see Note 26).

21. Net Revenues

2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Television and radio airtime P11,740,503,370  £10,883,125,479 R10,251,823,784
Subscription income
{see Note 27) 977,812,319 956,293,603 964,592,031
Production and others 244,342,288 269,751,753 237,012,535
12,962,6587,977 12,109,176¢,825 11,453,428.350
Co-producers’ shares (11,778,655) (23,235,865) {31,702,664)
£12,950,879,322 £12,085,934,970 21142 1,725,686
22. Production Casis
2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 see Note 2) seg Note 2)
Talent fees and production persormel
costs (see Note 24) P3,102,519989  P2,809,269,723  £2,829,684.664
Rental (see Note 27) 819,150,879 690,288,940 763,296,407
Tapes, sets and production supplies 575,808,346 481,758,193 572,365,965
Program and other rights usage
(see Note 8) 565,357,691 460,937,463 317,520,415
Facilities and production services 368,904,457 408,466,261 258,316,603
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 12) 287,553,835 253,603,510 224,202 422
Transportation and communication 237,086,508 130,819,400 201,652 535
$5,956,381,705 £5,285,143,492 £5,167,039,013
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23. General and Administrative Expenses

2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Personnel costs (see Note 24) $2,136,684,981 P2,170,180,871 £1,799,029,069
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 12 and 14) 417,887,050 356,399,407 294,562,339
Advertising 393,148,883 394,319,329 425,348,586
Communication, light and water 300,090,593 303,969,254 272,158,216
Repairs and maintenance 207,041,209 128,273,715 150,706,204
Professional fees 150,975,509 144,272 766 143,586,063
Research and surveys 145,899,298 133,792,810 112,664,696
Marketing expense 146,909,480 146,057,392 156,772,434
Taxes and licenses 140,703,017 143,642,174 213,408,781
Sales incentives 120,864.969 120,043,176 101,227,612
Rental (sce Note 27) 100,339,414 97,590,300 88,690,343
Transportation and travel 80,977,911 68,951,374 68,961,416
Security services 76,193,077 69,005,838 59,086,311
Amortization of software costs
{see Note 15) 30,995,844 27,733,533 25,711,619
Materials and suppiies 24,094,187 25,238,126 21,830,577
Insurance 21,218,563 22,294 801 21,872,912
Janitorial services 16,616,542 15,101,036 13,141,708
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 13,728,404 15,421,953 15,830,530
Freight and handling 12,098,311 11,952,700 -
Dues and subscriptions 10,646,983 10,114,917 11,080,013
Provisions for impairment loss on:
AFS financial assets
(see Note 10) 1,053,550 1,053,550 -
Advances fo joint venture
(see Note 11) ~ 2,610,287 -
Provision for doubtful accounts
(see Note 7) 848,005 35,785,207 24,628,057
Qthers 635,332,374 74,831,598 67,341,744
P4,608,945,146 $4,518,636,519 P4,087,639,232
24. Personnel Costs
2012 2011
{(As restated - (As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Talent fees
Salaries and wages

B2,971,320,857
1,553,164,989

$2,633,735,276

1,488,095,414

P2,660,734,083

1,331,911,392

Employee benefits and allowances 544,233,809 678,675,231 449,151,011
Pension expense (see Note 26) 116,158,183 120,401,310 90,741,183
Sick and vacation leaves expense 54,327,132 58,543,363 96,176,064

£5,239,204,970 £4.979,450,594 24,628,713,733
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The above amounts were distributed as follows:

2012 2011
(As restated - (As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Production costs (see Note 22) ¥3,102.519,989 72,809,269,723 P2,829,684 664

General and administrative
expenses (see Note 23)

2,136,684,981

2,170,180,871

1,799,029, 069

£5,239,204,970 P4,979.450,594 P4,628,713,733
25. Others - Net
2012 2011
(As restared - (As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Dividends 222,130,300 P1,394,234 P41,729
Tax refund of GMA Pinoy TV 19,161,027 19,246,077 14,781,003
Gain on sale of property
and equipment 11,243,739 29,045,447 16,040,347
Commissions 6,293,587 2,725,549 4,011,520
Rental income (see Note 27) 4,845,450 5,467,117 3,815,060
Income from mall shows 2,908,221 2,546,799 2,443,521
Loss on asset written off
{see Noie 14) {2,703,576) - -
Merchandising license fees and
others 1,657,906 2,954,088 6,781,724
Sales of DVDs and integrated
receiver-decoders 1,279,078 1,014,342 1,196,179
Reversal of impairment loss on
investment properties — - 4,990,219
Others 745,321 (371,703) 2,752,760
P67.561.,044 B64,022,050 P36,854,152

26. Pension and Other Long-term Employee Benefits

Pension Benefits
The Group operates non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement
pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity,
provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan.

Pension benefits recognized in the profit or loss are as follows (see Note 24);

2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -

2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Current service cost 291,017,025 188,811,863 68,071,621
Net interest cost 25,141,158 31,589,447 22,669,562
$116,158,183 B2120,401,310 £90,741,183
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Net pension liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position is as follows:

2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Present vafue of defined benefit
obligation #1,226,966,160 21,095,667,012 $936,792 631
Fair value of plan assets 621,718,108 638,722,578 526,360,186
Net pension liability 2605,248,052 406,944,434 B410,432 445

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2012 2011
{As restated - (As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Balance at beginning of year 21,095,667,012 P0936,792,631 £853,633,834
Current service cost 91,017,025 88,811,843 68,071,621
Interest cost 67,222,108 36,078,675 61,537,114
Benefits paid {26,939,985) {83,587,139) (46,449.938)
Remeasurement losses (gains):
Changes in financial
assumptions - 192,263,386 —~
Changes in demographic
assumptions - (287,109,775) -
Experience adjustment - 192,355,370 -
Balance at end of year £1,226,966,160 #1,095,607,012 £036,792,631
The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2012 2011
{As restated - {As restated -
2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
Balance at beginning of year £688,722,578 P526,360,186 P615,635,552
Contribution during the year 3,578,687 - 3,508,621
Interest income 42,080,950 24,489,228 38,867,552
Benefits paid (26,519,787) (71,179,478) (35,182,501)
Remeasurement gain (loss) - return
on plan assets (86,144,320 209,052,642 (92,469,038)
Balance at end of year $621,718,108 P688,722.578 B£526,360,186

At each reporting period, the Group determines its distribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The funds are managed and supervised by a trustee bank for the benefits of the members.
However, the general administration of the funds is vested in a Retirement Committee,
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The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the plan assets:

2013 2012

Carrying Yalue Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents $32,124,185 232,124,185 P9 168,890 PO.468.890
Equity istruments (see Note 20):

GMA PDRs 408,774,170 408,774,170 496,564,008 496,564,008

GMA Network, Inc. 59,100,395 59,100,395 63,562,320 63,562,320

Debt instruments -
Government securities 109,318,953 109,318,953 112,204,354 112,204,354
Others 12,400,405 12,400,405 5,923,006 6,923,006

621,718,108  ®621,718,108 P688,722,578  P688. 722,578

The plan assets consist of the following:

*  Cash and cash equivalents consist of regular savings and time deposits.

*  Investments in equity instruments consist of unsecured and not impaired investments on the
listed shares of GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs (see Note 20). Changes in the fair
market value in these investments amounted o a gain of 157.36 million and 2162.14 million
in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

* Investments in debt instruments bear interest ranging from 6.13% to0 9.13% and have
maturities from February 2015 to October 2037,

= Others consist of loans and receivables which are collectible within the next twelve (12)
months,

Equity and debt instruments held have guoted prices in active market,

The person who exercises voting rights over shares is within the powers of the Trustee, who do
not have any relationship with the directors or officers of the Group.

The plan assets consist of 75.26%, 81.33% and 80.65% investments in equity instruments as at
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The plan assets are primarily exposed to
financial risks such as liquidity risk and price risk.

Liquidity risk pertains to the plan’s ability to meet its obligation to the employees upon retirement.
To effectively manage liquidity risk, the Board of Trustees invests at least the equivalent amount
of actuarially computed expecied compulsory retirement benefit payments for the year to
liquid/semi-liquid assets such as treasury notes, treasury bills, savings and time deposits with
commercial banks.

Price risk pertains mainly to fluctuations in market prices of equity securities listed in the
Philippine SEC. In order to effectively manage price risk, the Board of Trustees continuously
assesses these risks by closely monitoring the market value of the securities and implementing
prudent investment strategies.

However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement plan and the retirement fund is
not sufficient to pay the benefit, the unfunded portion of the claim shail immediately be due and
payable to the retirement fund from the Group.

The Group does not expect to contribute to the plan in 2014,
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The prﬁwipai assumptions used in determining pension liability for the Group’s plans are shown
below;

2613 2012 2011

Discount rate 6-7% 6-7% 6-11%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00% 4.00% 6.00%
Turn-over rates:

19-24 vears old 10.44% 10.44% 10.44%

25-29 years old 6.95% 6.95% 6.95%

30-34 years old 3.87% 3.87% 3.87%

35-39 years old 2.55% 2.55% 2.55%

40-44 years old 2.18% 2.18% 2.18%

>45 years old 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined by remeasuring the defined benefit obligation
at the reporting period after first adjusting one of the current assumption that were reasonably
possible at the valuation date while all other assumptions remained unchanged. It should be noted
that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open to subjectivity,
and do not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed may be
deemed to be more reasonable.

Increase (Decrease) in Defined
Benefit Cbligation

Increase (Decrease) in

Basis Points 2013 2012
Discount rate 50 (P69,078,195) (£62,567,130)
(50) 63,311,454 68,589,919

Future salary increases 50 67,115,049 65,027,063
{50 (61,961,791) {59,952,009)

The Group performed an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annuaily. The principal
technique of the Group®s ALM in order to minimize the portfolio liquidation risk is to ensure that
the expected return on assets will be sufficient to support the desired level of funding arising from
the defined benefit plans. The Group’s current investment strategy comsists of 75% equity
instruments, 18% debt instrument, 5% cash and cash equivalents and 2% loans and receivables.

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at
December 31, 2013:

Year 2013 2012
Less than one year $49.613.321 P138,161,607
More than 1 year to 3 years 206,832,446 206,605,654
More than 3 years to 7 years 953,524,310 559,743,487
More than 7 years to 15 years 1,384,008,646 1,452,008.824
More than 15 years to 20 years 2,577,809,201 2,043,861,533

More than 20 years 13,406,113,484 14,528,671,837
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Other Emplovee Benefits

Other long-term employee benefits consist of accumulated employee sick and vacation leave
entitements. Noncurrent portion of other employee benefits amounted to 264.37 million and
P242.66 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, while current portion of other
employee benefits recorded in “Accrued payroll and talent fees account” under trade and other
current liabilities amounted to B17.26 million and 211.29 million as at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

27.

Agreements

Lease Agreements

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee. The Group entered into various lease
agreements for the land, building, studio spaces, satellite and airtime that it presently occupies and
uses for periods ranging from three to twenty five years. The ieases are cancellable at the Group’s
option,

Also, in June 2012, the Parent Company agreed to extend its non-cancellable Co-production/
Blocktime Rental Agreement with ZOE Broadcasting Network, Inc. (ZBN) for another seven
years from June 2012 to May 2019. On the first year of the contract renewal, the Parent Company
shall pay ZBN an amount equivalent to total payments from June 2011 to May 2012, subject to
yearly escalation of 10.00%.

Total rental expense amounted to 2919.49 million, #787.88 million and P851.99 million in 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively (see Notes 22 and 23).

The future minimum rentals payable under the non-cancellable operating leases follow:

2013 2012

{In Millions)
Within one year P144.37 R131.24
After one year but not more than five years 737.01 670.01
More than five vears 91.54 302.91
$972.92 21.104.16

Operating Lease - Group as Lessor. The Group also leases out certain properties for a period of
one year, renewabie annually, The leased out properties include investment properties and portion
of land in regional stations. Total rental income amounted to B4 85 million, B5.47 million and
P3.82 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 253).

Subscription Agreements

The Parent Company entered into various subscription agreements with international cable
providers for the airing of its programs and shows abroad. The agreements generally have terms
of three to five years and are based on certain agreed service package rates.

Total subscription income amounted to 977.81 mitlion, £956.29 million and R964.59 million in
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 2D.
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28. Income Taxes

The components of the Group’s provision for income tax in the consolidated profit or loss are as

follows:

2012 2011
As restated - {As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2)

Cuarrent income taxes:

RCIT £909,190,340 B740,211,754 B564,038,727
MCIT - ~ 62,386
969,190,340 740,211,754 564,101,113

Deferred tax benefit (196,859,299) (46,634,794) (38,796,573)
2712,331,041 P693,576,960 525,304,540

Income Tax

The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate and effective income tax rates on income

before income tax is shown below-

2813 2012 2011
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.60% 30.00%
Additions (deductions) in income tax
rate resulting from:
interest income already
subjected to final tax {3.23) (0.23) {0.38)
Nondeductible interest expense 0.08 0.07 -
Income tax holiday - (1.14) (6.82)
Nonclaimable foreign tax credit - 0.21 0.94
Impairment loss on investment - 0.04 -
Others - net — 1.02 {0.24)
Effective income tax rates 29.85% 29.97% 23.50%
Deferred Income Taxes
The components of the Parent Company’s net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
2013 2012
Deferred tax assets: ‘
Customers’ deposits P134,133.871 P
Pension liability 99,760,249 50,145,102
Allowance for doubtful accounts 80,961,771 80,961,771
Other long-term employee benefits 71,206,198 61,712,292
Accrued rent 18,759,170 7,710,807
Unsealized foreign exchange loss 13,946,337 385,432
418,767,596 201,115,404
Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaluation increment in land {437,639,170) (318,924,867)
Unamortized capitalized borrowing costs (21,162,020) (24,185,166)
Discounting of noncurrent obligation for
program and other rights (1,268,511 (1,713,790)
Revaluation of AFS financial assets (277,910} (541,971)
(460,347,611) (345,365,794)
(P41,580,015) (£144,250,390)
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The components of the net deferred tax assets of the subsidiaries are as follows:

2012
{As restated -
2013 Note 2)
Deferred tax assets:
Pension liability £81,314,345 $71,537,627
Other employee benefits 13,115,956 14,261,498
Allowance for doubtful accounts 454,152 600,465
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - 57,970
MCIT — 149,325
94,884,453 36,606,885
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized foreign exchange gain {(6,695,590) -
Revaluation of AFS financial assets (38,001) (3L,500)
(6,733,591) (31,500)

288,150,862 P86,575,385

The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) pertaining to accounts presented under equity in
the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:

2012
{As restated -
2013 Note 2)
Revaluation increment in land (P437,639,170)  (R318,924,867)
Pension Hability - remeasurement (gain} loss on
retirement plan 10,694,180 (15,149,116)
Revaluation of AFS financial assets (315,911 (573,471)

(B427,260,901) (B334,647,454)

The components of the subsidiaries’ deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits
of NOLCO and MCIT, for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized in the Group’s
statements of financial position, are as follows:

2013 2012

NOLCO P64,028,510 851,960,840
Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,592,367 1,256,653
Pension lability 1,666,073 1,335,337
MCIT 248,420 154,354
Other long-term employee benefits 555,473 700,307
Unrealized foreign exchange loss — 362,663
269,090,843 355,770,154

The unrecognized deferred tax assets from the above deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT amounted to 20.90 million and 16.84 miilion as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The deferred tax assets were not recognized as management believes that future taxable income
against which the deferred tax assets can be used for these entities may not be available.
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As at December 31, 2013, the Group’s MCIT and NOLCO are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred Carry forward Benefit Up To MCIT NOLCO
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2014 £%0,195 21,701,880
December 31,2012  December 3 1, 2015 - 46,554,740
December 31,2013  December 31,2016 158,225 15,771,890
B248,420 £64.028,510
The movements in MCIT and NOLCO in 2013 are as follow:

MCIT NOLCO

Balance at beginning of year 2303,679 51,960,840
Additions 158,225 15,771,890
Expirations (213,484) (3,704,220)
£248.420 P64.028,510

Board of Investments (BOT) Regulation

On February 19, 2007, the Parent Company was registered with the BOT as a new export producer
of television and motion picture on a non-pioneer status under the Omnibus Investments Code of

1987 (Executive Order No. 226). As a registered enterprise, the Parent Company is entitled to
income tax holiday for its registered activity for four years starting from registration date.

Cn December 19, 2610, the BOI granted the Parent Company an additional one year of income tax
holiday for its registered activity from February 19, 2011 to February 18, 2012,

The total tax incentives availed of in 2012 and 2011 amounted to 26,49 million and

B153.21 million, respectively.

. EP8 Computation

The computation of basic and diluted EPS follows:

2012 2011
(As restated - (As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2)

Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company (a) P1,666,949,855
Less attributable to preferred

shareholders 514,435,885

P1,616,888,633

498,986,536

B],704,619,533

326,061,090

Net income attributable to common
equity holders of the Parent

Company (b) $1,152,513,970

P1,117,902,097

P1,178,558,443

Common shares issued at the
beginning of year (see Note 19)
Treasury shares (see Note 19)

3,364,692,000
(3,645,000)

(Forward)

3,364,692,000
(3,645,000)

3,364,692,000
(3,645,000)
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2012 2011
{As restated - (As restated -
2013 Note 2) Note 2)

Underlying shares on acquired PDRs

(see Note 19) {750,000 {730,000) {750,000)
Weighted average number of common

shares for basic EPS (¢) 3,360,297,000 3,360,297.000 3,360,297,000
Weighted average number of common

shares 3,360,297,000 3,360,297,000 3,360,297 000

Effect of dilution - assumed
conversion of preferred shares

Reacquired preferred shares

Welighted average number of common
shares adjusted for the effect of
dihetion (d)

1,500,000,000
(98,563)

4,860,198,437

1,500,000,000
(98,563)

4,860,198.437

1,500,000,000
(98,563)

4,860,198,437

Basic EPS (b/c)

P0.343

£0.333

20.351

Diluted EPS (a/d)

$0.343

£0.333

P0.351

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mnclude cash and cash equivalents. The main
purposes of these financial instruments include raising financing for the Group’s operations and
managing identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and nontrade receivables (excluding advances to suppliers), refundable deposits, trade
payables and other current liabilities (excluding payable to government agencies and customers’
deposits), short-term loans, obligations for program and other right, dividends payable and other
long-term employee benefits, which arise directly from its operations, and AFS financial assefs.
The main risks arising from the use of financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency
exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and policies.

Liquidity Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capital
requirements and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Group manages liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations to meet
its short-term liquidity needs. The Group likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments
and arrangements to broaden the Group’s range of financing sources.
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The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets used for liquidity
risk management purposes and financial ligbilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as
at December 31:

2013

On Demand

{.ess than
3 Months

3 to 12 Months

More than
1 year

Total

Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents P1,465,684,717  £283,946,479 B P P1,749,631,104
Short-term investments - - 7,874,002 - 7,874,002
Trade receivables:
Television and
radio airtime 668,189,101  1,731,217,24% 269,872,570 - 2,669,278,91¢6
Subseriptions 198,032,453 573,459,471 - - 771,491,924
Others - 106,138,117 9,939,620 30,850,152 146,927,889
Nostrade receivabies:
Advances to officers
and employees 200 4,623,514 - - 4,623,714
Others 26,626,245 43,121,660 - - 09,747,905
Refundable deposits
(under “Other non-
CUITENT assets”™) - — - 15,671,200 15,671,300
2,358,532,716  2,742,506,486 287,686,192 46,521,452 5,435,246,846
AFS financial assets - - - 135,552,548 135,552,348
P2,358.532.716  P2,742,506,486 P287,686,192  P182,074,000 25,576,799,304
Trade payables and other
current liabilities* P438.449.654  2342,875520 $39,622.350 B~ P820,947,924
Short-term loans -~ 1,113,257,979 - - 1113257979
Obligations for program and
other rights - 141,096,456 P 33,330,130 174,426,586
Dividends payable 8,368,629 - - - 8,868,629
Other long-term employee
benefits - - - 264,368,057 264,368,057
£447,318,283 #1,597,230,355 B39,622,350 £297,698,187 $2,381,869,175

*Excluding payable to government agencies and cu

Stomers ' deposit which are not considered as Jinancial liabilifies.

2012
(As restated - Note 2)
Less than More than
On Demnand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P1,040,436,078  P246,849 482 P P~ P1,287285,360
Short-term investments 8,538,142 - 8,538,142
Trade recetvables:
Television and
radio airtime 366,211,590 2,525,579,945 269,872,570 - 3,161,664,105
Subscriptions 134,262,878 483,973,758 - - 618,236,636
Others 22,107,758 126,593,095 - - 148,700,853
Nonirade receivables:
Advances to officers
and employees 298,005 29,990,647 - - 30,288,652
Others 7,857,710 36,526,403 - - 64,784,113
Refundable deposits
{under “Other
DONCUTTent assets™) - - — 16,092,343 16,092 343
1,571,174,019 3,469,913,330 278,410,712 16,092,343 5,335,590,404
AFS financial assets — - - 106,343,598 106,343,598
B1,571,174,019 P3,469,913,330 B278,410,712  PRI122,435941 P5,441,934,002
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2012
{As restated - Note 2)
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months ! year Total
Trade payables and other
current labilities® P456,709,602 P199,056,168 P128,559,096 B P784,324.866
Short-term loans - L710,333,333 - - 1,710,333,333
Obiigations for program and
other rights - 124,996,401 59,589,218 63,955,130 248,540,749
Dividends payabie 7,648,097 - - - 7,648,097
Other long-term employee
benefits - - — 242,636,177 242,656,177

B464.357,699 P2,034,385902 ®I88,148,314  P306,611,307 $£2,993,503,222
*Exciuding pavable to government agencies which is not considered as a financial liab ility.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are as follows:

2013 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $11,899,486 ®528,337,179 37,712,351 2316,392.009
Trade receivables 17,960,926 797,465,114 16,365,000 671,783,250
$29,860,412 P1,325,862,293 $24,077 351 B988,375,259

Liabilities
Trade payables $305416  P13,560,471 51,441,304 P59,165,529
Short-term loans 24,929,617  1,106,875,800 - -
Obligations for program and

other rights 1,467,993 65,178,889 1,192.276 48,942 930

$26,703,026 P1,185,614,360 $2,633,580  P108,108,459

In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into Philippine
peso amounts, the exchange rate used were 44,40 and B41.05 to USS$1.00, the Philippine peso to
U.S. dollar exchange rate as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USS$ exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from
reporting period up to next reporting period (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and labilities). There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those aiready affecting profit
or loss,

Appreciation Effect on

{Depreciation) Income before

of B Income Tax

2013 0.50 {(£0.39 million)
{0.50) 0.39 miilion

2012 0.50 (2.68 million)

(0.50) 2.68 million
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Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to
changes in interest rates is attributed to cash and cash equivalents and short-term loans.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting period. There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those
already affecting profit or loss.

Increase (Decrease) Effect on Income Before Income Tax
in Basis Points 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 30 P21.56 million B15.96 million
(50) (21.56 million) (15.96 million)
Short-term loans 30 (13.84 million) (21.25 million)
(50) 13.84 million 21.25 million

Credit Risk. Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controiled by the application of
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Group’s policy to enter into
transactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit
and management of credit exposures. The Group has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential losses on credits extended. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments. The
Group does not require any collateral for its financial assets, thus, maximum exposure to credit
risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial instruments,

The table below shows the maximum CXPOSUIC {0 credit risk for the components of the
consolidated financial position as at December 31:

2012
(As restated -
2013 Note 2)
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents* P1,725,190,148 P1,276,466,238
Short-term investments 7,874,502 8,538,142
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime 2,399,406,346 2,891,791 535
Subscriptions 771,491,924 618,236,636
Others 142,821,682 145,442,651
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 4,623,714 30,288,652
Others 69,747,905 64,784,113
Refundable deposits (under “Other
non-current assets™) 15,671,300 16,092,343
5,136,827,021 5,051,640,310
AFS financial assets 135,552,548 106,343,598

P5,272,379,569 £5,157,983,9083
*Excluding cash on hand amounting to 24,44 million and &1 0.82 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using high grade and standard grade
as internal credit ratings.

®  High Grade. Pertains (o a counterparty who is not expected by the Group to default in settling
its obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal, This normally includes prime financial
mnstitutions and companies and top 20 advertisers in terms of volume of sales, who
consistently pay on or before the maturity date and related parties.

*  Standard Grade. Pertains to a counterparty with tolerable delays (normally from 1 to 30 days)
in settling its obligations to the Group. The delays may be due to cut-off differences. This
mcludes customers outside the top 20 advertisers in terms of volume of sales, who
consistently pay on maturity date and officers and employees.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:

2013
Neither Past Due Nor linpaired Past Due but
High Grade  Standard Grade not Imyaired Totai
Loans and recejvables:
Cash and cash equivaients* $1,725,190,148 b B $1,725,190,148

Short-term investments 7,374,002 - - 7,874,002
Trade receivables:
Television and other receivables 269,872,570 1,034,815,201 1,094,718,575 2,399.406,346
Subscriptions - 479,659,930 291,331,994 771,491,924
Others - 88,622,679 54,199,003 142,821,682
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees - 4,623,514 260 4,623,714
Others - 35,636,449 34,111,456 69,747,905
Refundable deposits {under “Other non-
current assets™) 15,671,300 ~ - 15,671,300
2,018,608,020 1,643,357,773 1,474,861,228 5,136,827,021
AFS financial assets 135,552,548 - - 135,552,548
£2,154,160,568 £1,643,357,773 £1,474.861,228 P5,272,379,569
*Excluding cash on hand amguniing to £24.44 million as at December 3] , 2073
2112
(As restated - Note 2)
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due but
High Grade Standard Grade 7ot Impaired Total
Loans and receivabies:
Cash and cash equivalents* $£1,276,466,238 B B R1,276,466,238
Short-term investments 8,338,142 - - 8,538,142
Trade receivables:
Television and other receivables 269,872,570 2,055,147.394 566,771,071 2,891,791,535
Subseriptions 228,237,158 - 389,999,478 618,236,636
Others - 113,789,346 31,653,305 145,442 651
Nontrade receivables;
Advances to officers and empioyees - 29.264,842 1,023,810 30,288,652
Others - 48,792,900 15,091 213 64,784,113
Refundable deposits (under “Other non-
current asseis”) 16,092,343 - -~ 16,092,343
1,799,206,451 2,246,994,982 1,005,438,877 5,051,640,310
AFS financial assefs 106,343,598 - — 106,343 598
P1,905,550,049 $£2.246,994 982 #1,005,438,877 25,157,983,908

*Excluding cash on hand amounting fo £10.82 million as at December 31, 2012,
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Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i, in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, pay off existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of interest-bearing foan to total
equity. Interest-bearing loan includes all short-term and long-term loans. The Group’s interest-
bearing loans amounted to 1,106.87 million and £1,700.00 million as at December 31,2013 and
2012, respectively. The Group’s total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to £8,870.43 million and £8,202.81 million,
respectively.

3L

Fair Value Measurement

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s assets and liabilities,
by category and by class, as at December 31:

2013
Fair Yalue
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant  Unobservable
Active Markets Observable Input Inputs
Carrying Value (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets
Loans and receivables -
Refundable deposits (under
“Other noncurrent assets) ®15,671,300 B~ B P14,883.845
Investment properties 60,532,209 - - 133,666,200
276,203,509 P P #148,552,045
Liabilities
Other financial Habilities:
Noncurrent portion of obligation
for program and other rights £33,330,130 - $- 34,663,247
Other long-term employee benefits 264,368,057 - - 237,353,993

$297,698,187 2 #272,017,240
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2012
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant Unobservable
Active Markets Observable Inputs Inputs
Carrying Value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Asgsets
Leans and receivables -
Refundabie deposits (under
“Other noncurrent assets) 216,092,343 P B £15,589,855
Investment properties 64,751,405 - - 123,220,145
280,843,748 B P £138,810,000
Liabilities
Other financial labilities:
Nencurrent obligation for program
and other rights 63,955,130 . B £82,709,118
Other long-term employee benefits 242,656,177 - - 216,260,349
P306,611.307 B B #2568 960,467

The following financial instruments have c
relatively short-term maturity except for A

are carried at fair valye:

arrying values that approximate fair values due to the
I'S financial assets and land at revalued amounts which

2013 2012
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,725,190,148 2RI 210,466,238
Short-term investments 7,874,002 8,538,142
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime 2.399,406,346 2,891,791,535
Subscriptions 771,491,924 618,236,636
Others 142,821,682 145,442,651
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 4,623,714 30,288,652
QOthers 69,747,905 64,784,112
5,121,155,721 5,035,547,966
AFS financial assets 135,552,548 106,343,558
Land at revalued amounts 1,805,300,051 1,409,585,706
£7,062,008,320  $6,551,477.270
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities:
Trade payables and other current liabilities* £820,947,924 B784,324,866
Short-term loans 1,106,875,000 1,700,000,000
Carrent portion of obligations for program and
other rights 141,096,790 184,585,619
Dividends payabie 8,868,629 7,648,097
#2,077,788,343  P2,676,558,582

*Excluding pavable to government agencies and customers’ deposits which are not co

nsidered as financial liabilities.
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The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and
lability for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments and Trade and Nontrade Receivables

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade and nontrade
receivables are the approximate fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these financial instruments.

Refundable Deposits
The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash
flows. Discount rates used range from 0.73% to 2.13% in 2013 and 0.20% to 5.3% in 2012,

AFS Financial Assets

These are investments in quoted and unquoted shares of stock. The fair value of guoted shares is
based on quoted market prices. For unquoted shares, the carrying amounts (cost less allowance
for impairment losses) approximate fair values due to unpredictable nature of future cash flows
and lack of other suitable methods for arriving at reliable fair value.

Investment Properties

The valuation for investment properties was derived through market data approach based upon
prices paid in actual market transactions. This approach relies on the comparison of recent sale
transactions or offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or offered with close
proximity to the subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison (e.g. market
conditions, location, physical condition and amenities). Estimated price per square meter based on
this approach and unobservable input ranges from R900 to 2118,945,

Land at Revalued Amount

The valuation for land was derived through market data approach based upon prices paid in actual
market transactions. This approach relies on the comparison of recent sale transactions or
offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or offered with close proximity to the
subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison (e.g. market conditions,
location, physical condition and amenities). Estimated price per square meter based on this
approach and unobservable input ranges from 2200 to £50,000.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square meter would result in a significantly
higher (lower) fair value of the properties,

Trade Payabies and Other Current Liabilities, Short-term Loans. Current Portion of Obligations
for Program and Other Rights and Dividends Payabie

The carrying values of trade payables and other current liabilities, short-term loans, current portion
of obligations for program and other rights and dividends payable are the approximate fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Noncurrent Portion of Obligations for Program and Other Rights
The fair value of noncurrent portion of obligation for program and other rights is based on the
present value of the future cash flows. Discount rates used is 2.10% in 2013.

Other Long-term Emplovee Benefits
The fair value of other long-term employee benefits is based on the present value of the future
cash flows. Discount rates used ranges from 0.73% to 5.13% in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

There were no transfer between levels of fair value measurement in 2013 and 2012,
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32, Other Matters

Non-cash transactions

Noncash investing activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 consists of increase in
investment in PEP of 12.00 million which was paid through conversion of advances of GNMI to
PEP (see Note 11).

This also consists of the increase in AFS financial assets amounting to 222.13 million which is
attributable to the dividends declared by Unicapital to the Parent Company.

Events after Reporting Period

On April 2, 2014, the BOD approved the Parent Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to £0.27 per share totaling £1,312.25 million to all stockholders of record as
at April 24, 2014 and will be paid on May 19, 2014.
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sMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2013

I Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-E

A, Financial assets Attached
B. Amounts receivable from directors, officers, employees, Not applicable
related parties and principal stockholders (other than
related parties)
€. Amounts of receivables and payable from/to related parties  Attached
which are eliminated during consolidation process of
financial statements
D. Intangible assets - other asset Attached
E. Long-term debt Not applicable
F. Indebtedness to related parties {(Long-term loans from Not applicable
related parties)
G. Guarantees of securities of other issuers Not applicable
H. Capital stock Attached
II. Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations Attached
[, Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend Attached
declaration
V. Map of the relationships of the Company within the Group Attached

V. Schedule of Financial Ratios Attdched



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

L SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-EF

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2613

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Number of Value based on
shares or market
principal amount  Amount shown in  quotation at end Income

Name of issuing entity and ofbondsand  the statements of of reporting received and
association of each issue rates  financial position period accrued
Cash in Banks — $1,441,243,669 2. £5,615,945
Peso Placements
Abacus Capital & Investment

Corporation - P198,281,100 P P8,151,759
Philippine National Bank — 1,318,536 - 1,366,735
Land Bank of the Philippines - — - -
Malayan Bank —_ - — 2,927,889
Unicapital, Ine. - 20,409,317 - 1,498,910
Metrobank - 2,498,008 - 66,700
Philippine Bank of

Communications - - - 1,798,112
Banco De Oro - - - -
Asia United Bank - - - -
uceB - - - 890,766
Union Bank of the Philippines. — ~ - 190,992
Dollar Placements - - - .=
Asia United Bank - 6,328,432 - 117,585
Eastwest Bank - 31,286,758 — 651,087
Unicen Bank of the Philippines — 23,824,328 - 436,676
Total Placements - P283,946,479 P P18,097.211
Short-term investments - _

Malayan Bank - £7,874,002 P £277,649




Number of Amount
shares or shown in the Value based on
principal  statements of  market quotation at Income
Name of issuing entity and amount of financial end of reporting  received and
assaciation of each issue bonds and rates position period accrued
AFS Financial Assets
- P82,457,100 P—  P22,130,300

Unicapital, Inc.

Mabuhay Philippines Satellite 29,000,000 - -
Optima Studio - 11,023,156 - —
Manila Electric Company shares 45,108 7,467,200 — -
Ayala Alabang Country Clib -~ A 1 1,800,000 1,800,000 -
Metropolitan Club (Metrociub) A 8 1,150,000 1,130,000 -
Baguio Country Club | 1,100,000 1,100,000 —
Manila Southwoods A 1 350,000 350,000 -
Camgp John Hay Golf Club 1 260,000 260,000 —
Philippine Long Distance Telephone

Company (PLDT) 21,810 243,400 — -
Royale Tagaytay (Tagaytay Country Club) 2 230,000 230,000 -
Others — 471,692 — _ —

66,932 P135,552,548 £4,890,000 £22,130,300
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Schedule D. Intangible Asset - Other Asset

Beginning Additions at Charge to cost Charged to
_Description balance cost and expenses  other accounts  Ending baiance
Program and film rights ~ 21,161,376,706 B538.361.476  (P504,422,071) (£2,702,260) £1,192,613,851
Story format rights 30,466,224 47,084,826 (60,935,620) - 16,615,430
Software cost 56,340,047 12,309 842 (30,995,844) - 37,654,045

P1,248,182,977 £597,756,144

(P596,353,535)

(P2,702,260) P1,246,883,326

Schedule H. Capital Stock

Number of
Number of shares shares
issued and  reserved for
outstanding as options,
shown under warrants, Directors,
Number of related statements  conversion Number of officers,
Title of shares of financial and other shares held by and
issue authorized position caption rights  related parties  employees Others
Common 5,000,000,000 3,361,047,000 NA  3,103,590,848 7,888,356  249,5567,796
Preferred 7.500,000,000 7,499,507,184 NA  7,428,344,388 27,294 71,135,502



GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

I1. SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS
AS AT BECEMBER 31, 2013

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative

characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary s

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v
(Revised) Standards
Amendments to PFRS | and PAS 27; Cost of an

Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or v
Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 7
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopiers

Amendments to PFRS 1; Government Loans
Amendment to PFRS 1: Meaning of Elfective PFRSs* Not Early Adopted

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- s
based Payment Transactions

Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Condition*

PERS 3 Business Combinations L
(Revised)

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent -
. L . s ot Early Adopted
Consideration in a Business Combination* N Y P

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint Not Early Adopted
Artangements™®

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts |




i

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financia{ Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments fo PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PERS 8

Operating Segments

Arendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets*

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments *

Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®

Not Barly Adopted

PERS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

|

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities*

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investiment Entities*

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

l

Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables*

Not Early Adopted

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception®

Not Early Adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1
{Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive fncome




Amendments to PAS 1. Presentation of Financial
Statements - Clarification of the requirements for v
comparative information
Inventories e
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates v
and Errors
PAS 10 Events affer the Reporting Period 1/
PAS 11 Construction Contracts 4
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 12 - Defzrred Tax: Recovery of
. . d e
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment e
Amendments to PAS 16: Classification of servicing s
equipinent
Araendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method —
Proportionate Restatement of Accumuiated Not Early Adopted
Depreciation®
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS [9: Actuarial Gains and Losses, v
Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Pians: -
- oo Not Farly Adopted
Employee Contribution
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of y
' Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Cperation /
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
{Revised) - i - _ * o
Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel Not Early Adopted
PAS 26 Agcounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 4
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities* Not Early Adopted




PAS 28 [nvestments in Associates
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation S
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial v
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets s
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 32: Tax effect of distribution to v
holders of equity instruments
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets .
and Financial Liabilities* Not Early Adopted
PAS 33 Earnings per Share s
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting e
Amerdments to PAS 34: Interim financial reporting and 7
segment information for total assets and Habilities
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount ,
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets* Not Earfy Adopted
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets
PAS 38 intangible Assets
Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method —
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Not Early Adopted
Amortization®
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement <
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial <
Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting e
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification 7
of Financial Assets




Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification

IFRIC 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

e
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items
Amendments to PAS 39: Noevation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting® Mot Early Adopted
PAS 40 Investment Property < [ T
Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifving the
Interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when
Classifying Property as Investment Property or Owner- Not Early Adopted
Occupied Property*
PAS 41 Agriculiure v
Philippine Interpretations
IERIC ¥ Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Simitar Liabiljties
IFRIC2 Members® Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar v
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains 2 Lease s
IFRIC S Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, e
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific 7
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 s
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 +
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amencments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC—9 and /
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment e
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendineats to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, s
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate® Not Early Adopted
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
v




{FRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Iinancial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Vs
Mine*

IFRIC 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)* Not Early Adopted

SiC-7 Intreduction of the Euro 4

SI1C-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to J
Operating Activities

S1C-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 v

SIC-13 Jointly Controiled Entities - Non-Monetary 7
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives v

51C-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity 7
or its Shareholders

S1C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the 7
Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

s1C-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

SEC-32 intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

Note: Standards and interpretations tagged as “Not applicable” are those standards which were adopted but the entity has no

significant covered transaction as at and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

* Standards and iterpretations which will become effective subseqiseni to Devcember 31, 2013,




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

1. SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3%, 2013

Unappropriated retained earnings, at beginning of year
Adjustments:
Less: Treasury shares
Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine
Deposit Receipts

P966,466,680

(28,483,171)

(5,790,016)
34,273,187

Adjusted beginning balance of unappropriated retained
earnings available for dividend declaration

932,193,493

Net income during the period closed to retained earnings
Less: Unrealized foreign exchange gain (net of
exchange difference attributable to cash and
cash equivalents)

Net income actually earned during the year,
as adjusted

1,650,187,468

(23,723,570)

1,626,463,898

Unappropriated retained earnings , as adjusted,
before dividend deciaration during the year

Less: Dividend declarations during the year

2,558,657,391
(1,215.049,609)

Unappropriated retained earnings as adjusted to
available for dividend deciaration, at end of vear

P1,343,607,782
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

IV. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 2013

Financial Ratios Description 2013 2012 2011
Current/liquidity ratio  Current assets over current liabilities 2.15:1 1.94:1 4.35:1
Asset to equity ratio Total asset over total equity 1.48:1 1.56:1 1.25:1
Net debt to equity ~ Interest - bearing loans and
ratio borrowings fess cash and cash
equivalents over total equity -0.07:1 0.05:1 -0.13:]
Debt-to-equity ratio Short-term loans over total equity - 0.13:1 0.21:1 -
Interest rate coverage  Earnings before interest, tax over
ratio interest expense 45.95:1 54.94:1 195.59:1
Gress profit margin Gross profit over net revenues 54.01% 56.27% 54.76%
Net income margin Net income over net revenues 12.93% 13.41% 14.97%
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I, JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age,
Mansion Condominium A. Amaiz Avenue, Makati City,
:n accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT PIRECT(

and with office address at Suite 703
after having been duly

1 am an Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC,;

I am affiliated with the following companies of organizations:

Dup Dpby BRUGEEN AT A LLLTET T

’ZE?LC.'TJ:;. )
ia} P

'Ri t APR 14 20

by

H oy
k - CEIvED MuIECT YO KEVIEW OF {) j

FURM AN CORTENTY

Company/Organizations

Position/Relationship

Period of Service

Chairman

Philtrust Bank 2004-present
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co., Inc. Director 2005-present
GMA Network, Inc. and GMA Holdings, Inc. Director 2007-present e
Ayala Land, Inc. Director 2010-present
Manila Water Company, Inc. Director 2014-present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trustee 2010-present
St. Paul University - Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Metropolitan Museum of Manila Trustee Ca. 2004-present
Yuchengco Muselin Trustee Ca. 2007-present o
Bankers Association of the Philippines Trustee 2012-present
Heart Foundation of the Phils., Inc. Trustee Ca. 1985-present
CIB! Foundation, Inc, Trusiee 1998-present
Fundacion Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Museo de La Salle, Inc. Trustee 2003-present
Don Nerberto Ty Foundation, Inc. Chairman 2005-present o

i Society for Cultural Enrichment, Inc. Vice Chairman 2009-present

L EINEX-Esundation,.Inc. Trstee——» -201 3

Avyala Foundation, Inc. Trustee 2014-
Escuela Tatler de Filipinas Foundation, Inc. Chairman 2014-
Various NGOs Trustee Up to about 30 years
Various family corporations Director Since the 1960s

1 possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC., as provided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code.




5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA NETWORK, INC., of any
changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its

occurence.

Done this 11" day of April 2014 at Makati City. .

o

ifiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 11" day of April 2014 at City of Manlla
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number

XX3820603 issued on May 27, 2009 by the DFA, Manila.

Doc. No. 350 Notary Public

Page No. 7/
Book No. [ _
Series of 2014. ? e

NEMESI&M. POMINGO
| MNetary Public
\{Intil December 31, 2015
PTR No. 24301490
Manila December 10, 2613
TIN - 109 - 213 - 922
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

[, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age, and with
1203 Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been

accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1.

2.

I am an Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC.;

| am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

6

hfice ‘Acidrass
Huly swornte

i)

[
TENN FTOREPA ANY AR AL RN T

APR 1§ 20t
N

[

<

UE T T AEYIEW OF
M

FPentenss

E

L

i
L

Company/Organizations

Position/Relationghip

Period of Service

First Philippine Holdings Corporation independent Director 2007 - present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation | independent Dirgctor | 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corporation Independent Director 2008 - present
Toliways Management Corp. independent Director | 2008 - present
GMA Hoidings, Inc. | independent Director 2008 - present
Petron Corporation Independent Director | 2010 - present |
Bank of PI N Independent Director 1 2010 - present
Metro Pacific Tollways Corperation Indepandent Director 2010 - present
‘| Asian Terminals Independent Director 2010 - present
Metropolitan Bank Senicr Adviser 2007 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tei. Co. | Independent Director 2013 - present
Philippine Daily Inquirer Columnist 2007 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Non-executive Director 2012 - present
Doubledragon Properties Corporation | Adviser 2014 - present

(For my full bio-data, log to my personal website: cjpanganiban.com)

]

[ possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibiiities as

independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code,

| shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA NETWORK, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

Jﬁis

Dongithis 1 _* day

of Aptil, 2014 at Makati Gity.

\./H%v
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
Affiant

172014
SURBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me t%?ig% % G%{;,} of April 2014 at Makati City,

affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his

Number DEQCD0999 issued on January 21, 2012 by & DFA M
January 20, 2017. B :

| Doc. No. __AF

Page No. _ 92

Book No. Ao
Series of 2014.

P
ity

plomatic Passport

il iexpire on

}j‘



CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of the 1987
Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors, Independent Directors and
Officers of GMA Network, Inc. are elected as public servants and or appointed
in any government agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

Issued this 23t day of April 2014.

ROBERTO O. PAREL
Corporate Secretary/Compliance
GMA Network, Inc.

GMA NETWORK, INC,

GMA Network Center, EDSA cor. Timog Ave., Diliman, Quezon City, 1103 Phll;ppmes
Telanhnne Nac - (A3 Q287071 tn 24 : :



